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PART |

This Report contains statements which constitute@dod-looking statements within the meaning of BecP7A of the Securities Act
of 1933 and the Securities Exchange Act of 1934s&hstatements appear in a number of places iRégert and include all statements
regarding the intent, belief or current expectagiohthe Company, its directors or its officershwigéspect to, among other things: (i) the
Company's financing plans; (ii) trends affecting ompany's financial condition or results of ogierss; (iii) the Company's growth strategy
and operating strategy; and (iv) the declaraticsh gayment of dividends. Investors are cautionetidhg such forward-looking statements are
not guarantees of future performance and invobksrand uncertainties, and that actual resultsdiféer materially from those projected in the
forward-looking statements as a result of variacidrs discussed herein and those factors discusskedail in the Company's filings with the
Securities and Exchange Commission.

ITEM 1. BUSINESS
BUSINESS OF THE COMPANY
General

The First Bancshares, Inc. (the "Company") wasripa@ted on June 23, 1995 to serve as a bank lgotdimpany for The First, A
National Banking Association ("The First" or t‘Bank”) located in Hattiesburg, Mississippi. Thedtibegan operations on August 5, 1996
from its main office in the Oak Grove community,iethwas on the outskirts of Hattiesburg but nown@uded in the city of Hattiesburg. The
First currently operates its main office and twarlwhes in Hattiesburg, one in Laurel, one in Puniig in Picayune, one in Pascagoula, one il
Bay St. Louis, one in Wiggins, four in Gulfport,em Biloxi, one in Long Beach and one in DiamoratheMississippi, as well as one branch
in Bogalusa, Louisiana. See Note C of Notes to Glichsted Financial Statements for information relyag branch acquisition. The Company
and its subsidiary bank engage in a general comat@md retail banking business characterized ggralized service and local decision-
making, emphasizing the banking needs of smallgédiom-sized businesses, professional concernsndidduals. The First is a wholly-
owned subsidiary bank of the Company.

Location and Service Area

The First serves the cities of Hattiesburg, LauPekvis, Picayune, Pascagoula, Bay St. Louis, Wigidgsulfport, Biloxi, Long Beach,
Diamondhead, Mississippi and Bogalusa, Louisiand,the surrounding areas of Lamar, Forrest, Jdheas| River ,Jackson, Hancock, Stone
and Harrison Counties in Mississippi and Washind@arish in Louisiana. The First has a main offaated in the city of Hattiesburg,
Mississippi, in Lamar County. The First has a bhaoffice located on Highway 589 in the city of PisrWMlississippi, also in Lamar County, a
third office located at the intersection of Lincéoad and South 28th Avenue in Hattiesburg, a foleation at 110 S. 40Ave. in
Hattiesburg, a fifth location on Hwy 15 North inurel, a sixth location on Hwy 43 South in Picayuasgventh location on Jackson Avenue ir
Pascagoula, an eighth location on Hwy 90 in Bay &utis, a ninth location on Border Ave. in Wiggiasenth location at Hwy 49 and O’Neal
Rd in Gulfport, Mississippi, and eleventh locatimd a motorbank on 2BAve in Gulfport, Mississippi, a twelfth location @ourthouse Road
in Gulfport, MS, a thirteenth location on Hwy 49@ulfport, Mississippi, a fourteenth location orsB&oad in Biloxi, Mississippi, a fifteenth
location on Klondyke Road in Biloxi, Mississippis&teenth location on Kalani Drive in Diamondhelfississippi, and a seventeenth locatior
on Columbia Street in Bogalusa, Louisiana. On Fatyrd8, 2013, The First opened a branch in Oceaim@pin Jackson County at 1517
Bienville Blvd, Ocean Springs, MS.




The main office primarily serves the area in armuad the northern portion of Lamar County. The Ruoffice primarily serves the
area in and around Purvis, Mississippi, which ithim east-central part of Lamar County and is thety seat. Lamar County is located in the
southeastern section of Mississippi. Hattiesbung, of the largest cities in Mississippi, is locatedorrest and Lamar Counties. The Laurel
office serves the city of Laurel and the surrougdanea of Jones County, Mississippi. The Picaydfieeqprimarily serves the area in and
around Picayune, Mississippi, including areas afmblancock County and Pearl River, LA and SlidefA, Picayune is located in the southern
part of Pearl River County. Pearl River Countyoisdted in the southern section of Mississippi. Phecagoula office primarily serves the area
in and around Pascagoula, Mississippi, includireagaiof Jackson County. Hattiesburg can be readhdd.8. Highways 98 and 49 and
Interstate 59. Major employers located in the Laarat Forrest County areas include Forrest Geneayapithl, the University of Southern
Mississippi, Wesley Medical Center, Camp Shelbg, Hattiesburg Public Schools, the Hattiesburg €litlie City of Hattiesburg, and Marst
Durbin Poultry. The principal components of theremmy of the Lamar and Forrest County areas inchgateice industries, wholesale and re
trade, manufacturing, and transportation and puliiities. The Laurel branch is located at 194§tdvay 15 North, Laurel, MS, with the
majority of its retail business coming from thedbarea and the remaining business coming fronr @iteas of Jones County, as well as
portions of Jasper County, Wayne County, Smith ®guand Covington County. Major employers in thaek County area include Howard
Industries, Sanderson Farms, Inc., and South Gdtigional Medical Center. Major employers in tleaf River County area include Stennis
Space Center, Chevron, Texaco, Arizona Chemicakaan Crescent Elevator Co., City of Picayune sBydMemorial Hospital and the
public schools. The principal components of theneoay of the Pearl River County area include timBeryice industries, wholesale and retail
trade, manufacturing, and transportation and puliiities. Major employers in the Jackson Coumtyaainclude Northrop Grumman, Singing
River Hospital, and Shell Oil Company. The Bayl$iis and Diamondhead offices serve the city of BaylLouis, Diamondhead and the
surrounding area of Hancock County, Mississipply Ba Louis and Diamondhead can be reached viaklghway 90. Major employers in t
Hancock area include the City of Bay St. Louis, etaok County, and Stennis Space Center. The Wiggfite serves the city of Wiggins and
the surrounding area of Stone County, Mississipfine County is south of Forrest County and ndftdasrison County. Wiggins can be
reached via U. S. Highway 49. The Gulfport, Bilcxnd Long Beach offices serve the city of Gulfort! the surrounding area of Harrison
County, Mississippi. Gulfport can be reached vi&.\Highway 49. Major employers in the Harrison Qguarea include Keesler Air Force
Base and a vast array of casinos. The Bogaluszed§@irves the city of Bogalusa and the surrounalieg of Washington Parish, Louisiana.
major employers in the Washington Parish area decillemple-Inland, the Bogalusa School System, &ld-Washington/St. Tammany
Regional Medical Center.

Banking Services

The Company strives to provide its customers withlireadth of products and services comparablegetoffered by large regional
banks, while maintaining the quick response andq®l service of a locally owned and managed bankddition to offering a full range of
deposit services and commercial and personal |ddresFirst offers products such as mortgage logginations. The following is a description
of the products and services offered or planndaktoffered by the Bank.

! Deposit ServicesThe Bank offers a full range of deposit services tre typically available in most banks and saviagd loan
associations, including checking accounts, NOW aetxy savings accounts, and other time depositaridus types, ranging from
daily money market accounts to longer-term cents of deposit. The transaction accounts anddariéicates are tailored to the
Bank's principal market area at rates competitivihdse offered by other banks in the area. Intanfdithe Bank offers certain
retirement account services, such as Individuakr&uaent Accounts (IRAs). All deposit accounts arguired by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation (the "FDIC") up to the maximamount allowed by law. The Bank solicits thesepaats from individuals,
businesses, associations and organizations, arargoental authoritie:

! Loan ProductsThe Bank offers a full range of commercial and peed loans. Commercial loans include both secunedumsecured
loans for working capital (including loans secubgdinventory and accounts receivable), businesarmsipn (including acquisition of
real estate and improvements), and purchase opeguit and machinery. Consumer loans include edjoig of credit and secured
and unsecured loans for financing automobiles, hiompeovements, education, and personal investm&his Bank also makes real
estate construction and acquisition loans. The Balekding activities are subject to a variety ofdiag limits imposed by federal la
While differing limits apply in certain circumstagg based on the type of loan or the nature of dheter (including the borrower's
relationship to the Bank), in general the Bankuisjsct to a loans-to-one-borrower limit of an amtoeual to 15% of the Bank's
unimpaired capital and surplus. The Bank may ndtaray loans to any director, executive officerl0% shareholder unless the |
is approved by the Board of Directors of the Ban#l & made on terms not more favorable to suchrsopeghan would be available to
a person not affiliated with the Bar




! Mortgage Loan DivisionsThe Bank has mortgage loan divisions which originaans to purchase existing or construct new homes
and to refinance existing mortgag

! Other ServicesOther Bank services include on-line internet baglgarvices, voice response telephone inquiry sereiemmercial
sweep accounts, cash management services, safgitdepaes, travelers checks, direct deposit of ghgnd social security checks,
and automatic drafts for various accounts. The Bamlssociated with the Interlink, Plus, Pulser,Stad Community Cash networks
of automated teller machines that may be used éB#nk’s customers throughout Mississippi and otégions. The Bank also offers
VISA and MasterCard credit card services througbraespondent ban

Competition

The Bank generally competes with other financiatitations through the selection of banking prodwatd services offered, the
pricing of services, the level of service providdéws convenience and availability of services, treddegree of expertise and the personal
manner in which services are offered. Mississippi permits statewide branching by banks and sawirggutions, and many financial
institutions in the state have branch networks.gegnently, commercial banking in Mississippi ishtygcompetitive. Many large banking
organizations currently operate in the Company'sketarea, several of which are controlled by dustate ownership. In addition, competit
between commercial banks and thrift institutioresr{iggs institutions and credit unions) has beeenisified significantly by the elimination of
many previous distinctions between the varioussygfdinancial institutions and the expanded poveers increased activity of thrift
institutions in areas of banking which previousdheen the sole domain of commercial banks. Feldgjialation, together with other
regulatory changes by the primary regulators ofvdm@ous financial institutions, has resulted ia #imost total elimination of practical
distinctions between a commercial bank and a timgfitution. Consequently, competition among ficiahinstitutions of all types is largely
unlimited with respect to legal ability and authytio provide most financial services.

The Company faces increased competition from bedlerally-chartered and state-chartered financiadlthnift institutions, as well as
credit unions, consumer finance companies, ins@raompanies, and other institutions in the Compamgrket area. Some of these
competitors are not subject to the same degreegoflation and restriction imposed upon the Compitany of these competitors also have
broader geographic markets and substantially greegeurces and lending limits than the Companyadfeat certain services such as trust
banking that the Company does not currently pravid@ddition, many of these competitors have namgibranch offices located throughout
the extended market areas of the Company that msyde these competitors with an advantage in gggige convenience that the Company
does not have at present.

Currently there are numerous other commercial hasdsngs institutions, and credit unions operatmdhe First's primary service
area.

Employees
As of March 21, 2013 the Company had 206 full-tiengployees and 6 part-time employees.
SUPERVISION AND REGULATION

The Company and the Bank are subject to stateedatdl banking laws and regulations which imposeifip requirements or
restrictions on and provide for general regulatorgrsight with respect to virtually all aspectopgrations. These laws and regulations are
generally intended to protect depositors, not di@ders. To the extent that the following summaggatibes statutory or regulatory provisions.
it is qualified in its entirety by reference to tparticular statutory and regulatory provisionsyAsange in applicable laws or regulations may
have a material effect on the business and praspéthe Company. Beginning with the enactmenhefRinancial Institutions Reform,
Recovery and Enforcement Act of 1989 ("FIRREA") dollbwing with the Federal Deposit Insurance Cagiimn Improvement Act of 1991
("FDICIA"), and now most recently the sweeping Ddgldink Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protectionok 2010 (the “Dodd-Frank
Act”), numerous additional regulatory requirememse been placed on the banking industry in thegeagral years, and additional changes
have been proposed. The operations of the Compahtha Bank may be affected by legislative chargesthe policies of various regulatory
authorities. The Company is unable to predict @weire or the extent of the effect on its busineskemarnings that fiscal or monetary policies,
economic control, or new federal or state legistatnay have in the future.




Legislative and Regulatory Initiatives to Addressdncial and Economic Crises

The Congress, Treasury Department and the fedendiitg regulators, including the FDIC, have takesal action since early
September 2008 to address volatility in the U.3kbay system.

Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008: TtedlAsset Relief Prograrm October 2008, the Emergency Economic
Stabilization Act of 2008 (“EESA”) was enacted. TRESA authorized the Treasury Department to puecfrasn financial institutions and
their holding companies up to $700 billion in magg loans, mortgage-related securities and cesthar financial instruments, including debt
and equity securities issued by financial institng and their holding companies in a troubled assief program (“TARP”). The purpose of
TARP is to restore confidence and stability toth&. banking system and to encourage financialinigins to increase their lending to
customers and to each other. The Treasury Depattaiecated $250 billion towards the TARP CapRalchase Program (“CPPfursuant t
which the Treasury Department purchased debt dtyesgcurities from participating institutions. @AARP also includes the Community
Development Capital Initiative (“CDCI”), which wasade available only to certified Community DevelgmnFinancial Institutions (“CDFI$”
and imposed a lower dividend or interest rate pgdieable, than the CPP funding. Participants @ TARP are subject to executive
compensation limits and are encouraged to expaidldnding and mortgage loan modifications.

On February 6, 2009, as part of the CPP, the Comneatered into a Letter Agreement and Securitigstifise Agreement
(collectively, the “Purchase Agreement”) with theedsury Department, pursuant to which the Compaldy(§ 5,000 shares of the Company’s
Fixed Rate Cumulative Perpetual Preferred StockeS&ST (the “CPP Preferred Stock”) and (ii) araat (the “Warrant"}o purchase 54,7
shares of the Company’s Common Stock for an exemige of $13.71 per share. On September 29, 20tH,successfully obtaining CDFI
certification, the Company exited the CPP by refaiag its CPP funding into lower-cost CDCI fundiagd also accepted additional CDCI
funding. In connection with this transaction, then@any retired its CPP Preferred Stock and issmélukt Treasury Department 17,123 shares
of the Company’s Fixed Rate Cumulative Perpetueld?red Stock, Series CD (the “CDCI Preferred Stpdkcluding refinanced funding and
newly obtained funding, the Company’s total CDQiding is $17,123,000.

The CDCI Preferred Stock qualifies as Tier 1 caital, provided that the Company maintains its C8ligibility and certification, is
entitled to cumulative dividends at a rate of 2%aeum until 2018, and 9% per annum thereafteg. WWarrant has a 10-year term and is
immediately exercisable upon its issuance, aneiXigscise price is subject to anti-dilution adjustise

In order to benefit from the lower dividend rats@sdated with the CDCI Preferred Stock, the Compamgquired to maintain
compliance with the eligibility requirements of t8®FI Program. These eligibility requirements irdguthe following:

« The Company must have a primary mission of prongotmmmunity development, based on criteria sehfortl2 C.F.R. 1805.201(b)
1)

« The Company must provide Financial Products, Dearaknt Services, and/or other similar financing aseslominant business
activity in arn’ s-length transactions, as provided in 12 C.F.R. 1IB0Kb)(2);

- The Company must serve a Target Market by servirgos more Investment Areas and/or Targeted Papofatsubstantially in the
manner set forth in 12 C.F.R. 1805.201(b)




« The Company must provide Development Services mucation with its Financial Products, either ditgcthrough an Affiliate, or
through a contract with a thi-party provider, as provided in 12 C.F.R. 1805.2)#(b

« The Company must maintain accountability to redislefithe applicable Investment Area(s) and/or &g Population(s) through
representation on its governing Board of Directmrstherwise, as provided in 12 C.F.R. 1805.205(b¥nd

- The Company must remain a ngavernmental entity which is not an agency or instentality of the United States of America, or
State or political subdivision thereof, as desatibel2 C.F.R. 1805.201(b)(6) and within the megrohany supplemental regulations
or interpretations of 12 C.F.R. 1805.201(b)(6) wctssupplemental regulations published by the F

As used in the discussion above, the terms “Affilja“Financial Products,” “Development Service$Target Market,” “Investment Area(s),”
and “Targeted Population(s)” have the meaningstzestito such terms in 12 C.F.R. 1805.104.

EESA also temporarily increased FDIC deposit insoeaon most accounts from $100,000 to $250,000vener, with the passage of
the Dodd-Frank Act, this increase in the basic cage limit has been made permanent.

Following a systemic risk determination, the FDKZadblished a Temporary Liquidity Guarantee Progf@hGP”) on October 14,
2008. The TLGP included the Transaction Accourti@ntee Program (“TAGP”), which provided unlimi@eposit insurance coverage for
noninterest-bearing transaction accounts (typidaliginess checking accounts) and certain fundstsnpnoninterest-bearing savings
accounts. Institutions participating in the TAG#da 10 basis points fee (annualized) on the balafieach covered account in excess of
$250,000 while the extra deposit insurance waddogp The TAGP was set to expire on December 310 28owever, with the passage of the
Dodd-Frank Act, the insurance coverage provideceutite Transaction Account Guarantee Program wasi@éed until December 31, 2012,
with some changes.

American Reinvestment and Recovery Act of 200%ebruary 17, 2009, President Obama signedamdtie America Reinvestment
and Recovery Act of 2009 (“ARRA”"). ARRA containegpansive new restrictions on executive compensdtiofinancial institutions and
other companies participating in the TARP. Thestriaions apply to us and are further detailedriplementing regulations found at 31 CFR
Part 30. (Any reference to “ARRA” herein includeseference to the implementing regulations.)

ARRA prohibits bonus and similar payments to theshiighly compensated employee of the Company.prbleibition does not
apply to bonuses payable pursuant to “employmergeagents” in effect prior to February 11, 2009. figeterm” restricted stock is excluded
from ARRA’s bonus prohibition, but only to the emteéhe value of the stock does not exceed one-tiithe total amount of annual
compensation of the employee receiving the stdekstock does not “fully vest” until after all TARBlated obligations have been satisfied,
and any other conditions which the Treasury magi§pbave been met.

ARRA prohibits any payment to the principal execetofficer, the principal financial officer, andyaaf the next eight most highly
compensated employees upon departure from the Gonipaany reason for as long as any TARP-relatd@yations remain outstanding.

Under ARRA TARP-participating companies are requii@ recover any bonus or other incentive paymaitt f the principal
executive officer, the principal financial officex; any of the next 23 most highly compensated eygas on the basis of materially inaccurate
financial or other performance criteria.

ARRA prohibits TARP participants from implementiagy compensation plan that would encourage martipualaf the reported
earnings of the Company in order to enhance thepeosation of any of its employees.




ARRA requires the principal executive officer aheé principal financial officer of any publicly-trad TARPparticipating company |
provide a written certification of compliance withe executive compensation restrictions in ARRAhim Company’s annual filings with the
SEC beginning in 2010.

ARRA requires each TARP-participating company tplement a company-wide policy regarding excessidenairy expenditures,
including excessive expenditures on entertainmertents, office and facility renovations, aviatimnother transportation services.

ARRA directs the Treasury to review bonuses, r@tardwards, and other compensation paid to theipahexecutive officer and the
next four other highest paid executive officerled Company and the next 20 most highly compensatgrdoyees of each company receiving
TARP assistance before ARRA was enacted, and &k“senegotiate” with the TARP recipient and aféetemployees for reimbursement if it
finds any such payments were inconsistent with TARBtherwise in conflict with the public interest.

ARRA also prohibits the payment of tax gross-upsguired disclosures related to perquisite paymemisthe engagement, if any, by
the TARP participant of a compensation consultantt prohibits the deduction for tax purposes otakee compensation in excess of
$500,000 for each applicable senior executive.

These standards could change based on subseqidsniciissued by the Treasury or the Internal Rex&ervice. As long as the
Treasury continues to hold equity interests inGloenpany issued under the TARP, the Company willitooits compensation arrangements
and modify such compensation arrangements, agi@ait@and limit its compensation deductions, aakle such other actions as may be
necessary to comply with the standards discussaxkahs they may be modified from time to time. Twmpany does not anticipate that any
material changes to its existing executive comporsatructure will be required to comply with tagecutive compensation standards inclt
in the TARP.

Dodd-Frank Act The enactment during 2010 of the Dodd-Frank \8aket Reform and Consumer Protection Act (the ‘thBdank
Act”) has resulted in increased regulation of tinarficial services industry. Provisions affecting #ttivities of the Company and the Bank
include, without limitation, the following:

« Asse-based deposit insurance assessmeR3IC deposit insurance premium assessments @itldsed on bank assets rather than
domestic deposit:

« Deposit insurance limit increas. The deposit insurance coverage limit has beemaeently increased from $100,000 to $250,000.

- Extension of Transaction Account Guarantee Prog. Unlimited deposit insurance coverage was extefoledon-interest-bearing
transaction accounts and certain other accountisDetember 31, 201:

« Establishment of the Consumer Financial ProtecBameau (CFPB. The CFPB is housed within the Federal Reserveiand
consultation with the Federal banking agencies,anakldles relating to consumer protection. The CREBthe authority, should it
wish to do so, to rewrite virtually all of the camser protection regulations governing banks, incigdhose implementing the Truth
Lending Act, the Real Estate Settlement Procediice¢or RESPA), the Truth in Savings Act, the Etecic Funds Transfer Act, the
Equal Credit Opportunity Act, the Home Mortgagedlisure Act, the S.A.F.E. Mortgage Licensing Abg Fair Credit Reporting A
(except Sections 615(e) and 628), the Fair Debie€idn Practices Act, and the Gramm-Leach-Blilegt fsections 502 through 509
relating to privacy), among othe

« Riskretention rule. Banks originating loans for sale on the secondaayket or securitization must retain 5 percerdrof loan they
sell or securitize, except for mortgages that nme-risk standards to be developed by regulai

« Limitation on federal preemptic. Limitations have been imposed on the ability afional bank regulators to preempt state law.
Formerly, the national bank and federal thrift degrs possessed preemption powers with regamgmsactions, operating
subsidiaries and attorney general civil enforcenagmiiority. These preemption requirements have bedéted by the Dodd-Frank
Act, which will likely impact state banks by afféay activities previously permitted through panitith national banks




« Changes to regulation of bank holding companigsder Dodd-Frank, bank holding companies mustvéi-capitalized and well-
managed to engage in interstate transactionselpdkt, only the subsidiary banks were requireddet those standards. The Federal
Reserve Board’s “source of strength doctrine” has been codified, mandating that bank holding comgmsuch as the Company
serve as a source of strength for their subsidianks, meaning that the bank holding company masthite to provide financial
assistance in the event the subsidiary bank experiefinancial distres

« Executive compensation limitatio. The Dodd-Frank Act codified executive compengalimitations similar to those previously
imposed on TARP recipient

SummaryThe foregoing is a brief summary of certain statutales and regulations affecting the Companythadank. It is not
intended to be an exhaustive discussion of alsthtutes and regulations having an impact on tleeadipns of such entities. Additional bills
may be introduced in the future in the United St&lengress and state legislatures to alter thetstrey regulation and competitive relationsl
of financial institutions. It cannot be predictetiather and what form any of these proposals wikdb@pted or the extent to which the busines:
of the Company and the Bank may be affected thereby

The Company

Because it owns the outstanding capital stock@Bhnk, the Company is a bank holding company withé meaning of the Federal
Bank Holding Company Act of 1956 (the "BHCA").

The BHCAUnder the BHCA, the Company is subject to peri@kamination by the Federal Reserve and is reqtiréite periodic
reports of its operations and such additional imi@tion as the Federal Reserve may require. The @oygpand the Bank’s activities are
limited to banking, managing or controlling banksnishing services to or performing services tersubsidiaries, and engaging in other
activities that the Federal Reserve determinegtsaclosely related to banking or managing orrodliintg banks as to be a proper incident
thereto.

The Dodd-Frank Act has removed many limitationgtanFederal Reserve Board’s authority to make ematioins of banks that are
subsidiaries of bank holding companies. Under thdddFrank Act, the Federal Reserve Board will gelebe permitted to examine bank
holding companies and their subsidiaries, provithed the Federal Reserve Board must rely on regatimitted directly by the institution and
examination reports of the appropriate regulatsusli as the OCC) to the fullest extent possiblestrprovide reasonable notice to, and consul
with, the appropriate regulators before commeneaimgxamination of a bank holding company subsidiamg, to the fullest extent possible,
must avoid duplication of examination activitiesporting requirements, and requests for information

Investments, Control, and Activitiad/ith certain limited exceptions, the BHCA requimgery bank holding company to obtain the
prior approval of the Federal Reserve before @uaing substantially all the assets of any baika¢quiring direct or indirect ownership or
control of any voting shares of any bank if aftects acquisition it would own or control more tha &f the voting shares of such bank (unles
it already owns or controls the majority of suclrgs), or (iii) merging or consolidating with anettbank holding company.

In addition, and subject to certain exceptions BRCA and the Change in Bank Control Act, togetivih regulations thereunder,
require Federal Reserve approval (or, dependintp@circumstances, no notice of disapproval) gnany person or company acquiring
“control" of a bank holding company, such as thenfany. Control is conclusively presumed to exisirifindividual or company acquires 2!
or more of any class of voting securities of thakoholding company. Control is rebuttably presurtedxist if a person acquires 10% or more
but less than 25% of any class of voting securdies either the Company has registered securitidsriSection 12 of the Exchange Act (wt
the Company has done) or no other person ownsadegneercentage of that class of voting securitiesediately after the transaction. The
regulations provide a procedure for challenge efrébuttable control presumption.




Under the BHCA, a bank holding company is genenaidbhibited from engaging in, or acquiring directrdirect control of more the
5% of the voting shares of any company engagedibanking activities, unless the Federal Resenad@dy order or regulation, has found
those activities to be so closely related to bagpkinmanaging or controlling banks as to be a propsdent thereto. Some of the activities that
the Federal Reserve Board has determined by rémulat be proper incidents to the business of & baitding company include making or
servicing loans and certain types of leases, engdgicertain insurance and discount brokerageities, performing certain data processing
services, acting in certain circumstances as aiiy or investment or financial adviser, owningiegs associations, and making investments
in certain corporations or projects designed prilpéo promote community welfare.

The Federal Reserve Board has imposed certairatagifuirements on the Company under the BHCAuhiolg a minimum leverage
ratio and a minimum ratio of "qualifying" capital tisk-weighted assets. These requirements areibeddelow under "Capital Regulations."
Subject to its capital requirements and certaieotbstrictions, the Company may borrow money t&eracapital contribution to the Bank,
and such loans may be repaid from dividends paiah the Bank to the Company (although the abilitthef Bank to pay dividends is subjec
regulatory restrictions as described below in "Ba@k - Dividends"). The Company is also able tgeaiapital for contribution to the Bank by
issuing securities without having to receive retpriaapproval, subject to compliance with federad atate securities laws.

Source of Strength; Cross-Guarantéeaccordance with Federal Reserve Board policy Gbmpany is expected to act as a source ¢
financial strength to the Bank and to commit researto support the Bank in circumstances in whHiehGQompany might not otherwise do so.
Under the BHCA, the Federal Reserve Board may requbank holding company to terminate any actieityelinquish control of a nonbank
subsidiary (other than a nonbank subsidiary ofr&kpapon the Federal Reserve Board's determingtiminsuch activity or control constitutes a
serious risk to the financial soundness or stahilftany subsidiary depository institution of thenlik holding company. Further, federal bank
regulatory authorities have additional discretiomaquire a bank holding company to divest itséHiry bank or nonbank subsidiary if the
agency determines that divestiture may aid the siep® institution's financial condition.

The Bank

The Bank operates as a national banking associatonporated under the laws of the United Statekssabject to examination by the
Office of Comptroller of the Currency ("OCC"). Degits in the Bank are insured by the FDIC up to aimam amount (generally $250,000
per depositor, subject to aggregation rules). TB€@nd the FDIC regulate or monitor virtually akas of the Bank’s operations, including
security devices and procedures, adequacy of @izpiian and loan loss reserves, loans, investméotsowings, deposits, mergers, issuances
of securities, payment of dividends, interest rg@gable on deposits, interest rates or fees cablgen loans, establishment of branches,
corporate reorganizations, maintenance of booksecuwtds, and adequacy of staff training to camgafe lending and deposit gathering
practices. The OCC requires the Bank to maintaitatecapital ratios and imposes limitations on Bamk’s aggregate investment in real
estate, bank premises, and furniture and fixturese.Bank is required by the OCC to prepare quarteports on their financial condition anc
conduct an annual audit of their financial affairgompliance with minimum standards and procedprescribed by the OCC.

Under FDICIA, all insured institutions must undemggular on-site examinations by their appropristeking agency. The cost of
examinations of insured depository institutions ang affiliates may be assessed by the appromgacy against each institution or affiliate
as it deems necessary or appropriate. Insuredutistis are required to submit annual reports ¢oRBIC and the appropriate agency (and stat
supervisor when applicable). FDICIA also directs BDIC to develop with other appropriate agenciggethod for insured depository
institutions to provide supplemental disclosurehef estimated fair market value of assets andiliglsi to the extent feasible and practicabli
any balance sheet, financial statement, reporbndlition, or any other report of any insured defogiinstitution. FDICIA also requires the
federal banking regulatory agencies to prescripeegulation, standards for all insured depositosfitutions and depository institution hold
companies relating, among other things, to: (g1in&l controls, information systems, and auditayst (ii) loan documentation; (i) credit
underwriting; (iv) interest rate risk exposure; gapasset quality.




National banks and their holding companies whickehazeen chartered or registered or undergone aeharcontrol within the past
two years or which have been deemed by the OCBedFéderal Reserve Board, respectively, to be keduhbstitutions must give the OCC or
the Federal Reserve Board, respectively, thirtysgajor notice of the appointment of any seniorceiee officer or director. Within the thirty
day period, the OCC or the Federal Reserve Boartheacase may be, may approve or disapprove afiyagppointment.

Deposit InsuranceThe FDIC establishes rates for the payment of premaiby federally insured banks and thrifts for dsfpo
insurance. A Deposit Insurance Fund ("DIF") is ntaiimed for commercial banks and thrifts, with irssuwre premiums from the industry use:
offset losses from insurance payouts when bankghaifts fail. Since 1993, insured depository ihgions like the Bank have paid for deposit
insurance under a risk-based premium system.

The Dodd-Frank Act has changed the method of caticul for FDIC insurance assessments. Under themusystem, the assessment
base is domestic deposits minus a few allowabliisimns, such as pass-through reserve balance®rtthel Dodd-Frank Act, assessments are
to be calculated based on the depository institigiaverage consolidated total assets, less itsgevaraount of tangible equity. On Februar
2011, the FDIC published final regulations impleti@gnthese changes. In addition to providing fa thquired change in assessment base,
FDIC has modified or eliminated the assessmentsadgents based on unsecured debt, secured liahilitiel brokered deposits; added a new
adjustment for holding unsecured debt issued byh@ndinsured depository institution; and loweree ithitial base assessment rate schedule ir
order to collect approximately the same amounewénue under the new base as under the old basagasther changes. Due to the expande
assessment base the new initial base assessnemnhaat been lowered from prior levels.

Transactions With Affiliates and Insidefithe Bank is subject to Section 23A of the FederdRve Act, which places limits on the
amount of loans to, and certain other transactitis affiliates, as well as on the amount of advemto third parties collateralized by the
securities or obligations of affiliates. The aggrtegof all covered transactions is limited in antpas to any one affiliate, to 10% of the Bank's
capital and surplus and, as to all affiliates camdi to 20% of the Bank's capital and surplus.Heumore, within the foregoing limitations a:
amount, each covered transaction must meet specibikateral requirements.

The Bank is also subject to Section 23B of the Fadeeserve Act, which prohibits an institutionrfr@ngaging in certain transactions
with affiliates unless the transactions are on sesobstantially the same, or at least as favotatdech institution, as those prevailing at the
time for comparable transactions with nonaffiliateanpanies. The Bank is subject to certain regriston extensions of credit to executive
officers, directors, certain principal shareholdersd their related interests. Such extensionsagfit(i) must be made on substantially the sam
terms, including interest rates and collaterathase prevailing at the time for comparable tratisas with third parties and (i) must not
involve more than the normal risk of repayment i@spnt other unfavorable features.

Dividends A national bank may not pay dividends from its talpiAll dividends must be paid out of undivideafits then on hand,
after deducting expenses, including reserves fsde and bad debts. In addition, a national bapkotsbited from declaring a dividend on its
shares of common stock until its surplus equalstéted capital, unless the bank has transferredrfdus no less than one-tenth of its net
profits of the preceding two consecutive half-yeariods (in the case of an annual dividend). Th@ml of the OCC is required if the total of
all dividends declared by a national bank in arlgre@ar year exceeds the total of its net profitdfiat year combined with its retained net
profits for the preceding two years, less any negutransfers to surplus. In addition, under FDIQe banks may not pay a dividend if, after
paying the dividend, the bank would be undercapidl See "Capital Regulations" below.




Branching.National banks are required by the National Banktd@dhere to branch office banking laws applieablstate banks in
the states in which they are located. Under cuivéssissippi law, banks may open branches throughtississippi with the prior approval of
the OCC. In addition, with prior regulatory apprJ@anks are able to acquire existing banking djmra in Mississippi. Furthermore, federal
legislation has recently been passed which peimisstate branching. The new law permits out afesaicquisitions by bank holding
companies (subject to veto by new state law), staée branching by banks if allowed by state Iaeristate merging by banks, and de novo
branching by national banks if allowed by state.|®&e "Recent Legislative Developments."

Community Reinvestment A€he Community Reinvestment Act requires that, inneetion with examinations of financial institutg
within their respective jurisdictions, the FedeRalserve, the FDIC, the OCC, or the Office of ThBifipervision shall evaluate the record of the
financial institutions in meeting the credit needisheir local communities, including low and moalerincome neighborhoods, consistent with
the safe and sound operation of those institutibhese factors are also considered in evaluatimgeng, acquisitions, and applications to opet
a branch or facility.

Other Regulationdnterest and certain other charges collected otracted for by the Bank are subject to state ukawg and certain
federal laws concerning interest rates. The Baluda operations are subject to certain federal @pydicable to credit transactions, such as th
federal Truth-In-Lending Act, governing disclosutdsredit terms to consumer borrowers; the Hometlyame Disclosure Act of 1975,
requiring financial institutions to provide inforti@an to enable the public and public officials tekrmine whether a financial institution is
fulfilling its obligation to help meet the housimgeds community it serves; the Equal Credit OppitstiAct, prohibiting discrimination on the
basis of creed or other prohibited factors in edteq credit; the Fair Credit Reporting Act of 19¢@yverning the use and provision of
information to credit reporting agencies; the @bt Collection Act, concerning the manner in whicimsumer debts may be collected by
collection agencies; and the rules and regulatidnise various federal agencies charged with tepamssibility of implementing such federal
laws. The deposit operations of the Bank also alogest to the Right to Financial Privacy Act, whiamposes a duty to maintain confidentiality
of consumer financial records and prescribes puasdfor complying with administrative subpoena$irdncial records, and the Electronic
Funds Transfer Act and Regulation E issued by #ueFal Reserve Board to implement that Act, whiohegns automatic deposits to and
withdrawals from deposit accounts and customegbtsiand liabilities arising from the use of auttedaeller machines and other electronic
banking services.

Capital RegulationsThe federal bank regulatory authorities have adbptk-based capital guidelines for banks and basi#ling
companies that are designed to make regulatoryatapguirements more sensitive to differencessk profile among banks and bank holding
companies, account for off-balance sheet exposmeminimize disincentives for holding liquid asséthe resulting capital ratios represent
qualifying capital as a percentage of total riskghted assets and off-balance sheet items. Theeljuéd are minimums, and the federal
regulators have noted that banks and bank holdingpanies contemplating significant expansion pnmgrahould not allow expansion to
diminish their capital ratios and should maintaitias well in excess of the minimums. The currantglines require all bank holding
companies and federally-regulated banks to maimtamnimum risk-based total capital ratio equa¥6, of which at least 4% must be Tier 1
capital. Tier 1 capital includes common sharehadequity, qualifying perpetual preferred stockd amnority interests in equity accounts of
consolidated subsidiaries, but excludes goodwil st other intangibles and excludes the allowémckwan and lease losses. Tier 2 capital
includes the excess of any preferred stock notided in Tier 1 capital, mandatory convertible siias, hybrid capital instruments,
subordinated debt and intermediate term-prefeni@tksand general reserves for loan and leasedagséo 1.25% of risk-weighted assets.

Under the guidelines, banks' and bank holding canigsaassets are given risk-weights of 0%, 20%, 88%100%. In addition,
certain off-balance sheet items are given creditvecsion factors to convert them to asset equitasrounts to which an appropriate risk-
weight will apply. These computations result in th&al risk-weighted assets. Most loans are asdigméhe 100% risk category, except for first
mortgage loans fully secured by residential prgpend, under certain circumstances, residentiasttoction loans, both of which carry a 50%
rating. Most investment securities are assignedg¢®0% category, except for municipal or statenee bonds, which have a 50% rating, and
direct obligations of or obligations guaranteedtsy United States Treasury or United States Goventragencies, which have a 0% rating.
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The federal bank regulatory authorities have algglémented a leverage ratio, which is Tier 1 chpisaa percentage of average total
assets less intangibles, to be used as a suppléonbet risk-based guidelines. The principal olyecof the leverage ratio is to place a
constraint on the maximum degree to which a badimg company may leverage its equity capital base minimum required leverage ratio
for top-rated institutions is 3%, but most instibus are required to maintain an additional cusloibat least 100 to 200 basis points.

FDICIA established a capithlased regulatory scheme designed to promote edegwention for troubled banks and requires the@
to choose the least expensive resolution of baillkeés. The capital-based regulatory framework aorst five categories of compliance with
regulatory capital requirements, including "welpitalized," "adequately capitalized,” "undercap#edl,” "significantly undercapitalized,” and
“critically undercapitalized.” To qualify as a "wehpitalized" institution, a bank must have a lage ratio of no less than 5%, a Tier 1 risk-
based ratio of no less than 6%, and a total risleth@apital ratio of no less than 10%, and the Bangt not be under any order or directive
from the appropriate regulatory agency to meetraathtain a specific capital level. As of Decembgy 3012, the Company and The First, v
qualified as "well capitalized."

Under the FDICIA regulations, the applicable agecay treat an institution as if it were in the niexter category if the agency
determines (after notice and an opportunity forrimggd that the institution is in an unsafe or unsdweondition or is engaging in an unsafe or
unsound practice. The degree of regulatory scruifrgyfinancial institution will increase, and thermissible activities of the institution will
decrease, as it moves downward through the cagitafories. Institutions that fall into one of theee undercapitalized categories may be
required to (i) submit a capital restoration pl@n;raise additional capital; (iii) restrict thegrowth, deposit interest rates, and other actisjti
(iv) improve their management; (v) eliminate mamagat fees; or (vi) divest themselves of all or ditheir operations. Bank holding
companies controlling financial institutions candadled upon to boost the institutions' capital amgartially guarantee the institutions'
performance under their capital restoration plans.

These capital guidelines can affect the Comparsgueral ways. If the Company continues to growraipé pace, a premature
"squeeze" on capital could occur making a capitfaision necessary. The requirements could impac€Cihmpany's ability to pay dividends.
The Company's present capital levels are moreddaquate; however, rapid growth, poor loan podfpkrformance, or poor earnings
performance could change the Company's capitatiposn a relatively short period of time.

Failure to meet these capital requirements wouldmibat a bank would be required to develop aeddfiblan with its primary federal
banking regulator describing the means and a stdéaiuachieving the minimum capital requiremeirsaddition, such a bank would
generally not receive regulatory approval of angligption that requires the consideration of cdgitlequacy, such as a branch or merger
application, unless the Bank could demonstrat@somable plan to meet the capital requirement wihieasonable period of time.

Enforcement PowersFIRREA expanded and increased civil and crimpeadalties available for use by the federal regujadgencies
against depository institutions and certain "insiitn-affiliated parties" (primarily including magement, employees, and agents of a financial
institution, independent contractors such as atggrand accountants, and others who participatesiconduct of the financial institution's
affairs). These practices can include the faildraroinstitution to timely file required reportéiet filing of false or misleading information; or
the submission of inaccurate reports. Civil peralthay be as high as $1,000,000 a day for suchtignk. Criminal penalties for some
financial institution crimes have been increasetivienty years. In addition, regulators are providéith greater flexibility to commence
enforcement actions against institutions and misbih-affiliated parties. Possible enforcementaudiinclude the termination of deposit
insurance. Furthermore, FIRREA expanded the aptepbanking agencies' power to issue cease aligt deders that may, among other
things, require affirmative action to correct amyrh resulting from a violation or practice, incladirestitution, reimbursement,
indemnifications, or guarantees against loss. Arfaial institution may also be ordered to resttgcgrowth, dispose of certain assets, rescind
agreements or contracts, or take other actiongtesrdined by the ordering agency to be appropriate.
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Effect of Governmental Monetary Polici@he earnings of the Bank are affected by domestio@mic conditions and the monetary
and fiscal policies of the United States governnaamt its agencies. The Federal Reserve Board'stergmmlicies have had, and are likely to
continue to have, an important impact on the opggaksults of commercial banks through its poweintplement national monetary policy in
order, among other things, to curb inflation or t@ta recession. The monetary policies of the Fédaserve Board have major effects upon
the levels of bank loans, investments, and deptisitgigh its open market operations in United Stgtevernment securities and through its
regulation of the discount rate on borrowings ofmber banks and the reserve requirements againsberdrank deposits. It is not possible to
predict the nature or impact of future changes amatary and fiscal policies.

Significant Legislative Developmen@n September 29, 1994, the federal government ethdlee Riegle-Neal Interstate Banking and
Branching Efficiency Act of 1994 (the "Interstatariking Act"). This Act became effective on Septent® 1995, and permits eligible bank
holding companies in any state, with regulatoryrapal, to acquire banking organizations in any p#tate. Since June 1, 1997, the Interstate
Banking Act has allowed banks with different hortegess to merge, unless a particular state optefahe statute. In addition, beginning June
1, 1997, the Interstate Banking Act has permittatibnal and state banks to establish de novo besnichanother state if there is a law in that
state which applies equally to all banks and exglygzermits all out-of-state banks to establisindeo branches.

On November 12, 1999, the Gramm- Leach-Bliley Act@99 (the "Financial Services Modernization Aat/ds signed into law. The
Financial Services Modernization Act repeals the affiliation provisions of the Glass-Steagall A8ection 20, which restricted the affiliation
of Federal Reserve Member Banks with firms "engaweéttipally" in specified securities activitieydSection 32, which restricts officer,
director, or employee interlocks between a membektand any company or person "primarily engagedpicified securities activities. In
addition, the Financial Services Modernization Alsio contains provisions that expressly preemptssate law restricting the establishment of
financial affiliations, primarily related to insuree. The general effect of the law is to estaldisiomprehensive framework to permit
affiliations among commercial banks, insurance canigs, securities firms, and other financial seryiooviders by revising and expanding the
BHCA framework to permit a holding company systenemgage in a full range of financial activitiesoiligh a new entity known as a Finan
Holding Company. "Financial activities" is broadlgfined to include not only banking, insurance, secdurities activities, but also merchant
banking and additional activities that the Fed®=s$erve, in consultation with the Secretary offtteasury, determines to be financial in nai
incidental to such financial activities, or complkemtary activities that do not pose a substansl o the safety and soundness of depository
institutions or the financial system generally.

Generally, the Financial Services Modernization: Act

! Repeals historical restrictions on, and elimisateany federal and state law barriers to, affiatiamong banks, securities
firms, insurance companies, and other financialiserproviders

! Provides a uniform framewaork for the functionagulation of the activities of banks, savings tusitbns, and their holding
companies

! Broadens the activities that may be conducteddiional banks, banking subsidiaries of bank hgldiompanies, and their
financial subsidiaries

! Provides an enhanced framework for protecting theapy of consumer informatiol

! Adopts a number of provisions related to the tiation, membership, corporate governance, dneraneasures designed
to modernize the Federal Home Loan Bank sys

! Modifies the laws governing the implementationte Community Reinvestment Act ("CRA"); a
! Addresses a variety of other legal and regulatesyes affecting both day-to-day operations ang-term activities of

financial institutions
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In order for a bank holding company to take advg@taf the ability to affiliate with other financiaérvices providers, that company
must become a "Financial Holding Company" as peeaiiinder an amendment to the BHCA. To becomeanEial Holding Company, a
company would file a declaration with the Federas&ve, electing to engage in activities permisditnl Financial Holding Companies and
certifying that it is eligible to do so becauseddlits insured depository institution subsidiarégs well-capitalized and well-managed. In
addition, the Federal Reserve must also deterrhiatesiach insured depository institution subsidargt company has at least a "satisfactory"
CRA rating.

The Financial Services Modernization Act also p&smational banks to engage in expanded actiitiesigh the formation of
financial subsidiaries. A national bank may hawibsidiary engaged in any activity authorized fational banks directly or any financial
activity, except for insurance underwriting, insura investments, real estate investment or devedapror merchant banking, which may only
be conducted through a subsidiary of a Financiddliig Company. Financial activities include alligittes permitted under new sections of
BHCA or permitted by regulation.

A national bank seeking to have a financial subsidiand each of its depository institution afféis, must be "well-capitalized" and
"well-managed.” The total assets of all financigbsidiaries may not exceed the lesser of 45% a@ink'b total assets, or $50 billion. A national
bank must exclude from its assets and equity aiitgdnvestments, including retained earnings, financial subsidiary. The assets of the
subsidiary may not be consolidated with the baag&ets. The bank must also have policies and puoeetb assess financial subsidiary risk
and protect the bank from such risks and potelidiailities.

The Financial Services Modernization Act also idelsi a new section of the Federal Deposit InsurAstgoverning subsidiaries of
state banks that engage in "activities as prindipeat would only be permissible” for a national bam conduct in a financial subsidiary. It
expressly preserves the ability of a state bankttmin all existing subsidiaries. Because Missjgsgermits commercial banks chartered by the
state to engage in any activity permissible foramatl banks, the state bank competitors of Thet Riiltbe permitted to form subsidiaries to
engage in the activities authorized by the Findri&gavices Modernization Act, to the same extenflas First. In order to form a financial
subsidiary, a state bank must be well-capitalized, the state bank would be subject to the sanitatdpduction, risk management and
affiliate transaction rules as applicable to natidranks.

The Company and the Bank do not believe that tharfgial Services Modernization Act will have a miaeadverse effect on
operations in the near-term. However, to the extaatdtit permits banks, securities firms, and iagge companies to affiliate, the financial
services industry may experience further consabidafThe Financial Services Modernization Act iteimded to grant to community banks
certain powers as a matter of right that largetituttons have accumulated on an ad hoc basis. fifesless, this act may have the result of
increasing the amount of competition that the Camend the Bank face from larger institutions atiteotypes of companies offering
financial products, many of which may have subs#iptmore financial resources than the CompanythedBank.

In 2001, the Uniting and Strengthening America bgvitling Appropriate Tools Required to Interceptl@bstruct Terrorism Act of
2001 (USA Patriot Act) was signed into law. The UBdétriot Act broadened the application of anti-mola@indering regulations to apply to
additional types of financial institutions, suchlaieker-dealers, and strengthened the ability efdt5. Government to detect and prosecute
international money laundering and the financingeoforism. The principal provisions of Title IIf the USA Patriot Act require that regulated
financial institutions, including state member bsink) establish an antironey laundering program that includes training andit component:
(i) comply with regulations regarding the verifian of the identity of any person seeking to oparaccount; (i) take additional required
precautions with non-U.S. owned accounts; andp@rjorm certain verification and certification obmey laundering risk for their foreign
correspondent banking relationships. The USA Patri also expanded the conditions under which fuimda U.S. interbank account may be
subject to forfeiture and increased the penaltesiblation of anti-money laundering regulatioRailure of a financial institution to comply
with the USA Patriot Act’s requirements could haegious legal and reputational consequences fanstieution. The Bank has adopted
policies, procedures and controls to address camqdi with the requirements of the USA Patriot Aader the existing regulations and will
continue to revise and update its policies, prooesland controls to reflect changes required byJtBA Patriot Act and implementing
regulations.
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In July 2002, Congress enacted the Sarbanes-Oxdegf/2002, which addresses, among other issugsp@e governance, auditing
and accounting, executive compensation, and entawd timely disclosure of corporate informatioacton 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act,
and regulations adopted by the SEC require the @amio include in its Annual Report, a report sigtmanagement’s responsibility to
establish and maintain adequate internal contnads financial reporting and management’s conclusiorthe effectiveness of the internal
controls at year end. Additionally, the Companyde@pendent registered public accounting firm isiiregl to attest to and report on
management’s evaluation of internal control oveaficial reporting.

From time to time, various bills are introducedhe United States Congress with respect to thdaggua of financial institutions.
Certain of these proposals, if adopted, could figantly change the regulation of banks
and the financial services industry. The Compamnoapredict whether any of these proposals wilhtepted or, if adopted, how these
proposals would affect the Company.

Recent Legislative and Regulatory Initiatives tal#sds Financial and Economic Crise§.he Congress, Treasury Department and th
federal banking regulators have taken broad asiioce early September, 2008 to address volatilithé U.S. banking system, including the
passage of legislation, the provision of otheratieand indirect assistance to financial institusioassistance by the banking authorities in
arranging acquisitions of weakened banks and brdkelers, implementation of programs by the FedReskrve Board to provide liquidity to
the commercial paper markets and expansion of ddpsarance coverage. Seleefislative and Regulatory Initiatives to Addregsancial an
Economic Crises” above.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

Making or continuing an investment in securitiegluding the Company’s Common Stock, involves dgentizks that you should
carefully consider. The risks and uncertaintiescdbed below are not the only risks that may haweaterial adverse effect on the Company.
Additional risks and uncertainties also could adedr affect the Company’s business and resultpefaiions. If any of the following risks
actually occur, our business, financial conditiomesults of operations could be affected, the mitgpkice for your securities could decline, anc
you could lose all or a part of your investmentctker, to the extent that any of the informatiomtadned in this Annual Report on Form-K
constitutes forward-looking statements, the rigkdes set forth below also are cautionary statemieleintifying important factors that could
cause the Company’s actual results to differ maltgrirom those expressed in any forward-lookirgtestnents made by or on behalf of the
Company.

We may be vulnerable to certain sectors of the etgn

A portion of the loan portfolio is secured by reatate. If the economy deteriorates further anbdestate values depress beyond a
certain point, the collateral value of the portadind the revenue stream from those loans coul@ eorder stress and possibly require
additional loan loss accruals. Our ability to disp@f foreclosed real estate at prices above gpeotive carrying values could also be
impinged, causing additional losses.

Difficult market conditions have adversely affedtieel industry in which we operas

The capital and credit markets have been experignalatility and disruption for more than two ysatausing volatility and
disruption to reach unprecedented levels. Drantig@dines in the housing market over the past yein, falling home prices and increasing
foreclosures, unemployment and under-employmeng hagatively impacted the credit performance oftgamge loans and resulted in
significant write-downs of asset values by finahgiatitutions, including government-sponsored tigdias well as major commercial and
investment banks. Reflecting concern about thelgtabf the financial markets generally and theesigth of counterparties, many lenders havi
reduced or ceased providing funding to borrowerdpiding to other financial institutions. This matkurmoil and tightening of credit have led
to an increased level of commercial and consumiargleencies, lack of consumer confidence and witEpreduction of business activity
generally. A worsening of these conditions woulkely exacerbate the adverse effects of these diffinarket conditions on us and others in
the financial institution industry. Also, the ecamic downturn could exacerbate our exposure to tresk, particularly in our real estate
markets, as lower home prices and increased faa@e may result in higher charge-offs and delingies.
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General economic conditions in the areas whereap@rations or loans are concentrated may adveraffct our customers’ ability to meet
their obligations

A sudden or severe downturn in the economy in gagpaphic markets we serve in the state of Miggissnay affect the ability of o
customers to meet loan payments obligations omelyibasis. The local economic conditions in the®as have a significant impact on our
commercial, real estate, and construction loamsatility of borrowers to repay these loans andsdige of the collateral securing such loans.
Changes resulting in adverse economic conditiormiofnarket areas could negatively impact the firelmesults of the Company’s banking
operations and its profitability.

Additionally, adverse economic changes may caustomers to withdraw deposit balances, thereby ngusistrain on our liquidity.
We are subject to a risk of rapid and significahtinges in market interest rates

Our assets and liabilities are primarily monetarypature, and as a result we are subject to sigmifirisks tied to changes in interest
rates. Our ability to operate profitably is largdgpendent upon net interest income. Unexpectecdment in interest rates markedly changing
the slope of the current yield curve could caugdmterest margins to decrease, subsequently dgnrenaet interest income. In addition, such
changes could adversely affect the valuation ofamsets and liabilities.

At present the Company’s one-year interest ratsiteity position is slightly asset sensitive, laugradual increase in interest rates
during the next twelve months should not have ai@ant impact on net interest income during thetiod. However, as with most financial
institutions, the Company’s results of operatioresatfected by changes in interest rates and tmep@ay’s ability to manage this risk. The
difference between interest rates charged on isitex@ning assets and interest rates paid on #ttbearing liabilities may be affected by
changes in market interest rates, changes inoaktips between interest rate indices, and/or aesamgthe relationships between laiegm ant
short-term market interest rates. A change indhference might result in an increase in inteesgiense relative to interest income, or a
decrease in the Company’s interest rate spread.

Certain changes in interest rates, inflation, oe financial markets could affect demand for ourdarcts and our ability to deliver products
efficiently

Loan originations, and potentially loan revenuesild be adversely impacted by sharply rising irgerates. Conversely, sharply
falling rates could increase prepayments withinseaurities portfolio lowering interest earningsnfrthose investments. An unanticipated
increase in inflation could cause operating cositsted to salaries and benefits, technology, apgl®s to increase at a faster pace than
revenues.

The fair market value of the securities portfolimahe investment income from these securitiesfalstuate depending on general
economic and market conditions. In addition, actlinvestment income and/or cash flows from itwests that carry prepayment risk, such
as mortgage-backed and other asset-backed seguniidgy differ from those anticipated at the timénekstment as a result of interest rate
fluctuations.

Changes in the policies of monetary authorities atiter government action could adversely affecfifability

The results of operations of the Company are aftebly credit policies of monetary authorities, jgatarly the Federal Reserve Boz
The instruments of monetary policy employed byRkderal Reserve Board include open market opegatiohd.S. government securities,
changes in the discount rate or the federal fuatisan bank borrowings and changes in reserversgants against bank deposits. In view of
changing conditions in the national economy anithéhmoney markets, particularly in light of the tinning threat of terrorist attacks and the
current military operations in the Middle East, gannot predict possible future changes in inteagsts, deposit levels, loan demand or the
Company’s business and earnings. Furthermore ctitna of the United States government and otheegonents in responding to such
terrorist attacks or the military operations in Mildle East may result in currency fluctuationsgleange controls, market disruption and othe
adverse effects.
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Natural disasters could affect our ability to opt

Our market areas are susceptible to natural disestieh as hurricanes. Natural disasters can dispgrations, result in damage to
properties and negatively affect the local econermeavhich we operate. The Company cannot predietther or to what extent damage cat
by future hurricanes or other natural disasterkaffiéct operations or the economies in our maskeas, but such weather events could cause
decline in loan originations, a decline in the eatir destruction of properties securing the loarmsan increase in the risk of delinquencies,
foreclosures or loan losses.

Greater loan losses than expected may adversedgtadfir earnings

The Bank as lender is exposed to the risk thatissomers will be unable to repay their loans itoadance with their terms and that
any collateral securing the payment of their loaray not be sufficient to assure repayment. Credids are inherent in the business of makin
loans and could have a material adverse effecpenating results. Credit risk with respect to @alrestate and construction loan portfolio will
relate principally to the creditworthiness of camgtions and the value of the real estate servirgpasrity for the repayment of loans. Credit
with respect to its commercial and consumer loatf@a will relate principally to the general criégtorthiness of businesses and individuals
within our local markets.

The Bank makes various assumptions and judgments &te collectability of its loan portfolio andgwides an allowance for
estimated loan losses based on a number of fadioesBank believes that its current allowance danllosses is adequate. However, if our
assumptions or judgments prove to be incorrectallogrance for loan losses may not be sufficierddeer actual loan losses. We may have tc
increase the allowance in the future in responskaaequest of one of its primary banking regukstto adjust for changing conditions and
assumptions, or as a result of any deterioratiagheémuality of the loan portfolio. The actual ambaf future provisions for loan losses cannot
be determined at this time and may vary from theuwrts of past provisions.

The Company may need to rely on the financial markeprovide needed capital

The Company’s Common Stock is listed and tradethelNASDAQ stock market. Although the Company ap#tes that its capital
resources will be adequate for the foreseeabledutumeet its capital requirements, at times wg degend on the liquidity of the NASDAQ
stock market to raise equity capital. If the mateduld fail to operate, or if conditions in thepital markets are adverse, the Company may b
constrained in raising capital. Should these riskserialize, the ability to further expand its ag@ns through internal growth may be limited.

We are subject to regulation by various Federal &talte entities

The Company is subject to the regulations of theuBges and Exchange Commission (“SEGRe Federal Reserve Board, the Fec
Deposit Insurance Corporation, and the OCC. Newladigns issued by these agencies may adverseagtdaffe Company’s ability to carry on
its business activities. The Company is subjestatious Federal and state laws and certain changbese laws and regulations may adver
affect operations.

The Company is also subject to the accounting raekregulations of the SEC and the Financial Anting Standards Board.
Changes in accounting rules could adversely affecteported financial statements or results ofatpens of First Bancshares and may also
require extraordinary efforts or additional costsnmiplement. Any of these laws or regulations mayrodified or changed from time to time,
and we cannot be assured that such modificationbamges will not adversely affect the Company.

We engage in acquisitions of other businesses fimmto time
On occasion, the Company will engage in acquisitiohother businesses. Acquisitions may resulustamer and employee turnover,

thus increasing the cost of operating the new legsi@es. The acquired companies may also have legtihgencies, beyond those that the
Company is aware of, that could result in unexpkctests.
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We are subject to industry competition which mayehan impact upon its success

The profitability of the Company depends on itdigbto compete successfully. We operate in a higldmpetitive financial services
environment. Certain competitors are larger and hase more resources than we do. We face competitiour regional market areas from
other commercial banks, savings and loan assoe@taedit unions, internet banks, finance comgamueitual funds, insurance companies,
brokerage and investment banking firms, and otin@ntial intermediaries that offer similar servicéeme of the nonbank competitors are not
subject to the same extensive regulations thatrgabe Company or the Bank and may have greatebilidy in competing for business.

Another competitive factor is that the financiahgees market, including banking services, is ugderg rapid changes with frequent
introductions of new technology-driven products aedvices. Our future success may depend, inqaxur ability to use technology
competitively to provide products and services firazide convenience to customers and create additefficiencies in operations.

Future issuances of additional securities couldufem dilution of shareholde’ ownership

The Company may determine from time to time toésadditional securities to raise additional capgapport growth, or to make
acquisitions. Further, the Company may issue stptions or other stock grants to retain and mogivatr employees. Such issuances of
Company securities will dilute the ownership instseof the Company’s shareholders.

Anti-takeover laws and certain agreements and chantevipions may adversely affect share value

Certain provisions of state and federal law andQbmpany’s articles of incorporation may make itrendifficult for someone to
acquire control of the Company. Under federal Ismbject to certain exemptions, a person, entitgroup must notify the federal banking
agencies before acquiring 10% or more of the ondiétg voting stock of a bank holding company, initg the Company’s shares. Banking
agencies review the acquisition to determinewilk result in a change of control. The banking agies have 60 days to act on the notice, and
take into account several factors, including ttemueces of the acquiror and the antitrust effetth@acquisition. There also are Mississippi
statutory provisions and provisions in the Comparayticles of incorporation that may be used tayler block a takeover attempt. As a result
these statutory provisions and provisions in then@any’s articles of incorporation could resultlie tCompany being less attractive to a
potential acquiror.

Securities issued by the Company, including thegamyls Common Stock, are not FDIC insured

Securities issued by the Company, including the @amg’'s Common Stock, are not savings or deposidwats or other obligations of
any bank and are not insured by the FDIC, the Depwirance Fund, or any other governmental agendystrumentality, or any private
insurer, and are subject to investment risk, inicigdhe possible loss of principal.

There can be no assurance that recently enactasldgign will stabilize the U.S. financial system

On October 3, 2008, President Bush signed intattenEESA. The legislation was the result of a psapby the Treasury in response
to the financial crises affecting the banking systnd financial markets and threats to investmank® and other financial institutions.
Pursuant to the EESA, the Treasury was given tlteoaty to, among other things, purchase up to #7i0idn of mortgages, mortgage-backed
securities and certain other financial instrumérumn financial institutions for the purpose of staing and providing liquidity to the U.S.
financial markets. In 2008, the Treasury annourthedCapital Purchase Program, which was followethbyCommunity Development Capital
Initiative in 2010. In 2008, the FDIC adopted adirule with respect to its Temporary Liquidity Gaatee Program pursuant to which the
FDIC guaranteed certain “newly-issued unsecured’ aétbanks and certain holding companies and tdsaporarily guaranteed, on an
unlimited basis, noninterest-bearing bank traneadiiccounts; the unlimited guarantee of nonintdveating transaction accounts has now |
extended through 2012 by the Dodd-Frank Act. Orrlraaty 17, 2009, President Obama signed into lawARBRA. The purposes of the
legislation are to preserve and create jobs, tistab®se most impacted by the recession, to peowidestments to increase economic efficie
in health services, to invest in transportatiorvimmmental protection and other infrastructured mstabilize local and state governments.
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Each of these programs was implemented to heljligeabur economy and financial system. There cam® assurance, however, as
to the actual impact that the EESA and its impletingrregulations, the Capital Purchase ProgramFDC programs, or any other
governmental program will have on the financial keés. The failure of the EESA, the ARRA or the WgBvernment to stabilize the financial
markets and a continuation or worsening of curfieaincial market conditions could materially andradely affect the Company’s business,
financial condition, and results of operations,emscto credit or the trading price of the Compaggisimon stock.

The failure of other financial institutions couldgersely affect the Company

The Company’s ability to engage in routine fundirapnsactions could be adversely affected by thermetind potential failures of
other financial institutions. Financial institut®are interrelated as a result of trading, cleaitognterparty and other relationships. As a resul
defaults by, or even rumors or concerns aboutoomaore financial institutions or the financial @ees industry generally have led to market-
wide liquidity problems and could lead to losseslefaults by the Company or by other institutions.

Concern by customers over deposit insurance magecaulecrease in deposits and changes in the nfiisding sources available to the
Compary

With recent increased concerns about bank failuestomers increasingly are concerned about thenetd which their deposits are
insured by the FDIC. Customers may withdraw depasitin effort to ensure that the amount they loavdeposit with their bank is fully
insured and some may seek deposit products or b#mr savings and investment products that arateodllized. Decreases in deposits and
changes in the mix of funding sources may advers##ct the Company’s funding costs and net income.

Evaluation of investment securities for oi-than-temporary impairment involves subjective dateations and could materially impact the
Company'’s results of operations and financial ctiodi

The evaluation of impairments is a quantitative gudlitative process, which is subject to risks andertainties, and is intended to
determine whether declines in the fair value oestment should be recognized in current periodimgsnThe risks and uncertainties include
changes in general economic conditions, the issfieasicial condition or future recovery prospedtss effects of changes in interest rates or
credit spreads and the expected recovery peridionaiing future cash flows involves incorporatimjarmation received from third-party
sources and making internal assumptions and judggmegarding the future performance of the undegyiollateral and assessing the
probability that an adverse change in future ctslis has occurred. The determination of the amotinther-than-temporary impairments is
based upon the Company’s quarterly evaluation asdssment of known and inherent risks associatdctié respective asset class. Such
evaluations and assessments are revised as cosditiange and new information becomes available.

Additionally, the Company’s management considensde range of factors about the security issueruses its reasonable judgment
in evaluating the cause of the decline in the et fair value of the security and in assessiagtiospects for recovery. Inherent in
management’s evaluation of the security are assangand estimates about the operations of thelissd its future earnings potential.
Impairments to the carrying value of our investnmseturities may need to be taken in the futureclvhiould have a material adverse effect ol
our results of operations and financial condition.

The Company may be required to pay additional iasoe premiums to the FDIC, which could negativeigact earnings

Recent insured institution failures, as well agdetation in banking and economic conditions gathgrhave significantly increased
FDIC loss provisions, resulting in a decline in tesignated reserve ratio to historical lows. TBéd-expects a higher rate of insured
institution failures in the next few years compatedecent years; thus, the reserve ratio may goetio decline. In addition, pursuant to the
Dodd-Frank Act, the limit on FDIC coverage has bpermanently increased to $250,000. These develaisrhave caused the premiums
assessed to the Bank by the FDIC to increase.
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Further, depending upon any future losses thafBI€ insurance fund may suffer, there can be narasse that there will not be
additional premium increases in order to replettighfund. The FDIC may need to set a higher baseschedule or impose special assessr
due to future financial institution failures anddaped failure and loss projections. PotentiallyheigFDIC assessment rates than those current
projected could have an adverse impact on the Coy'peesults of operations.

The Company participates in the U.S. Treasury'subted Asset Relief Program

« The Company received $5,000,000 in funding undeQGhapital Purchase Program (“CPP”) in exchangeffeferred stock and
common stock warrants during 2009, which funding wefinanced into lower-cost Community Developm@apital Initiative
(“CDCI") funding on September 29, 2010. In additiom September 29, 2010, the Company also acc8fzd23,000 in additional
CDCI funding, for a total of $17,123,000 in CDChfling. Participation in this program constrains @@mpany’s ability to raise
dividends and also places certain constraints eswive compensation arrangements. The increaselinfy provides assurance that
the Company can maintain its minimum regulatoryitedpatios in the face of future large real estaiated losses. The Company will
have to repay these funds, possibly by raisingtabpithin the next seven to eight years to keeglividend costs from increasing to
9% per annum

« Both the CPP and the CDCI are part of the TrouBleskt Relief Program (“TARP”). The rules that gavérte TARP include
restrictions on certain compensation to executffieays and a number of others in the Company. Agnatter things, these rules
include a prohibition on golden parachute paymemtsrohibition on providing tax gross-ups, a bodiasv-back provision, and a
prohibition on paying any bonus payment to the Camys most highly compensated employees. It isiplesthat compensation
restrictions imposed on TARP participants couldeai our ability to attract and retain qualified @xtéve officers.

o Our participation in the TARP limits our annual idiend payments to no more than $0.15 per shareafllity to repurchase our
common stock would also be restricted in the etleattwe failed to make our dividend payme

« Since the TARP was part of legislation that hasrépaitation of being passed as a bailout of thenfiral industry, participation in the
program could also create some reputational rikks fleputation of the program could impede the Camfs ability to attract busine
in competition with other financial institutionsathdid not participate. This reputational risk abalso impede the Company’s ability
to attract and retain qualified executive office

The Company recently executed an Acquisition Ageaeio purchase First National Bank of Baldwin Ctyun

On January 31, 2013, the Company entered into guidition Agreement (the “Agreement”) with FirstiBain Bancshares, Inc., an Alabama
corporation (“Baldwin”). The Agreement providesthapon the terms and subject to the condition$osét in the Agreement, the Company
will acquire all of the outstanding shares (the gAisition”) of Baldwin’s wholly-owned subsidiaryist National Bank of Baldwin County, a
national banking association (“FNB”). Subject te tlerms and conditions of the Agreement, whichldessy approved by the Boards of
Directors of the Company and Baldwin, Baldwin irderto file a voluntary bankruptcy petition undera@ter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code in the
United States Bankruptcy Court (“Bankruptcy Coustid to seek Bankruptcy Court approval of the Agrexet and the Acquisition through a
Chapter 11 plan. Upon approval by the Bankruptcyr€and consummation of the Acquisition, all outstiag FNB common stock will be sa
to the Company for cash consideration not to ex&38i00,000 (the “Purchase Price”). Each outstansdirare of FNB common stock will
remain outstanding and be unaffected by the Actipiisi
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The Agreement contains customary representatiothsvamranties from both the Company and Baldwin @each have agreed to customary
covenants, including, among others, covenantsimgléd (1) the conduct of the Company and Baldwinisinesses during the interim period
between the execution of the Agreement and the kdiop of the Acquisition, (2) certificates of appal from the respective officers of the
parties regarding approval by the Boards of Dinexctd the Company, Baldwin and FNB of the Acqusitithe Agreement and the transaction:
contemplated thereby. Baldwin has also agreedesuty) certain exceptions, not to (1) solicit pregls relating to alternative business
combination transactions or (2) enter into anyussns, or enter into any agreement, concerningravide confidential information in
connection with, any proposals for alternative hass combination transactions.

Completion of the Acquisition is subject to certairstomary conditions, including, among others rétkipt of all required regulatory and
bankruptcy court approvals and (2) the absencayfaw or order prohibiting the completion of thedquisition. Each party’s obligation to
complete the Acquisition is also subject to certdditional customary conditions, including (1) jgabto certain exceptions, the accuracy of

the representations and warranties of the othéy,p@) performance in all material respects bydtteer party of its obligations under the
Agreement, and (3) certain elections under appkcpiovisions of the Internal Revenue Service cani® Treasury regulations.

If any of the representation or warranties are dired, or if any of the conditions or covenantsrarefulfilled, the Acquisition could be delay
or not completed, which could have a material aslveffect on our results of operations and findrciadition.
ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES
The Companys main office, which is the holding company headtpra, is located at 6480 U.S. Hwy 98 West in eatiurg
Mississippi. The Company operates 17 full serviaaking and financial services offices and one mbtork facility. Management ensu
that all properties, whether owned or leased, amtained in suitable condition.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

From time to time the Company and/or the Bank maywédmed as defendants in various lawsuits arisingbthe normal course
business. At present, the Company is not awarayfegal proceedings that it anticipates may maligradversely affect its business.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable
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PART Il

ITEM5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT 'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND IS SUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

In response to this Item, the information containagpage 70 of the Company's Annual Report to $iwdders for the year ended
December 31, 2012, is incorporated herein by rafare

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

In response to this Item, the information containagages 7 and 8 of the Company’s Annual Repd@tireholders for the year
ended December 31, 2012, is incorporated herenefeyence.

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

In response to this Item, the information containacages 6 through 27 of the Company's Annual Rép&hareholders for the year
ended December 31, 2012, is incorporated herenefeyence.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK  ET RISK
Not applicable.
ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

In response to this Item, the information containagages 29 through 69 of the Company's AnnuabRép Shareholders for the
year ended December 31, 2012 is incorporated hbyeiaference

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
Not applicable.
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

The Company’s principal executive officer and pifrat financial officer have concluded, based upwzirtevaluation of the
Company’s disclosure controls and procedures &eoémber 31, 2012 that the Company’s disclosur&@isrand procedures were effective.
During the quarter ended December 31, 2012, noggsahave occurred in the Company’s internal comvel financial reporting that have
materially affected or are reasonably likely to emetly affect the Company’s internal control ofieancial reporting.

The First Bancshares, Inc.
Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

Management of the “Company is responsible for distsihg and maintaining effective internal contosler financial reporting.
Internal control over financial reporting is a pess designed to provide reasonable assurance iregy#trd reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for extiepoaposes in accordance with U.S. generally aetkptcounting principles.

Under the supervision and with the participatiomainagement, including the principal executivecgifiand principal financial
officer, the Company conducted an evaluation ofeffiectiveness of internal control over financigorting based on the framework in Intet
Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Comemibf Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway @@@sion. Based on this evaluation,
management of the Company has concluded the Compaimgained effective internal control over finadaieporting, as such term is defined
in Securities Exchange Act of 1934 Rules 12a-15K)of December 31, 2012.
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Internal control over financial reporting cannobyide absolute assurance of achieving financiabntépy objectives because of its
inherent limitations. Internal control over finaakieporting is a process that involves human élilige and compliance and is subject to lapses
in judgment and breakdowns resulting from humaluif@s. Internal control over financial reportingic@so be circumvented by collusion or
improper management override. Because of suchaliinits, there is a risk that material misstatemaratg not be prevented or detected on a
timely basis by internal control over financial oefing. These inherent limitations, however, arewn features of the financial reporting
process. It is possible, therefore, to design théoprocess safeguards to reduce, though not aimithis risk.

This annual report does not include an attestaport of the Company’s independent registeredipalzicounting firm regarding
internal control over financial reporting. The Caang’s registered public accounting firm was notuiegd to issue an attestation report on
internal controls over financial reporting pursutmtemporary rules of the Securities and Exchabgmmission.

/sl M. Ray (Hoppy) Cole, J /sl Dee Dee Lower
CEO and Presidel Executive VP and Chief Financial Offic
March 21, 201 March 21, 201

ITEM OTHER INFORMATION
9B.

Not applicable.
PART III
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICER, AND CORPORATE GOVERNA NCE

In response to this Item, the information containader the captions, “Election of Directors” anddthtional Information Concerning
Directors and Officers” of the Company's Proxy &ta¢nt for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders thidld on May 23, 2013, is incorporated
herein by reference.

Code of Ethics

The Company's Board of Directors has adopted a Gb#t¢hics that applies to the Company's princgadcutive officer, principal
financial officer, principal accounting officer, persons performing similar functions. A copy ast@ode of Ethics can be found at the
Company's internet website_at www.thefirstbank.carhe Company intends to disclose any amendmerits @ode of Ethics, and any waiver
from a provision of the Code of Ethics grantedhe €Company's principal executive officer, princifi@hncial officer, principal accounting
officer, or persons performing similar functions, the Company's internet website within five bussdays following such amendment or
waiver. The information contained on or connectethe Company's internet website is not incorparatereference into this Form 10-K and
should not be considered part of this or any otbport that we file with or furnish to the SEC.

Audit Committet

The information contained under the caption “Conteeis of the Board of Directorsf the Company's Proxy Statement for the Ani
Meeting of Shareholders to be held on May 23, 2@&lB\corporated herein by reference. The Boardioéctors has determined that there is at
least one independent audit committee financiakexg. Douglas Seidenburg, serving on the Audin@ittee, as the terms independent and
audit committee financial expert are used in pertttNASDAQ listing standards and Securities andharge Commission
regulations.
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Corporate Governance

The information contained under the caption “Aduliil Information Concerning Directors and Officeo§'the Company’s Proxy
Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholdetsettield on May 23, 2013, is incorporated hereingbgrence.

As a TARP recipient the Company is required to hav&xcessive Expenditure Policy. Such a policy adopted by the Company’s
Board of Directors on July 23, 2009, and is postedhe Bank’s website at www.thefirstbank.com.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

In response to this Item, the information containeder the caption “Compensation Discussion andysisd of the Company's Proxy
Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholdetsettield on May 23, 2013, is incorporated hereingbgrence.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENTAND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

In response to this Item, the information containeder the caption “Security Ownership of CertaanBficial Owners and
Management” of the Company's Proxy Statement ®rthnual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on ®2y2013, is incorporated herein by
reference.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

In response to this Item, the information containader the caption “Certain Relationships and Reldransactions” of the
Company's Proxy Statement for the Annual Meetin§lodreholders to be held on May 23, 2013, is irm@ed herein by reference.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

In response to this Item, the information containader the caption “Principal Accountant Fees agiviSes” of the Compang’Proxy
Statement for the Annual meeting of Shareholdelsetbeld on May 23, 2013, is incorporated hereindbgrence.

PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
The following exhibits are furnished (or incorpaatby reference):

Exhibit Numbe Description

3.1 Restated Avrticles of Incorporation (incorpgetaby reference to Exhibit 3.2 filed with Form 8aith the Commission on
March 21, 2013)

3.2 Bylaws (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2te Company's Registration Statement N-94288 on Form -1).
3.3 Articles of Amendment Containing CertificateDesignations for the Fixed Rate Cumulative PerglePreferred Stock,
Series CD (incorporated by reference to ExhibitfBetl with Form K with the Commission on October 4, 201
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4.1

4.2

10.1

10.2

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

13

21

23

31

32

99.1

99.2

Provisions in the Company's Articles of Inmmation and Bylaws defining the rights of holdefshe Company's Common
Stock (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1ht® Company's Registration Statement N-94288 on Form -1).

Form of Certificate of Common Stock (incorqted by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Companggifration Statement
No. 3:-94288 on Form -1).

Purchase Letter Agreement dated Februé29@ between The First Bancshares and the UnitgdsSDepartment of the
Treasury, including the Standard Terms, with respethe issuance of the CPP Preferred Stock. jpurated by reference
to Exhibit 10.1 filed with Form -K with the Commission on October 4, 201

Exchange Letter Agreement dated Septemhe&t@® between The First Bancshares and the USiites Department of
the Treasury, including the Standard Terms, witipeet to the exchange of the CDCI Preferred Si@ogorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 filed with Forn-K with the Commission on October 4, 201

Employment Agreement dated May 31, 201yéen The First, A National Banking Association &hdRay Cole, Jr.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 of theany's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended Decamdli, 2011, filed
on March 29, 2012, File No. 0-22507).

First Bancshares, Inc. 1997 Stock Optiom Bkof March 18, 1997 (incorporated by referendexhibit 10.7 of the
Company's Form -KSB for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1996, Wo. 3:-94288).

Agreement to Repurchase Stock by and among TheBargshares, Inc., Nick Welch and David Johnsioofporated b
reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the Company's RedistneStatement No. 3.-102908 on Form-2).

The First Bancshares, Inc. 2007 Stock linelan (incorporated by reference to Exhib® th the Company’s
Registration Statement No. 171996 on For-8)

The Company's 2012 Annual Rep

Subsidiaries of the Compa

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourking
Rule 1314(a)/15+14(a) Certification:

Section 1350 Certificatior

EESA Certification of CEC

EESA Certification of CF(C
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SIGNATURES

In accordance with Section 13 or 15(d) of the ExgfegeAct, the registrant caused this report to geesi on its behalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

THE FIRST BANCSHARES, INC

Date: March 21, 2013 By: /s/ M. Ray (Hoppy) Cole, J

M. Ray (Hoppy) Cole, Ji
Chief Executive Officer and President (Printipaecutive
Officer)

Date: March 21, 2013 By: /s/ Dee Dee Lower
Dee Dee Lowen
Executive VP and Chief Financial Offic
(Principal Financial and Principal Accounting O€ig

In accordance with the Exchange Act, this reposttheen signed below by the following persons orabieth the registrant and in the
capacities and on the dates indicated.

SIGNATURES CAPACITIES DATE
/sl E. Ricky Gibsot Director and Chairman of the Board March 2112
/s/ Charles R. Lightse Director March 21, 2013
/s/ J. Douglas Seidenbur Director March 21, 2013
/s! Andy Stetelman Director March 21, 2013
/s/ David W. Bomboy Director March 21, 2013
/s/ Ted E. Parker Director March 21, 2013
/s/ Michael W. Chancellc Director March 21, 2013
/sl Fred McMurry Director March 21, 2013
/sl Gregory Mitchel Director March 21, 2013
/s/ M. Ray (Hoppy) Cole, J CEO, President and Director March 21, 2013

(Principal Executive Officer)
/s/ Dee Dee Lower Executive VP & Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Financial and

Accounting Officer) March 21, 201!
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EXHIBIT 13

THE FIRST BANCSHARES, INC.

2012 ANNUAL REPORT

SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
(Dollars In Thousands, Except Per Share Data)

December 31

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Earnings:
Net interest incom $ 22,190 $ 19,07¢ $ 16,33¢ 14,39( 16,10¢
Provision for loar
losse 1,22¢ 1,46¢ 982 1,20¢ 2,20¢
Noninterest incom 6,32¢ 4,59¢ 3,89¢ 4,397 4,631
Noninterest expen: 22,16¢ 18,87( 15,84: 15,328 15,99¢
Net income 4,04¢ 2,871 2,54¢ 1,74: 1,84¢
Net income applicabl
to commor
stockholder 3,62¢ 2,52¢ 2,23¢ 1,461 1,84¢
Per common share da
Basic net income pr
share $ 1.17  $ 82 % .74 A4¢ .62
Diluted net income pe
share 1.1¢ .82 74 A4¢ .61
Per share dat
Basic net incom
per shar $ 131 8 94 3 .84 .58 .62
Diluted net incom
per shar 1.2¢ .93 .84 .58 .61
Selected Year En
Balances
Total asset $ 721,38 % 681,41 $ 503,04 477,55 474,82:
Securities 226,30: 221,17¢ 107,13¢ 114,61¢ 102,30:
Loans, net c
allowance 408,97( 383,41¢ 327,95¢ 314,03 318,30
Deposits 596,62 573,39 396,47¢ 383,75¢ 378,07
Stockholder' equity 65,88t 60,42¢ 57,09¢ 43,617 36,56¢




MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Purpose

The purpose of management's discussion and an&étsisnake the reader aware of the significantmaments, events, and change
the consolidated financial condition and resultopérations of the Company and The First duringydr ended December 31, 2012 w
compared to the years 2011 and 2010. The Compemysolidated financial statements and related raftesld also be considered.

Critical Accounting Policies

In the preparation of the Company's consolidatedrftial statements, certain significant amountsb@ged upon judgment &
estimates. The most critical of these is the actiogrpolicy related to the allowance for loan Iass€he allowance is based in large mee
upon management's evaluation of borrowers' alslitee make loan payments, local and national econaonditions, and other subject
factors. If any of these factors were to determrabanagement would update its estimates and justgmenich may require additional I
provisions.

Companies are required to perform periodic reviefviadividual securities in their investment potife to determine whether decl
in the value of a security is other than temporaryeview of other-thatemporary impairment requires companies to mak&icejudgment
regarding the materiality of the decline, its effen the financial statements and the probabiégtent and timing of a valuation recovery
the companys intent and ability to hold the security. Pursumnthese requirements, Management assesses wvalu#tlines to determine 1
extent to which such changes are attributablerddmental factors specific to the issuer, suclinanial condition, business prospects or ¢
factors or market-related factors, such as inteeget. Declines in the fair value of securitielbbetheir cost that are deemed to be other-tha
temporary are recorded in earnings as realize@$oss

Goodwill is assessed for impairment both annuatlg ahen events or circumstances occur that makeoie likely than not th
impairment has occurred. As part of its testing, @ompany first assesses qualitative factors teraéte whether it is more likely than not 1
the fair value of a reporting unit is less thandésrying amount. If the Company determines the alue of a reporting unit is less thar
carrying amount using these qualitative factorg, @ompany then compares the fair value of goodwiih its carrying amount, and th
measures impaired loss by comparing the impliedvigiue of goodwill with the carrying amount of tlgodwill. No impairment was indicat
when the annual test was performed in 2012.




Overview

The First Bancshares, Inc. (the Company) was iraratpd on June 23, 1995, and serves as a bankbaldmpany for The First,
National Banking Associatior“The First”), located in Hattiesburg, Mississippi. The First beg@erations on August 5, 1996, from its n
office in the Oak Grove community, which is on thestern side of Hattiesburg. The First currentlgrapes its main office and two branche
Hattiesburg, one in Laurel, one in Purvis, oneitafune, one in Pascagoula, one in Bay St. Louis,in Wiggins and four in Gulfport, one
Biloxi, one in Long Beach, and one in DiamondheBlississippi, as well as one branch in Bogalusa,itiana. See Note C of Notes
Consolidated Financial Statements for informatiegarding branch acquisitions. The Company and Tist éhgage in a general commer
and retail banking business characterized by patg®d service and local decisiomking, emphasizing the banking needs of sm:
medium-sized businesses, professional concernsndividuals.

The Companys primary source of revenue is interest incomefaasd, which it earns by lending and investing tirdf which are he
on deposit. Because loans generally earn highes wdtinterest than investments, the Company see&siploy as much of its deposit fund:
possible in the form of loans to individuals, besiges, and other organizations. To ensure suffiigridity, the Company also maintain
portion of its deposits in cash, government seiesitdeposits with other financial institutionsdasvernight loans of excess reserves (knov
“Federal Funds Soldfo correspondent banks. The revenue which the Coyngarns (prior to deducting its overhead experisesjsentially
function of the amount of the Company’s loans aegasits, as well as the profit margin (“interestesil”) and fee income which can
generated on these amounts.

The Company increased from approximately $681.4ianilin total assets, and $573.4 million in deposit December 31, 2011
approximately $721.4 million in total assets, ark®&6 million in deposits at December 31, 2012.raet of allowance for loan los
increased from $383.4 million at December 31, 261 hpproximately $409.0 at December 31, 2012. Then@any increased from $6!
million in shareholderséquity at December 31, 2011 to approximately $@8illon at December 31, 2012. The First reportetlineome o
$4,597,000 and $3,496,000 for the years ended Dmee®l, 2012, and 2011, respectively. For the yeaded December 31, 2012 and 2
the Company reported consolidated net income agdgiicto common stockholders of $3,624,000 and $208®, respectively. The followil
discussion should be read in conjunction with tBelécted Consolidated Financial Dateid the Company's Consolidated Financial Stater
and the Notes thereto and the other financial ihataded elsewhere.




SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
(Dollars In Thousands, Except Per Share Data)

Earnings;
Net interest incom
Provision for loan losse

Noninterest incom

Noninterest expens

Net income

Net income applicable to common stockholc

Per common share da
Basic net income per she

Diluted net income per sha
Per share dati
Basic net income per she
Diluted net income per sha

Selected Year End Balanct

Total asset

Securities

Loans, net of allowanc
Deposits

Stockholder equity

The following is a summary of the results of opierat by The First for the years ended Decembe2@12 and 2011.

Interest incom:
Interest expense
Net interest incom
Provision for loan losses
Net interest income after provision for loan los
Other income
Other expens

Income tax expense

Net income

December 31

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
$ 22,19 $ 19,07¢ $ 16,33¢ $ 14,39( 16,10¢
1,22¢ 1,46¢ 98¢ 1,20¢ 2,20¢
6,32¢ 4,59¢ 3,89¢ 4,39 4,63
22,16¢ 18,87( 15,84 15,32¢ 15,99¢
4,04¢ 2,871 2,54¢ 1,74: 1,84¢
3,62¢ 2,52¢ 2,23: 1,461 1,84¢
$ 117 $ 83 $ 74 % A48 .62
1.1¢ .82 .74 A4S .61
$ 131 $ 94 $ 84 % .58 .62
1.2¢ .93 .84 .58 .61
$ 72138 $ 681,411 $ 503,04 $ 477,55 474,82:
226,30: 221,17¢ 107,13t 114,61¢ 102,30:
408,97( 383,41t 327,95t 314,03 318,30(
596,62 573,39 396,47 383,75¢ 378,07¢
65,88¢ 60,42¢ 57,09¢ 43,61, 36,56¢

Results of Operations

2012 2011

(In thousands
$ 26,32t $ 24,46¢
3,93( 5,20¢
22,39t 19,26
1,22¢ 1,46¢
21,167 17,79:
6,324 4,59¢
21,647 17,73¢
1,247 1,15¢
$ 4,591 $ 3,49¢




The following reconciles the above table to the ants reflected in the consolidated financial staets of the Company at December 31,
2012 and 2011:

2012 2011
(In thousands

Net interest income
Net interest income of The Fir $ 22,39 $ 19,26
Intercompany eliminations (201) (182)

$ 22,19 $ 19,07¢

Net income applicable to common stockhold
Net income of The Firs $ 4597 $ 3,49¢
Net loss of the Company, excluding intercompanyants (979) (967)

$ 3,62¢ $ 2,52¢

Consolidated Net Income

The Company reported consolidated net income adgkicto common stockholders of approximately $3,824 for the year end
December 31, 2012, compared to a consolidatedhnetrie of $2,529,000 for the year ended Decembe2@®lll. The increase in income \
attributable to an increase in net interest incofr®3.1 million or 16.3%, and an increase of $1.30.5% in other income which were offse
an increase in other expenses of $3.3 million ob%7

Consolidated Net Interest Income

The largest component of net income for the Compamet interest income, which is the differencéseen the income earned
assets and interest paid on deposits and borrowisgd to support such assets. Net interest incendetermined by the rates earned or
Company’s interest-earning assets and the ratelsopaits interest-bearing liabilities, the relatamounts of interest-earning assets and intere
bearing liabilities, and the degree of mismatch #rematurity and repricing characteristics ofiiterest-earning assets and intemgesaring
liabilities.

Consolidated net interest income was approxim&i2B;,194,000 for the year ended December 31, 2Gl2pmpared to $19,079,(
for the year ended December 31, 2011. This increasethe direct result of increased loan volumekdetreased rates paid on intetmsaring
liabilities during 2012 as compared to 2011. Averagerestearing liabilities for the year 2012 were $534,998 compared to $445,893,(
for the year 2011. At December 31, 2012, the rnterést spread, the difference between the yieldamning assets and the rates paid on intere
bearing liabilities, was 3.29% compared to 3.71%0atember 31, 2011. The net interest margin (wlgchet interest income divided
average earning assets) was 3.42% for the year @hpared to 3.84% for the year 2011. Rates paidvamnage interediearing liabilitie:
decreased from 1.21% for the year 2011 to .77%Heryear 2012. Interest earned on assets andsh@rerued on liabilities is significan
influenced by market factors, specifically interesmies as set by Federal agencies. Average loangrised 59.8% of average earning asse!
the year 2012 compared to 71.3% for the year 2011.




Average Balances, Income and Expenses, and Ra&tes following tables depict, for the periods iratied, certain information rela
to the average balance sheet and average yieldssats and average costs of liabilities. Such yiatd derived by dividing income or expe
by the average balance of the corresponding assé#bilities. Average balances have been derivech daily averages.

Average Balances, Income and Expenses, and Rates

Years Ended December @

2012 2011 2010
Average Income/ Yield/ Average Income/ Yield/ Average Income/ Yield/
Balance Expense: Rate Balance Expense: Rate Balance Expense: Rate
(Dollars in thousands

Assets

Earning Asset
Loans (1)(2, $ 388,01i $ 21410 552% $ 354,29! $ 20,97: 5.92% $ 328,95( $ 20,28¢ 6.17%
Securities 235,83: 4,78 2.03%  134,81! 3,36( 24%  106,89: 3,121 2.92%
Federal funds sold (¢ 19,67( 51 .26% 5,48¢ 72 1.31% 16,47 21 13%
Other 4,84¢ 83 1.71% 2,53( 72 2.85% 85¢ 22 2.5€%
Total earning asse 648,36( 26,33: 4.06%  497,12¢ 24,47¢ 4.92%  453,17: 23,450 5.18%
Cash and due from ban 16,69¢ 47,63: 16,68¢
Premises and equipme 22,63 17,40: 14,49(
Other asset 32,331 21,61 18,46¢
Allowance for loan losses (4,457 (4,340 (4,519

Total assets $ 715,57. $ 579,43. $ 498,30

Liabilities
Interest-bearing liabilities $ 534,990 $ 4,137 T1% $ 445890 $ 5,39¢ 1.21% $ 395,95t $ 7,11¢ 1.8(%
Demand deposits (: 107,39. 65,83( 49,20:
Other liabilities 10,03¢ 18,757 9,43¢
Shareholders’ equity 63,14¢ 48,95 43,71:
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 715,57: $ 579,43 $ 498,30
Net interest spree 3.2% 3.71% 3.3&%
Net yield on intere-earning asse $ 22,19¢ 3.42% $ 19,07¢ 3.8% $ 16,33¢ 3.6(%

(1) All loans and deposits were made to borrowethié United States. Includes nonaccrual loanSd&80, $5,125, and $4,212, respectively,
during the periods presented. Loans include helddte loans

(2) Includes loan fees of $430, $418, and $400 respeyti

(3) Includes EB/MNBB and Federal Reser— New Orleans




Analysis of Changes in Net Interest Incomide following table presents the consolidatedad@mount of changes in interest ince
and interest expense attributable to changes imnw®land to changes in rate. The combined effebbth volume and rate which cannot
separately identified has been allocated propaatiy to the change due to volume and due to rate.

Analysis of Changes in Consolidated Net Interest tome

Year Ended December 31 Year Ended December 31
2012 versus 201 2011 versus 201
Increase (decrease) due to Increase (decrease) due to
Volume Rate Net Volume Rate Net

(Dollars in thousands)
Earning Assets

Loans $ 199t $ (1,55) $ 441 $ 156¢ $ (882 % 682
Securities 2,51¢ (1,097 1,42t 81t (57¢€) 23¢
Federal funds sol 18¢ (207) (27) (14 65 51
Other short-term investments 66 (55) 11 43 7 5C
Total interest income 4,767 (2,909 1,85¢ 2,40¢ (1,386 1,022
Interest-Bearing Liabilities
Interes-bearing transaction accout 361 (78%) (424 39t (1,199 (79%)
Money market accoun 11€ (18%) (69) 152 (20€) (54)
Savings deposil 23 9 14 18 (32 (14
Time deposit: 3€ (689 (647) (290 (487) (677)
Borrowed funds 542 (675) (133) (58 (122) (180
Total interest expense 1,07¢ (2,33) (1,259 317 (2,040 (1,729
Net interest income $ 368 $ (570 $ 311t $ 2091 $ 654 $ 2,74f

Interest Sensitivity The Company monitors and manages the pricingnaattmirity of its assets and liabilities in orderdiminish the
potential adverse impact that changes in intesgssrcould have on its net interest income. A nooinigy technique employed by the Comp
is the measurement of the Company's interest setysiigap,” which is the positive or negative duolldifference between assets and liabil
that are subject to interest rate repricing withigiven period of time. The Company also perforssetliability modeling to assess the im,
varying interest rates and balance sheet mix assomspwill have on net interest income. Interes$é rgensitivity can be managed by repri
assets or liabilities, selling securities availatuesale, replacing an asset or liability at maturity adjusting the interest rate during the lifi
an asset or liability. Managing the amount of asseid liabilities repricing in the same time intdriaelps to hedge the risk and minimize
impact on net interest income of rising or fallimgerest rates. The Company evaluates interesttisétysrisk and then formulates guidelir
regarding asset generation and repricing, fundmgces and pricing, and dffalance sheet commitments in order to decreasecgtteat
sensitivity risk.




The following tables illustrate the Company's cdigsded interest rate sensitivity and consolidatesmulative gap position
December 31, 2010, 2011, and 2012.

December 31, 201i

After Three
Within Through Within Greater Than
Three Twelve One One Year or
Months Months Year Nonsensitive Total
(Dollars in thousands)
Assets
Earning Assets
Loans $ 6243¢ $ 62,098 $ 12453 $ 208,03¢ $ 332,57:
Securities (2 12,01 7,59: 19,60: 87,53: 107,13¢
Funds sold and other 9,08: 12,44 21,52¢ - 21,52¢
Total earning assets 83,53! 82,13( 165,66. 295,57. 461,23!
Liabilities

Interes-bearing liabilities:
Interes-bearing deposit:

NOW account(1) $ - $ 14955. $ 14955, $ - $ 149,55:
Money market accoun 18,85 - 18,85 - 18,85
Savings deposits (: - 14,04: 14,04: - 14,04:
Time deposits 34,43" 72,88¢ 107,32. 58,39¢ 165,72;
Total interes-bearing deposit 53,29( 236,48( 289,77( 58,39¢ 348,16¢
Borrowed funds (3) - 3,07¢ 3,07t 27,03: 30,10°
Total interest-bearing liabilities 53,29( 239,55! 292,84! 85,43( 378,27!
Interest-sensitivity gap per period $ 30,240 $ (157,42) $ (127,18) $ 210,14. $ 82,96(
Cumulative gap at December 31, 2010 $ 3024: $ (127,18) $ (127,18) $ 82,96( $ 82,96(
Ratio of cumulative gap to total earning assets at
December 31, 201 6.€% (27.% (27.0% 18.(%
December 31, 201
After Three
Within Through Within Greater Than
Three Twelve One One Year or
Months Months Year Nonsensitive Total
(Dollars in thousands)
Assets
Earning Assets
Loans $ 72,117 $ 74,83. $ 146,94¢ $ 240,98( $ 387,92¢
Securities (2 9,98i 12,94¢ 22,93: 198,24. 221,17t
Funds sold and other 241 12,78¢ 13,02¢ - 13,02¢
Total earning assets 82,34¢ 100,56! 182,91( 439,22 622,13:
Liabilities
Interes-bearing liabilities:
Interes-bearing deposit:
NOW accounts (1 $ - $ 200,21 $ 20021 $ - $ 200,21
Money market accoun 43,29¢ - 43,29¢ - 43,29¢
Savings deposits (: - 45,64+ 45,64+ - 45,64+
Time deposits 39,41 87,25¢ 126,67( 50,44* 177,11!
Total interes-bearing deposit 82,70° 333,11: 415,82( 50,44¢ 466,26!
Borrowed funds (3) 231 12,99( 13,22: 13,81: 27,03:
Total interest-bearing liabilities 82,93¢ 346,10 429,04: 64,25¢ 493,29
Interest-sensitivity gap per period $ (599 $ (245,53) $(246,13) $ 374,96¢ $ 128,83
Cumulative gap at December 31, 2011 $ (599 $ (246,13) $(246,13) $ 128,83 $ 128,83
Ratio of cumulative gap to total earning assets
at December 31, 201 (.09% (39.60% (39.6% 20.7%




December 31, 201

After Three
Within Through Within Greater Than
Three Twelve One One Year or
Months Months Year Nonsensitive Total
(Dollars in thousands)
Assets
Earning Assets
Loans $ 7267C $ 78,16¢ $ 150,83t $ 262,85¢ $ 413,69
Securities (2 11,18t 15,50« 26,68¢ 199,61: 226,30:
Funds sold and other 1,06¢ 9,58¢ 10,65: - 10,65:
Total earning assets 84,91¢ $ 103,26( $ 188,17¢ $ 462,47, $ 650,65(
Liabilities
Interes-bearing liabilities:
Interes-bearing deposit:
NOW accounts (1 $ - $ 230,58t $ 230,58 $ - $ 230,58
Money market accoun 47,32¢ - 47,32¢ - 47,32¢
Savings deposits (: - 48,15: 48,15: - 48,15:
Time deposits 32,62« 70,88: 103,50° 57,42¢ 160,93
Total interes-bearing deposit 79,94¢ 349,62: 429,57: 57,42¢ 487,00:
Borrowed funds (3) 20,00( 1,771 21,77 15,00( 36,77
Total interest-bearing liabilities 99,94¢ 351,39! 451,34 72,42¢ 523,77.
Interest-sensitivity gap per period $ (15030 $ (248,13) $(263,16) $  390,04: $ 126,87
Cumulative gap at December 31, 2012 $ (15,030 $ (263,16) $(263,16) $ 126,87 $ 126,87
Ratio of cumulative gap to total earning assets
at December 31, 201 (2.9% (40.9% (40.H)% 19.5%

(1) NOW and savings accounts are subject to immedidtelwwal and repricing. These deposits do not tendmediately react to chang
in interest rates and the Company believes thesesits are a stable and predictable funding sodicetefore, these deposits are inclt
in the repricing period that management believestrolmsely matches the periods in which they &a&llito reprice rather than the pet
in which the funds can be withdrawn contractue

(2) Securities include mortgage backed and other instat paying obligations based upon stated matdatgs

(3) Does not include subordinated debentures of $10080C

The Company generally would benefit from increasimarket rates of interest when it has an assasitive gap and generally fr
decreasing market rates of interest when it isiliigbsensitive. The Company currently is liabilisensitive within the ongear time frame
However, the Company's gap analysis is not a mecicator of its interest sensitivity positiorhé analysis presents only a static view o
timing of maturities and repricing opportunitiesitiout taking into consideration that changes iteriest rates do not affect all assets
liabilities equally. For example, rates paid orubstantial portion of core deposits may changeraotially within a relatively short time fran
but those rates are viewed by management as sigmily less interest-sensitive than market-bastes iuch as those paid on nmre deposit
Accordingly, management believes a liability samsiposition within one year would not be as intiwa of the Companyg true intere:
sensitivity as it would be for an organization whitepends to a greater extent on purchased furgigpfmort earning assets. Net interest inc
is also affected by other significant factors, urdthg changes in the volume and mix of earningtass®d interest-bearing liabilities.

Provision and Allowance for Loan Losses

The Company has developed policies and procedwesvaluating the overall quality of its credit golio and the timel
identification of potential problem loans. Managem® judgment as to the adequacy of the allowancassd upon a number of assumpt
about future events which it believes to be reaslendut which may not prove to be accurate. Tthese can be no assurance that chafége-
in future periods will not exceed the allowancel@@n losses or that additional increases in tha loss allowance will not be required.




The Companys allowance consists of two parts. The first partiétermined in accordance with authoritative guigaissued by ti
FASB regarding the allowanc&he Companys determination of this part of the allowance isdshupon quantitative and qualitative factor
loan loss history based upon the prior three yisautilized in determining the appropriate allowantlistorical loss factors are determinec
criticized and uncriticized loans by loan type. 3&ehistorical loss factors are applied to the Idaydoan type to determine an indice
allowance. The loss factors of peer groups areidered in the determination of the allowance arelweed to assist in the establishment
long-term loss history for areas in which this datariavailable and incorporated into the qualitativetdes to be considered. The historical
factors may also be modified based upon other @iak factors including but not limited to locaidanational economic conditions, trend
delinquent loans, changes in lending policies amdeawriting standards, concentrations, and managesknowledge of the loan portfol
These factors require judgment upon the part ofagament and are based upon state and national rm@oneports received from varic
institutions and agencies including the FederakeResBank, United States Bureau of Economic AnalyBureau of Labor Statistics, meeti
with the Company’s loan officers and loan commitesnd data and guidance received or obtained thhenrCompany’s regulatory authorities.

The second part of the allowance is determineccaom@ance with guidance issued by the FASB reggritinpaired loanslmpairec
loans are determined based upon a review by irftkra@a review and senior loan officers. Impairedris are loans for which the Bank does
expect to receive contractual interest and/or addy the due date. A specific allowance is assijto each loan determined to be imps
based upon the value of the loan’s underlying tedéd. Appraisals are used by management to deterthe value of the collateral.

The sum of the two parts constitutes manageradmd’st estimate of an appropriate allowance fon loases. When the estima
allowance is determined, it is presented to the @owy’'s audit committee for review and approval ajuarterly basis.

Our allowance for loan losses model is focused sialbdishing a loss history within the Bank and irgdyon specific impairment
determine credits that the Bank feels the ultinmafgayment source will be liquidation of the subjecliateral. Our model takes into accc
many other factors as well such as local and natieconomic factors, portfolio trends, non perfarghasset, charge off, and delinquency tr
as well as underwriting standards and the expegi@idranch management and lending staff. Thesel$ are measured in the follow
ways:

Local Trends: ( Updated quarterly usually the mdotlowing quarter end )

Local Unemployment Rat

Insurance issues (Windpool are
Bankruptcy Rates (increasing/declinir
Local Commercial R/E Vacancy rat
Established market/new mart
Hurricane threa
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National Trends: Updated quarterly usually the month following qeaend )
Gross Domestic Product (GD
Home Sale:
Consumer Price Index (CF
Interest Rate Environment (increasing/steady/dexgir
Single Family construction stal
Inflation Rate
Retail Sale:

Portfolio Trends: ( Updated monthly as the ALLLceculated )
Second Mortgage
Single Pay Loan
Non-Recourse Loan
Limited Guaranty Loan
Loan to Value Exceptior
Secured by Nc-Owner Occupied proper
Raw Land Loan
Unsecured Loan

Measurable Bank Trends: ( Updated quarterly)
Delinquency Trend
Non-Accrual Trend:
Net Charge Off:
Loan Volume Trend
Non-Performing Asset
Underwriting Standards/Lending Polici
Experience/Depth of Bank Lending Managerr

Our model takes into account many local and natiec@nomic factors as well as portfolio trends.céloand national economic trei
are measured quarterly, typically in the monthdwihg quarter end to facilitate the release of eooic data from the reporting agenci
These factors are allocated a basis point valugimgrfrom 25 to +25 basis points and directly affect the ami@aserved for each branch.
of December 31, 2012, most economic indicators lmtal and national pointed to a weak economy thast factors were assigned a pos
basis point value. This increased the amount ofaflevance that was indicated by historical losstdes. Portfolio trends are meast
monthly on a per branch basis to determine thegméage of loans in each branch that the Bank hasrdimed as having more risk. Portfc
risk is defined as areas in the Bamkban portfolio in which there is additional riskvolved in the loan type or some other area inclvtthe
Bank has identified as having more risk. Each &¢scked on bank-wide as well as on a branite basis. Branches are analyzed bas:
the gross percentage of concentrations of the Bar&whole. Portfolio risk is determined by anelgzoncentrations in the areas outline
determining the percentage of each bramdbtal portfolio that is made up of the particutzain type and then comparing that concentrati
the Bank as a whole. Branches with concentrationthése areas are graded on a scale fr@&h basis points to + 25 basis points. Se
mortgages, single pay loans, loans secured byaad; unsecured loans and loans secured by non @meoepied property are considered ti
of higher risk than those of a secured and amagibiasis. LTV exceptions place the Bank at risthinevent of repossession or foreclosure.
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Measurable Bank Wide Trends are measured on aeglyabasis as well. This consists of data tracked dank wide basis in whi
we have identified areas of additional risk or tieeed for additional allocation to the allowance lfan loss. Data is updated quarterly,
area is assigned a basis point value frabasis points to + 25 basis points based on lamlv area measures to the previous time period
charge offs, loan volume trends and non perfornaisgets have all trended upwards therefore incrggdéisenneed for increased funds rese
for loan losses. Underwriting standards/ lenditandards as well as experience/ depth of bank dgndianagement is evaluated on a
branch level.

Loans are reviewed for impairment when, in the Bardpinion, the ultimate source of repayment willthe liquidation of collater
through foreclosure or repossession. Once idedtifipdated collateral values are attained on themes and impairment worksheets
prepared to determine if impairment exists. Thisthod takes into account any expected expensetedela the disposal of the subj
collateral. Specific allowances for these loares @one on a per loan basis as each loan is revi@vdthpairment. Updated appraisals
ordered on real estate loans and updated valuaiensrdered on non real estate loans to deteracitoal market value.

At December 31, 2012, the consolidated allowancddan losses amounted to approximately $4,727,000,.14% of outstandii
loans or 1.20% of loans excluding those bookedaiatvilue due to business combination. At Decerdder011, the allowance for loan los
amounted to approximately $4,511,000, which waé%.bf outstanding loans. The Companptovision for loan losses was $1,228,000 fo
year ended December 31, 2012, compared to $1,46806he year ended December 31, 2(

A loan is considered impaired when, based on ctiirdormation and events, it is probable that tlem@any will be unable to colle
the scheduled payments of principal or interestrwhee according to the contractual terms of then lagreement. Factors considerec
management in determining impairment include paynstatus, collateral value, and the probabilitycoflecting scheduled principal a
interest payments when due. Loans that experiargignificant payment delays and payment shortfgiserally are not classified as impai
Management determines the significance of paymelatyd and payment shortfalls on a caseése basis, taking into consideration all o
circumstances surrounding the loan and the borroweluding the length of the delay, the reasonsdlie delay, the borrowes’prior paymet
record, and the amount of the shortfall in relatiorthe principal and interest owed. Impairmenimisasured on a loan by loan basis. Imp:
loans not deemed collateral dependent are analeearding to the ultimate repayment source, whetthetris cash flow from the borrow
guarantor or some other source of repayment. Iregdoans are deemed collateral dependent if irBigk’s opinion the ultimate source
repayment will be generated from the liquidatiorcollateral.
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The Company discontinues accrual of interest ondaghen management believes, after consideringoeciocrand business conditic
and collection efforts, that a borrowgffinancial condition is such that the collectidnirerest is doubtful. Generally, the Company wikce
delinquent loan in nonaccrual status when the lneromes 90 days or more past due. At the time mioalaced in nonaccrual status,
interest which has been accrued on the loan buairemunpaid is reversed and deducted from earrasga reduction of reported intel
income. No additional interest is accrued on tta Ibalance until the collection of both principatianterest becomes reasonably certain.

The following tables illustrate the Company’s padisé and nonaccrual loans at December 31, 2012 @i 2

December 31, 201.
(In thousands)
Past Due 30 Past Due 90 days or
89 Days more and still accruir Non-Accrua

Real Estat-constructior $ 99C $ -$ 1,667
Real Estat-mortgage 3,04¢ 147 1,17¢
Real Estat-non farm nonresidenti 38¢ - 60¢
Commercial 88 - 13t
Consumer 132 11 5

Total $ 4,64, $ 15¢ $ 3,58¢

December 31, 201,
(In thousands)
Past Due 30" Past Due 90 days or
89 Days more and still accruir Non-Accrua

Real Estat-constructior $ 70 $ 22 % 94t
Real Estat-mortgage 2,18¢ 311 984
Real Estat-non farm nonresidenti; 1,662 144 2,871
Commercial 13¢€ 19 24¢
Consumer 214 - 73

Total $ 427 % 49¢ $ 5,12¢

Total nonaccrual loans at December 31, 2012 amdunt&3.6 million which was a decrease of $1.5imillfrom the December ¢
2011 amount of $5.1 million. Management believesséhrelationships were adequately reserved at Desredd, 2012 Restructured loans r
reported as past due or nonaccrual at Decemb&032, amounted to $.7 million.

A potential problem loan is one in which managenteag serious doubts about the borrowéduture performance under the term
the loan contract. These loans are current asiteipal and interest and, accordingly, they areinoluded in nonperforming asset catego
The level of potential problem loans is one faatsed in the determination of the adequacy of tlmvahce for loan losses. At December
2012 and December 31, 2011, The First had potemiidllem loans of $19,164,000 and $25,687,000ectsmely. This represents a decreas
$6,523,000.
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Average loans outstanding
Loans outstanding at year end

Total nonaccrual loans

Beginning balance of allowan:
Loans charged-off

Total loans charged-off

Total recoveries

Net loans charge-off
Acquisition

Provision for loan losses
Balance at year end

Net charg-offs to average loar

Allowance as percent of total loa

Consolidated Allowance For Loan Losses

Years Ended December :

Nonperforming loans as a percentage of total I¢

Allowance as a multiple of nonaccrual loz

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
$ 38801: $ 35429 $ 32895 $ 32049! $ 349,57
$ 41369 $ 387,92 $ 33257. $ 318,79 $ 323,08
$ 358 $ 5128 $ 421 $ 4361 $ 3,34
$ 4511 $ 4617 $ 476 $ 478 $ 4,221

(1,190 (1,98 (1,370 (1,396) (1,789

(1,190 (1,98 (1,370 (1,390 (1,789

17¢ 41z 24 167 14:
(1,017) (1,579 (1,129) (1,229) (1,64)
1,22¢ 1,46¢ 982 1,20¢ 2,20¢
$ 4727 $ 4511 $ 4617 $  476: $ 478t
26% 44% 34% 35% AT%
1.1% 1.1€% 1.3%% 1.4%% 1.48%
87% 1.32% 1.27% 1.37% 1.05%
1.3X 86X 1.1X 1.1X 1.4X

At December 31, 2012, the components of the alleedar loan losses consisted of the following:

Allowance
(In thousand:
Allocated:
Impaired loan: $ 93¢
Graded loans 3,791

Graded loans are those loans or pools of loangrasia grade by internal loan review.
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The following table represents the activity of tiiewance for loan losses for the years 2012 arid 20
Analysis of the Allowance for Loan Losses

Years Ended December 3:
2012 2011
(Dollars in thousands)

Balance at beginning of ye $ 4511 $ 4,617
Chargeoffs:
Real Estat-constructior (102 (330
Real Estat-mortgage (559 (799)
Real Estat-nonfarm nonresidentii (160 (440
Commercial (16€) (321
Consumer (209 (97)
Total (1,190 (1,987)
Recoveries
Real Estat-constructior 14 -
Real Estat-mortgage 37 96
Real Estat-nonfarm nonresidentii 32 21t
Commercial 25 29
Consumer 70 73
Total 17¢ 413
Net Charg-offs (1,012 (1,579
Provision for Loan Losses 1,22¢ 1,46¢
Balance at end of year $ 4727 $ 4,511

The following tables represent how the allowanaddan losses is allocated to a particular loaretgp well as the percentage of the
category to total loans at December 31, 2012 add .20

Allocation of the Allowance for Loan Losses

December 31, 201
(Dollars in thousands)
% of loans
in each catego
Amouni  to total loans

Commercial Non Real Esta $ 42C 13.2%
Commercial Real Esta 3,33¢ 63.7%
Consumer Real Esta 81C 19.(%
Consume 151 4.(%
Unallocated 8 -
Total $ 4,72% 10C%

December 31, 201
(Dollars in thousands)
% of loans
in each catego
Amount  to total loans

Commercial Non Real Esta $ 397 16.2%
Commercial Real Esta 3,35¢ 63.%
Consumer Real Esta 68C 15.7%
Consume 78 4.2%
Unallocated = =
Total $ 4,511 10(%
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Noninterest Income and Expense

Noninterest Income The Company primary source of noninterest income is servitarges on deposit accounts. Other sourc
noninterest income include bankcard fees, commissan check sales, safe deposit box rent, wiresfeariees, official check fees and b
owned life insurance income.

Noninterest income experienced an increase of $100P or 37.5% as compared to $4,598,000 for the geded December 31, 20
to $6,324,000 for the year ended December 31, 2D4&.deposit activity fees were $3,432,000 for 26@ehpared to $2,704,000 for 20
Other service charges increased by $774,000 oPd&@m $1,653,000 for the year ended December @11 2to $2,427,000 for the year en
December 31, 2012. Impairment losses on investgamrities were $0 for 2012 as compared to $4,6002G11.

Noninterest expense increased from $18.9 milliartHe year ended December 31, 2011 to $22.2 miftotthe year ended Decem
31, 2012. The Company experienced slight increas@sost expense categories. The largestease was in salaries and employee ber
which increased by $2.3 million in 2012 as compa®e@011. These increases were due in part todd#ien of the Whitney branches ¢
associated staff.

The following table sets forth the primary compatsesf noninterest expense for the periods indicated
Noninterest Expense

Years ended December 3:
2012 2011 2010
(In thousands)

Salaries and employee bene $ 12,00 $ 9,67¢ $ 8,69:
Occupancy 1,79 1,35¢ 1,052
Equipment 1,43t 1,11« 97€
Marketing and public relatior 32¢ 353 31z
Data processin 8% 46 12
Supplies and printin 42~ 41€ 284
Telephone 533 34¢ 271
Correspondent servic 9€ 10t 11¢€
Deposit and other insuran 734 86¢ 1,11¢
Professional and consulting fe 747 1,82t 924
Postage 252 23€ 14¢
ATM fees 434 31C 22¢
Other 3,29¢ 2,21¢ 1,71C

Total $ 22,16 $ 18,87( $ 15,84

Income Tax Expense
Income tax expense consists of two components.fif$tes the current tax expense which represdmseixpected income tax to

paid to taxing authorities. The Company also recmdeferred tax for future deductible amountsiltegy from differences in the financ
statement and tax bases of assets and liabilities.
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Analysis of Financial Condition

Earning Assets

Loans.Loans typically provide higher yields than the ottyes of earning assets, and thus one of the @oy'gpgoals is for loans
be the largest category of the Company's earnisgteisAt December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectiagigrage loans accounted for 59.8%
71.3% of average earning assets. Management attdmpbntrol and counterbalance the inherent ceaditliquidity risks associated with
higher loan yields without sacrificing asset quath achieve its asset mix goals. Loans averag@&8.93million during 2012, as comparec
$354.3 million during 2011, and $329.0 million chgi2010.

The following table shows the composition of thardgortfolio by category:

Composition of Loan Portfolio

December 31

2012 2011 2010
Percent Percent Percent
Amount Of Total Amount of Total Amount of Total
(Dollars in thousands)
Mortgage loans held for sa $ 5,58t 14% $ 2,90¢ 0.7% $ 2,93¢ 0.%%
Commercial, financial and agricultut 53,23¢ 12.% 48,38¢ 12.5% 48,42° 14.€%
Real Estate
Mortgage-commercia 142,04¢ 34.2% 138,94 35.&% 109,07: 32.&%
Mortgageresidentia 140,70: 34.(% 117,69. 30.2% 102,42! 30.8%
Constructior 57,52¢ 13.%% 63,357 16.2% 58,96: 17.7%
Consumer and other 14,60( 3.5% 16,64¢ 4.4% 10,74¢ 3.2%
Total loans 413,69 10(% 387,92¢ 10(% 332,57: 10(%
Allowance for loan losses (4,72)) (4,51) (4,619
Net loans $ 408,97( $ 383,41 $ 327,95t

In the context of this discussion, a "real estatetgage loan" is defined as any loan, other thanddor construction purposes, seci
by real estate, regardless of the purpose of the. [@he Company follows the common practice ofrfgial institutions in the Comparg/’
market area of obtaining a security interest in estate whenever possible, in addition to any roévailable collateral. This collateral is ta
to reinforce the likelihood of the ultimate repayrhef the loan and tends to increase the magnitfidiee real estate loan portfolio compon
Generally, the Company limits its loan«salue ratio to 80%. Management attempts to maingaioconservative philosophy regarding
underwriting guidelines and believes it will redube risk elements of its loan portfolio througragtgies that diversify the lending mix.

Loans held for sale consist of mortgage loans waigid by the Bank and sold into the secondary ma@l@mmitments from investc
to purchase the loans are obtained upon origination
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The following table sets forth the Company's conuiarand construction real estate loans maturintpiwispecified intervals
December 31, 2012.

Loan Maturity Schedule and Sensitivity to Changesn Interest Rates

December 31, 2012
Over One Yeal
One Year Through Over Five
Type or Less Five Years Years Total
(In thousands)

Commercial, financial and agricultul $ 3254 % 19,85¢ $ 83z $ 53,23
Real estate — construction 57,52¢ - - 57,52¢
$ 90,07 $ 19,85¢ $ 83z $ 110,76:

Loans maturing after one year wi
Fixed interest rate $ 19,14:
Floating interest rates 1,54¢
$ 20,69(

The information presented in the above table igtham the contractual maturities of the individiaans, including loans which m
be subject to renewal at their contractual matufgnewal of such loans is subject to review ardlitapproval, as well as modification
terms upon their maturity.

Investment Securitie§ he investment securities portfolio is a signific@omponent of the Company's total earning asSaital
securities averaged $235.8 million in 2012, as cneg to $134.8 million in 2011 and $106.9 millionZ010. This represents 36.4%, 27.
and 23.6% of the average earning assets for thes y@aded December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010, résglgctAt December 31, 201
investment securities were $226.3 million and repnéed 34.8% of earning assets. The Company atietmphaintain a portfolio of hig
quality, highly liquid investments with returns cpatitive with shorterm U.S. Treasury or agency obligations. This ciibje is particularl
important as the Company focuses on growing its lpartfolio. The Company primarily invests in sdtias of U.S. Government agenc
municipals, and corporate obligations with matastup to five years.

The following table summarizes the carrying valfisexurities for the dates indicated.
Securities Portfolio

December 31
2012 2011 2010
(In thousands)

Available-for-sale

U. S. Government agenci $ 98,32¢ $ 103,000 $ 41,17:
States and municipal subdivisic 98,91( 94,25¢ 54,67
Corporate obligation 16,18: 14,29: 7,702
Mutual finds 97( 974 98¢
Total available-for-sale 214,39: 212,52 104,53:
Held-to-maturity
U.S. Government agenci 2,47( 2 3
States and municipal subdivisions 6,00( 6,00( -
Total held-to-maturity 8,47( 6,00z 3
Total $ 222,86 $ 218,53 $ 104,53
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The following table shows, at carrying value, tbbheduled maturities and average yields of secsaiitedd at December 31, 2012.

Investment Securities Maturity Distribution and Yields (1)

December 31, 201

After One Bui After Five But
(Dollars in thousands Within One Yeal Within Five Years Within Ten Year: After Ten Year
Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield
Held-to-maturity:
U.S. Government agencies | $ - - $ - - % - - % - -
States and municipal subdivisions - - - = - = 6,00( .93%
Total investment securities held-to-maturity $ - $ - $ - $ 6,00(
Available-for-sale:
U.S. Government agencies | $ 4,57¢ 69% $ 24,390 9% $ 5,26¢ 41% $ 3,09t 1.9%
States and municipal subdivisiol 12,90: 2.65% 41,78t 3.08% 30,03¢ 4.2(% 14,18¢ 5.41%
Corporate obligations and otf - - 7,072 3.3(% 3,07( 1.91% 6,04¢ 2.0%%
Total investment securities available-for-sale  $  17,47¢ $  73,25( $ 38,37 $  23,32¢

(1) Investments with a call feature are shown as ottrgractual maturity dat
(2) Excludes mortgac-backed securities totaling $2.5 million with a gielf 2.63%.
(3) Excludes mortgac-backed securities totaling $62.0 million with alglief 2.39% and mutual funds of $1.0 millic

Short-Term InvestmentS§hort-term investments, consisting of Federal FuBdkl, funds in due from banks and intetesaring
deposits with banks, averaged $19.7 million in 2GE5 million in 2011, and $16.5 million in 2018t December 31, 2012, and Decembel
2011, shorterm investments totaled $1,064,000 and $241,08ectively. These funds are a primary source @fQbmpany's liquidity ar
are generally invested in an earning capacity oovannight basis.

Deposits

Deposits Average total deposits increased $68.3 million1®9% in 2011. Average total deposits increased $i1thillion, or 26.39
in 2012. At December 31, 2012, total deposits v&®6.6 million, compared to $573.4 million a yearlier, an increase of $23.2 million,

4.1%.
The following table sets forth the deposits of @@mpany by category for the period indicated.

Deposits

December 31
(Dollars in thousands) 2012 2011 2010
Percent Percent Percent
of of of
Amount Deposits  Amount Deposits Amount Deposits

Noninteres-bearing account $ 109,62 18.4% $ 107,12¢ 18.7% $ 48,31: 12.2%
NOW accountt 230,58 38.6% 200,21( 34.%% 149,55: 37. 7%
Money market accoun 47,32t 7.% 43,29¢ 7.€% 18,85: 4.8%
Savings accoun 48,15 8.1% 45,64« 8.C% 14,04: 3.5%
Time deposits less than $100,( 69,11¢ 11.€% 77,56¢ 13.5% 65,39: 16.5%
Time deposits of $100,000 or over 91,82: 15.4%  99,54¢ 17.2% 100,32¢ 25.2%

Total deposits $ 596,62 10(% $ 573,39: 10C% $ 396,47¢ 100%
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The Company’s loan-to-deposit ratio was 68.4% atdb#ber 31, 2012 and 67.1% at December 31, 2011 IcEmetodeposit rati
averaged 64.5% during 2012. Core deposits, whicludg time deposits of $100,000 or more, providelatively stable funding source for
Company's loan portfolio and other earning as3éte. Company's core deposits were $504.8 milliobestember 31, 2012 and $473.8 mil
at December 31, 2011. Management anticipates thtthde base of deposits will be the Company's amnsource of funding to meet both
short-term and longerm liquidity needs in the future. The Company paschased brokered deposits from time to timeeip fund loal
growth. Brokered deposits and jumbo certificatedegdosit generally carry a higher interest rata tinaditional core deposits. Further, broke
deposit customers typically do not have loan oeptklationships with the Company. The Companydtipted a policy not to permit broke
deposits to represent more than 10% of all of tbe@any’s deposits.

The maturity distribution of the Company's certfies of deposit of $100,000 or more at Decembe2@12, is shown in the followii
table. The Company did not have any other time siepof $100,000 or more.

Maturities of Certificates of Deposit
of $100,000 or More

After Three
Within Three Through After Twelve
(In thousands) Months Twelve Month: Months Total
December 31, 201 $ 19,09¢ $ 40,64¢ $ 32,07t $ 91,82:

Borrowed Funds

Borrowed funds consists of advances from the Fédésmne Loan Bank of Dallas, federal funds purchaaed reverse repurchi
agreements. At December 31, 2012, advances fronfriteB totaled $31.8 million compared to $12.0 noitli at December 31, 2011. 1
advances are collateralized by a blanket lien erfitist mortgage loans in the amount of the outlitemborrowings, FHLB capital stock, &
amounts on deposit with the FHLB. There were nefabfunds purchased at December 31, 2012 and Dexredd, 2011.

Reverse Repurchase Agreements consist of one $680@@greement. The agreement is secured by sesunith a fair value ¢
$6,421,762 at December 31, 2012 and $19,460,2Be@mber 31, 2011. The maturity date of the remgiaigreement is September 26, 2
with a rate of 3.81%.

Subordinated Debentures

In 2006, the Company issued subordinated debentirgd,124,000 to The First Bancshares, Inc. StayuTrust 2 (Trust 2). Tt
Company is the sole owner of the equity of the T2usThe Trust 2 issued $4,000,000 of preferredisies to investors. The Company me
interest payments and will make principal paymemtghe debentures to the Trust 2. These paymelitbevihe source of funds used to re
the preferred securities, which are redeemablaytime beginning in 2011 and thereafter, and neatur2036. The Company entered into
arrangement to provide funding for expected growth.
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In 2007, the Company issued subordinated debentir§6,186,000 to The First Bancshares, Inc. StayuTrust 3 (Trust 3). Tt
Company is the sole owner of the equity of the TBusThe Trust 3 issued $6,000,000 of preferredisiées to investors. The Company me
interest payments and will make principal paymemtghe debentures to the Trust 3. These paymelitbevihe source of funds used to re
the preferred securities, which are redeemablaytime beginning in 2012 and thereafter, and neatur2037. The Company entered into
arrangement to provide funding for expected growth.

Capital

Total shareholdergquity as of December 31, 2012, was $65.9 millamjncrease of $5.5 million or approximately 9.0%mpare
with shareholders' equity of $60.4 million as ofcBmber 31, 2011.

The Federal Reserve Board and bank regulatory &erequire bank holding companies and financistititions to maintain capit
at adequate levels based on a percentage of asgktsffbalance sheet exposures, adjusted for risk wergiging from 0% to 100%. Unc
the riskbased standard, capital is classified into twasti&ier 1 capital consists of common shareholasrsity, excluding the unrealized g
(loss) on available-fosale securities, minus certain intangible assats. I capital consists of the general reserve danllosses, subject
certain limitations. An institution’s total risk-bad capital for purposes of its ribksed capital ratio consists of the sum of its Tiand Tier
capital. The risk-based regulatory minimum requieats are 4% for Tier 1 and 8% for total risk-baseplital.

Bank holding companies and banks are also reqtiredaintain capital at a minimum level based oaltassets, which is known
the leverage ratio. The minimum requirement for ltheerage ratio is 4%. All but the highest ratestitntions are required to maintain ra
100 to 200 basis points above the minimum. The Gomy@nd The First exceeded their minimum regulatayital ratios as of December
2012 and 2011.

Analysis of Capital

Adequately Well The Compan The First
Capital Ratios Capitalizec  Capitalizec December 31 December 31
2012 2011 2012 2011
Leverage 4.C% 5.C% 8.€% 8.5% 8.4% 8.2%
Risk-based capita
Tier 1 4.C% 6.C% 12.8% 12.€% 12.7% 12.2%
Total 8.C% 10.(% 13.8% 13.€% 13.€% 13.%%
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Ratios

2012 2011 2010

Return on assets (net income applicable to comnuwkisolders

divided by average total asse .51% Ad% A%
Return on equity (net income applicable to comntonldolders

divided by average equit 5.7% 5.2% 5.1%
Dividend payout ratio (dividends per share divitiychet income pe

common share 12.%% 18.2% 20.2%
Equity to asset ratio (average equity divided Ygrage total asset 8.&% 8.4% 8.8%

Liquidity Management

Liquidity management involves monitoring the Comgansources and uses of funds in order to meetldaistoday cash floy
requirements while maximizing profits. Liquiditypeesents the ability of a company to convert assgtscash or cash equivalents with
significant loss and to raise additional funds tgréasing liabilities. Liquidity management is maxere complicated because different bal
sheet components are subject to varying degreesanfigement control. For example, the timing of mités of the investment portfolio
very predictable and subject to a high degree pfrobat the time investment decisions are madedver, net deposit inflows and outflows
far less predictable and are not subject to theesdegree of control. Asset liquidity is provideddash and assets which are readily marke!
which can be pledged, or which will mature in treanfuture. Liability liquidity is provided by aceg to core funding sources, principally
ability to generate customer deposits in the Comigamarket area.

The Company's Federal Funds Sold position, whidtudes funds in due from banks and intetestring deposits with banks,
typically its primary source of liquidity, averag&d9.7 million during the year ended December 31,22and totaled $6.4 million at Decem
31, 2012. Also, the Company has available advafroes the Federal Home Loan Bank. Advances availalée generally based upon
amount of qualified first mortgage loans which danused for collateral. At December 31, 2012, adearavailable totaled approxima
$181.0 million of which $31.8 million had been drgver used for letters of credit.

Management regularly reviews the liquidity positiminthe Company and has implemented internal pasdigvhich establish guidelir
for sources of asset-based liquidity and limit bl amount of purchased funds used to supporb#ifence sheet and funding from neoore
sources.

EESA also increased FDIC deposit insurance on mostunts from $100,000 to $250,000. However, Withpassage of the Dodd-
Frank Act, this increase in the basic coveraget liras been made permanent.
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Following a systemic risk determination, the FDISablished a Temporary Liquidity Guarantee ProgfarhGP”) on October 1:
2008. The TLGP included the Transaction Accountu@aotee Program (“TAGP”\which provided unlimited deposit insurance cove
through June 30, 2010 for noninterbs@ring transaction accounts (typically businessckimg accounts) and certain funds swept
noninteresbearing savings accounts. Institutions particigatin the TAGP pay a 10 basis points fee (annudlizm the balance of ee
covered account in excess of $250,000, while tiaebeposit insurance is in place. The Companwitgpating in the TAGP.

Subprime Assets
The Bank does not engage in subprime lending éieiviargeted towards borrowers in high risk catiego
Accounting Matters

Information on new accounting matters is set fimtFootnote B to the Consolidated Financial Stat@secluded at Item 8 in this rept
This information is incorporated herein by refer@nc

Impact of Inflation

Unlike most industrial companies, the assets aaldiliies of financial institutions such as the Gmany are primarily monetary
nature. Therefore, interest rates have a morefgignt effect on the Company's performance thathdaeffects of changes in the general ra
inflation and change in prices. In addition, inttreates do not necessarily move in the same #@ireot in the same magnitude as the prict
goods and services. As discussed previously, mamagieseeks to manage the relationships betweereshteensitive assets and liabilitie
order to protect against wide interest rate fluitues, including those resulting from inflation.
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REPORT OF
INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
The First Bancshares, Inc.
Hattiesburg, Mississippi

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheets of The First Bancshares, Inc., as of ihleee 31, 2012 and 2011, and
related consolidated statements of income, compgs#e income, changes in stockholders' equity, Gasth flows for each of the years in
two-year period ended December 31, 2012. The manageshdrite First Bancshares, Inc. is responsible fiesé financial statements. (
responsibility is to express an opinion on thesarftial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighamioUnited States). Those stand.
require that we plan and perform the audits to inbtaasonable assurance about whether the finastaééments are free of mate
misstatement. The Company is not required to havewere we engaged to perform, an audit of iterimal control over financial reportir
Our audits included consideration of internal cohtiver financial reporting as a basis for desigradit procedures that are appropriate il
circumstances, but not for the purpose of exprgsamopinion on the effectiveness of the Compsairyternal control over financial reportii
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audiiudes examining, on a test basis, evidence stipgdhe amounts and disclosures in
financial statements. An audit also includes assggbe accounting principles used and signifiegsttmates made by management, as w
evaluating the overall financial statement pred@riaWe believe that our audits provide a reastmbhsis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referredbove present fairly, in all material respedts, tonsolidated financial position of The F
Bancshares, Inc., as of December 31, 2012 and 20itiithe consolidated results of its operationsi@nchsh flows for each of the years in
two-year period ended December 31, 2012 in confiyrwith accounting principles generally acceptethia United States of America.

/s/ T. E. LOTT & COMPANY

Columbus, Mississippi
March 28, 2013
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ASSETS

Cash and due from ban
Interes-bearing deposits with ban
Federal funds sold

Total cash and cash equivale

THE FIRST BANCSHARES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011

Held-to-maturity securities (fair value of $7,055,499 012 and $6,002,399 in 201

Available-for-sale securitie
Other securities

Total securitie:
Loans held for sal

Loans, net of allowance for loan losses of $4,7P®8j& 2012 and $4,510,938 in 20

Interest receivabl
Premises and equipme
Cash surrender value of life insurar

Goodwill
Other assets
Total assets

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Deposits:

Noninteres-bearing
Interest-bearing
Total deposit:

Interest payabl
Borrowed funds
Subordinated debentur
Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Stockholder Equity:
Preferred stock, no par value, $1,000 per shavididion, 10,000,000 shares authorized; 17,123sh

issued and outstanding in 2012 and 2011, respéc

Common stock, par value $1 per share: 10,000,08(slauthorized; 3,133,596 and 3,092,566 sha

issued and outstanding in 2012 and 2011, resmde

Additional paic-in capital
Retained earning

Accumulated other comprehensive inca

Treasury stock, at cost
Total stockholders’ equity

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktegements.
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2012 2011
$ 2022512 $ 10,152,33
9,587,60 12,787,61
1,064,001 241,00
30,876,72 23,180,95
8,470,10: 6,002,27:
214,392,68 212,528,38
3,437,75 2,645,25
226,300,53 221,175,91
5,585,37; 2,906,43;
403,384,64 380,511,38
2,887,28 2,771,67
22,242,83 22,990,44
6,441,10 6,270,19
9,362,49: 9,362,49:
14,304,27 12,243,75
721,385,28 681,413,24
109,624,64 107,129,47
487,001,94 466,264,70
596,626,58 573,394,17
212,04 307,75:
36,770,77 27,031,83
10,310,00 10,310,00
11,580,41 9,944,20
655,499,81 620,987,96
17,020,53 16,938,57
3,133,591 3,092,56/
23,710,77 23,504,23
19,951,17 16,791,56
2,533,02: 561,99
(463,64Y) (463,64Y)
65,885,46 60,425,28

$ 721,385,28 $ 681,413,24




THE FIRST BANCSHARES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011

INTEREST INCOME

Interest and fees on loa

Interest and dividends on securiti
Taxable interest and dividen
Tax-exempt interes

Interest on federal funds sc

Interest on deposits in banks
Total interest income

INTEREST EXPENSE
Interest on time deposits of $100,000 or
Interest on other depos
Interest on borrowed funds
Total interest expense
Net interest incom
Provision for loan losses
Net interest income after provision for loan losses

OTHER INCOME

Service charges on deposit accol

Other service charges and ft

Bank owned life insurance incor

Loss on sale of other real est

Other

Impairment loss on securitie
Total othe-thar-temporary impairment los
Less: Portion of loss recognized in other compnstve income
Net impairment loss recognized in earnings
Total other income

OTHER EXPENSE
Salaries
Employee benefit
Occupancy
Furniture and equipmel
Supplies and printin
Professional and consulting fe
Marketing and public relatior
FDIC and OCC assessme
Other

Total other expense

2012 2011
2141246 $ 20,971,20
2,744.,64. 1,892,62:
2,040,41, 1,467,39.
50,68¢ 72,36
82,71¢ 71,13
26,330,92 2447471
1,050,13: 1,443,57
2,016,49 2,757,32|
1,069,98 1,194,63
4,136,61 5,395,53!
22,194,31 19,079,18
1,228,01 1,468,35!
20,966,29 17,610,82
3,431,57 2,704,14/
2,426,75! 1,653,27!
170,91 186,62«
(55,42¢) (78,84
349,92 136,78:
- (140,359
- 136,07
- (4,279
6,323,75. 4,597,609
10,059,38 8,166,47,
1,941,33 1,512,60!
1,797,34 1,355,76
1,435,15: 1,113,62
425,08( 415,95
746,94: 1,825,23;
329,36: 353,14!
681,54( 811,14!
4,747,76. 3,316,22!
22,163,90 18,870,18




Continued:

Income before income tax
Income taxes

Net income

THE FIRST BANCSHARES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011

Preferred dividends and stock accretion
Net income applicable to common stockholders

Net income per shar
Basic
Diluted

Net income applicable to common stockhold

Basic
Diluted

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktegements.
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2012 2011
5,126,14 3,338,33
1,077,37 466,90(
4,048,76 2,871,43;
424,42 342,46(
3,624,33 2,528,97
1.31 9
1.2¢ 92
1.17 82
1.1€ 82




THE FIRST BANCSHARES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011

Net income $

Other comprehensive incorr
Unrealized gains on securitie
Unrealized holding gains arising during the pel
Plus reclassification adjustment for losses inatligienet income

Unrealized holding gains (losses) on loans heldsébe
Non-credit related impairment loss on investment sées

Income tax benefit (expense)

Other comprehensive income

Comprehensive income $

2012 2011
404876 $  2,871,43
3,022,77, 1,872,16.

- 4,59¢
3,022,77 1,876,75
(36,36%) 27,81«

- (179,10)

(1,015,38) (586,66()
1,971,03 1,138,81
6,019,790 $  4,010,24

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktegements.
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THE FIRST BANCSHARES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011

Accumulatec

Other
Additional Comprehensiv
Common Preferred Stock Paid-in Retained Income Treasury
Stock Stock Warrants Capital Earnings (Loss) Stock Total

Balance, January 1, 20 $ 3,058,711 $ 16,93857 $ 283,73t $ 23,135,02 $ 14,72249 $ (576,81) $  (463,64) $ 57,098,08

Net income 201: - - - - 2,871,43 - - 2,871,43

Other comprehensive incor 1,138,81 1,138,81

Dividends on preferred stot - - - - (342,46() - - (342,46()
Cash dividend declared, $.15

common shar - - - - (459,91) - - (459,91

Grant of restricted stoc 33,85( - - (33,85() - - - -
Compensation cost on restrict

stock - - - 119,32( - - - 119,32(

Balance, December 31, 20 $ 3,092561 $ 16,938,57 $ 283,73t $ 23,22049 $ 16,79156 $ 561,990 $  (463,64) $ 60,425,28

Net income 201; - - - - 4,048,76 - - 4,048,76

Other comprehensive Incor 1,971,03 1,971,03

Dividends on preferred stot - - - - (342,46() - - (342,46()
Cash dividend declared, $.15

common shar - - - - (464,72)) - - (464,72)

Grant of restricted stoc 42,79¢ - - (42,795 - - - -
Compensation cost on restrici

stock - - - 263,21t - - - 263,21t
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Continued:

Preferred stock accretic

Repurchase of restricted stock
payment of taxe

Balance, December 31, 2012

THE FIRST BANCSHARES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011

Accumulated

Other
Additional Comprehensiv
Common Preferrec Stock Paid-in Retainec Income Treasury
Stock Stock Warrants Capital Earnings (Loss) Stock Total
- 81,96¢ - - (81,96%) - - -
(1,765 (13,877 (15,642

$ 313359 $ 17,02053 $ 283,73t $ 2342703 $ 1995117 $ 253302 $ (463,64) $ 65,88546

The accompanying notes are an integral part oetegements.
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THE FIRST BANCSHARES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011

2012 2011
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income $ 4,048,760 $ 2,871,443
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by operating activitie:
Depreciation and amortizatic 1,724,05 1,159,74
FHLB Stock dividend: (3,300) (3,700)
Provision for loan losse 1,228,011 1,468,35!
Impairment loss on securitir - 4,27¢
Loss (Gain) on sale/call of securiti - 31¢
Deferred income taxe (136,34 163,74t
Restricted stock expen 263,21t 119,32(
Increase in cash value of life insurai (170,919 (186,62)
Amortization and accretion, n 789,99¢ 213,53«
Loss on sale/writedown of other real es 526,95 394,91:
Changes in
Loans held for sal (2,716,03) 59,21t
Interest receivabl (115,61) (662,197
Other asset 3,255,80! 2,111,33
Interest payabl (95,717 (176,00
Other liabilities 1,624,58 (405,18))
Net cash provided by operating activities 10,223,47 7,132,49
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of availal-for-sale securitie (60,102,10) (162,035,57)
Purchases of other securit (1,409,301 (315,000
Purchases of he-to-maturity securitie: (2,489,450 (6,000,001
Proceeds from maturities and calls of avail-for-sale securitie 59,198,13 48,350,27
Proceeds from sales of securities avail-for-sale - 7,144,27
Proceeds from redemption of other securi 620,10( 272,401
Increase in loan (29,994,97) (13,972,40)
Net additions to premises and equiprr (448,27:) (1,373,85)
Net cash received from acquisition - 116,143,03
Net cash used in investing activities (34,625,86) (11,786,85)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase (decrease) in depo 23,170,42 (2,270,88)
Proceeds from borrowed fun 133,340,00 31,675,00
Repayment of borrowed fun (123,601,05) (34,750,06)
Dividends paid on common sto (453,109 (452,98
Dividends paid on preferred sto (342,46() (342,46()
Repurchase of restricted stock for payment of taxes (15,64) -
Net cash provided by (used in) financing actigitie 32,098,16 (6,141,39)

The accompanying notes are an integral part oetegements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011

Continued:

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Supplemental disclosure

Cash paid during the year for:
Interest
Income taxe:

Non-cash activities:
Transfers of loans to other real esi
Issuance of restricted stock gra

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktegements.

THE FIRST BANCSHARES, INC.
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2012 2011
7,695,77. (20,795,75)
23,180,95 33,976,70
$ 30,876,72 $ 23,180,95
$ 423232 $ 5,498,70:
1,562,85 862,85!
6,198,00! 3,128,50:
42,79¢ 33,85(




THE FIRST BANCSHARES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE A- NATURE OF BUSINESS

The First Bancshares, Inc. (the Company) is a batding company whose business is primarily coneltitiy its whollyewned subsidiar
The First, A National Banking Association (the Bankhe Bank provides a full range of banking segsgiin its primary market area
South Mississippi and Bogalusa, Louisiana. The Gamgps regulated by the Federal Reserve Bank.ultsidiary bank is subject to 1
regulation of the Office of the Comptroller of tBairrency (OCC).

NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Company and the Bank follow accounting prirespyenerally accepted in the United States of Asadricluding, where applicab
general practices within the banking industry.

1. Principles of Consolidatior

The consolidated financial statements include ttemants of the Company and its whotlyned subsidiary. All significant intercomps
accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

2. Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith accounting principles generally acceptedhi@ United States of America requ
management to make estimates and assumptionsffibettthe reported amounts of assets and liaksliied disclosure of contingent as
and liabilities at the date of the financial statents and the reported amounts of revenues and sepeluring the reporting period. Act
results could differ from those estimates. Mateestimates that are particularly susceptible taii@ant change in the near term relat
the determination of the allowance for loan losmed the valuation of deferred tax assets.

3. Cash and Due From Bank

Included in cash and due from banks are legal veserquirements which must be maintained on anageebasis in the form of cash .
balances due from the Federal Reserve. The rebataace varies depending upon the types and amofimtsposits. At December
2012, the required reserve balance on deposittivitirederal Reserve Bank was approximately $4,606,0

4, Securities
Investments in securities are accounted for asviali
Available-for-Sale Securities

Securities classified as available-f&ale are those securities that are intended teelkfbr an indefinite period of time, but not nexasly
to maturity. Any decision to sell a security cldiesl as available-fosale would be based on various factors, includingaments in intere
rates, liquidity needs, security risk assessmaititanges in the mix of assets and liabilities argerosimilar factors. These securities
carried at their estimated fair value, and the umatealized gain or loss is reported net of taxaasomponent of accumulated of
comprehensive income (loss) in stockholders' equityil realized. Premiums and discounts are reizeghin interest income using !
interest method. Gains and losses on the saleaifahle-forsale securities are determined using the adjusisdaf the specific secur
sold.

33




Securities to be Held-to-Maturity

Securities classified as heldeaturity are those securities for which there ipasitive intent and ability to hold to maturity. 8dt
securities are carried at cost adjusted for araditin of premiums and accretion of discounts, camxbipy the interest method.

Trading Account Securities

Trading account securities are those securitieshwhre held for the purpose of selling them at & itprThere were no trading acco
securities on hand at December 31, 2012 and 2011.

Other Securities

Other securities are carried at cost and are céstrin marketability. Other securities consisinviestments in the Federal Home Loan E
(FHLB), Federal Reserve Bank and First National k&ss' Bankshares, Inc. Management reviews for impairnibased on the ultime
recoverability of the cost basis.

Other-than-Temporary Impairment

Management evaluates investment securities forr-ott@{emporary impairment on a quarterly basis. A declin the fair value «
available-for-sale and held-to-maturity securitieéow cost that is deemed other-thamporary is charged to earnings for a declineaine
deemed to be credit related and a new cost basikdsecurity is established. The decline in vatigbuted to noreredit related factors
recognized in other comprehensive income.

5. Loans held for sale

The Bank originates fixed rate single family, resitlal first mortgage loans on a presold basis. B&ek issues a rate lock commitment
customer and concurrently “locks iwith a secondary market investor under a besttsffitelivery mechanism. Such loans are sold wit
the servicing retained by the Bank. The terms eflttan are dictated by the secondary investorsaamdransferred within several week
the Bank initially funding the loan. The Bank reoaes certain origination fees and service reléesg upon the sale, which are include
other income on loans in the consolidated statesnehincome. Between the initial funding of therlgaby the Bank and the subseq
purchase by the investor, the Bank carries thesldaid for sale at the lower of cost or fair valnghe aggregate as determined by
outstanding commitments from investors.

6. Loans

Loans are carried at the principal amount outstamdiet of the allowance for loan losses. Intei@stme on loans is recognized base
the principal balance outstanding and the statedlahthe loan. Loan origination fees and certameal origination costs are deferred
recognized as an adjustment of the related lodd yi&ng the interest method.

A loan is considered impaired, in accordance whith impairment accounting guidance Accounting Stadgl&€odification (ASC) Sectic
310-10-35,Receivables, Subsequent Measurememien—based upon current events and informatibris{probable that the schedu
payments of principal and interest will not be eoted in accordance with the contractual termé@idan agreement. Factors considere
management in determining impairment include paynseatus, collateral values, and the probabilitycollecting scheduled payments
principal and interest when due. Generally, impainiris measured on a loan by loan basis usingaihgdlue of the supporting collateral.
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Loans are generally placed on a nonaccrual stahénwrincipal or interest is past due ninety days/loen specifically determined to
impaired. When a loan is placed on nonaccrual staferest accrued but not received is generalensed against interest income
collectibility is in doubt, cash receipts on normaat loans are used to reduce principal rather tieaorded in interest income. Past
status is determined based upon contractual terms.

7. Allowance for Loan Losse

For financial reporting purposes, the provision lfman losses charged to operations is based upoageaent's estimations of the am
necessary to maintain the allowance at an adedgnagé Allowances for any impaired loans are gelheidetermined based on collate
values. Loans are charged against the allowandedarlosses when management believes the coilégtilif the principal is unlikely.

Management evaluates the adequacy of the allowfandean losses on a regular basis. These evahstee based upon a periodic re\
of the collectibility considering historical expenice, the nature and value of the loan portfolijeulying collateral values, internal ¢
independent loan reviews, and prevailing economitions. In addition, the OCC, as a part of thgulatory examination process, revi
the loan portfolio and the allowance for loan I@saad may require changes in the allowance basadinformation available at the time
the examination. The allowance consists of two comepts: allocated and unallocated. The componamgesent an estimation de
pursuant to either ASC Topic 450¢pntingencies or ASC Subtopic 310-1®eceivables The allocated component of the allowance ref
expected losses resulting from an analysis devdltp®ugh specific credit allocations for individuaans, including any impaired loa
and historical loan loss history. The analysisadfigrmed quarterly and loss factors are updatedia€ly.

The unallocated portion of the allowance reflecemagemens estimate of probable inherent but undetectecktoréthin the portfolio dt
to uncertainties in economic conditions, changesoitateral values, unfavorable information abouicarowers financial condition, ar
other risk factors that have not yet manifestedntfedves. In addition, the unallocated allowancduithes a component that explic
accounts for the inherent imprecision in the lazsslanalysis.

8. Premises and Equipmer

Premises and equipment are stated at cost, lessnatated depreciation. The depreciation policyoiptovide for depreciation over 1
estimated useful lives of the assets using thégstrine method. Repairs and maintenance expenditueesharged to operating expen
major expenditures for renewals and bettermentsapéalized and depreciated over their estimasafull lives. Upon retirement, sale,
other disposition of property and equipment, thet emd accumulated depreciation are eliminated tl@raccounts, and any gains or lo
are included in operations.

9. Other Real Estatt

Other real estate, carried in other assets in dnsalidated balance sheets, consists of propextigsired through foreclosure and, as
for sale property, is recorded at the lower ofdhéstanding loan balance or current appraisaldsimated costs to sell. Any writiwn tc
fair value required at the time of foreclosure lisuged to the allowance for loan losses. Subsemaens or losses on other real estat:
reported in other operating income or expensesDétember 31, 2012 and 2011, other real estateetbtsb,782,422 and $4,353,2
respectively.
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10. Goodwill and Other Intangible Asse
Goodwill totaled $9,362,000 for the years endeddbaner 31, 2012 and 2011.

Goodwill totaling $8,660,000 acquired during theayended December 31, 2011 was a result of thechranquisitions from Whitne
National Bank and Hancock Bank of Louisiana. Fotr® to these consolidated financial statementgighes additional information on t
acquisition during 2011.

The Company performed the required annual impaitrtests of goodwill as of December 1, 2012. The Gany’s annual impairment te
did not indicate impairment as of the testing dated subsequent to that date, management is notafaany events or changes
circumstances since the impairment test that wimditate that goodwill might be impaired.

The Companys purchase accounting intangible, assets whicls@ngect to amortization, include core deposit igtakes, amortized on
straight-line basis, over a 10 year average lifee d@efinitelived intangible assets had the following carryirajues at December 31, 2(
and 2011.

2012 2011
Gross Net Gross Net
Carrying Accumulatec Carrying Carrying Accumulatec Carrying
Amount Amortization Amount Amount Amortization Amount
(Dollars in thousands
Core deposit intangibles $ 3,098 $ (749 $ 235 $ 3,098 $ (434) $ 2,661

During 2011, the Company recorded $2,402,000 ie deposit intangible assets related to the depasipsired in the Whitney acquisition.
The related amortization expense of business catibmrelated intangible assets is a follows:

(dollars in thousand:

Amount

Aggregate amortization expense for the year endszbdber 31
2011 $ 14C
2012 30¢

Estimated amortization expense for the year enbiecember 31
2013 $ 30¢
2014 30¢
2015 30¢
2016 29z
2017 24C
Thereafter 893
$ 2,352
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11. Other Assets and Cash Surrender Val

Financing costs related to the issuance of junibpadinated debentures are being amortized ovdiféhef the instruments and are inclu
in other assets. The Company invests in bank owfeethsurance (BOLI). BOLI involves the purchasioglife insurance by the Compe
on a chosen group of employees. The Company iswheer of the policies and, accordingly, the castiesuler value of the policies
reported as an asset, and increases in cash sernaides are reported as income.

12. Stock Options

The Company accounts for stock based compensatioactordance with ASC Topic 71&ompensation - Stock Compensation
Compensation cost is recognized for all stock oystigranted based on the weighted average fair géhas price at the grant date.

13. Income Taxes

Income taxes are provided for the tax effects efttlansactions reported in the financial statemantsconsist of taxes currently pay:
plus deferred taxes related primarily to differenbetween the bases of assets and liabilities asured by income tax laws and their b
as reported in the financial statements. The dedfetax assets and liabilities represent the futaxeconsequences of those differen
which will either be taxable or deductible when #ssets and liabilities are recovered or settled.

The Company and its subsidiary file consolidatembime tax returns. The subsidiary provides for inedaxes on a separate return basis
remits to the Company amounts determined to belpaya

ASC Topic 740Jncome Taxegyrovides guidance on financial statement recogmidiod measurement of tax positions taken, or egfeic
be taken, in tax returns. ASC Topic 740 requireg\aaluation of tax positions to determine if the pesitions will more likely than not
sustainable upon examination by the appropriatnga&uthority. The Company at December 31, 2012 201, had no uncertain |
positions that qualify for either recognition osdiosure in the financial statements.

14. Advertising Cost:

Advertising costs are expensed in the period inclvithey are incurred. Advertising expense for tharg ended December 31, 2012
2011, was $278,330 and $307,514, respectively.

15. Statements of Cash Flow

For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and egsivalents include cash, amounts due from bantesestbearing deposits with bar
and federal funds sold. Generally, federal funéssatd for a one to seven day period.

16. Off-Balance Sheet Financial Instrument
In the ordinary course of business, the subsidiemyk enters into offialance sheet financial instruments consistingashmitments t

extend credit, credit card lines and standby Isttdrcredit. Such financial instruments are recdnaethe financial statements when they
exercised.
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17.  Earnings Applicable to Common Stockholde

Per share amounts are presented in accordanc@&®&EhTopic 260Earnings Per ShardJnder ASC Topic 260, two per share amount:
considered and presented, if applicable. Basicshare data is calculated based on the weigivedage number of common shi
outstanding during the reporting period. Diluted pleare data includes any dilution from potent@hmon stock, such as outstanding s
options .

The following table discloses the reconciliationtbé numerators and denominators of the basic dntedl computations applicable
common stockholders:

For the Year Ende For the Year Ende
December 31, 201 December 31, 201
Net Net
Income Shares Per Share Income Shares Per Share
(Numerator) (Denominator Amount (Numerator) (Denominator Amount
Basic per common share $ 3,624,33 3,101,441 $ 117 $  2,528,97 3,06325 $ .82
Effect of dilutive shares
Restricted Stock 23,85¢ 10,43¢
$ 3,624,33! 3,125,26° $ 1.1¢€ $ 2,528,97 3,073,68 $ .82

The diluted per share amounts were computed byimgpthe treasury stock method.
18. Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to thel Fiiancial statements to conform with the cldgsations used in 2012. The
reclassifications did not impact the Company's otidated financial condition or results of operato

19.  Accounting Pronouncement

The Company has adopted ASU No. 2011-05, “Presentaf Comprehensive Income.” This guidance (ASQi¢®20,Comprehensiy
Income) revises the manner in which entities present ceimmsive income in their financial statementsietjuires entities to rep:
components in either a continuous statement of cengmsive income or in two separate but consecatatements. The Company chose
latter presentation. The items that must be regdant@ther comprehensive income did not change.

In December 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011*Bajance Sheet Disclosures about Offsetting Asaets Liabilities.” The ASL
amends ASC Topic 210 by requiring additional imm@vinformation to be disclosed regarding finandra@truments and derivati
instruments that are offset in accordance withateditions under ASC 210-20-45 or ASC 8154Bor subject to an enforceable me
netting arrangement or similar agreement. The amentlis effective for annual and interim reportpgriods beginning on or after Jant
1, 2013. The disclosures required by the amendnsdrasld be applied retrospectively for all compamperiods presented. In Jant
2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-01, “Clarifying Scope of Disclosures about Offsetting Assetklaabilities.” The ASU clarifie
that ordinary trade receivables and receivablematédn the scope of ASU 20111t. Only derivatives, repurchase agreements angtst
purchase agreements, and securities borrowing ecutiges lending transactions that are eitheredffs accordance with specific crite
contained in the Codification or subject to a mastgting arrangement or similar agreement areicgdge. The Company does not beli
the amendments will have a material impact on ithential statements.
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In July 2012, the FASB issued ASU No. 2012-02, fires Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets for Impaiemt.” This revised standard
intended to reduce the cost and complexity of ngsthdefinitelived intangible assets other than goodwill for arment. It allow
companies to perform a “qualitative” assessmentigtermine whether further impairment testing ofeiffinitedived intangible assets
necessary, similar in approach to the goodwill impant test. ASU 20182 is effective for annual and interim impairmessgts performe
for fiscal years beginning after September 15, 20h2 adoption of this standard is not expectdubige a material impact on the Company’
financial statements.

In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013*@@mprehensive Income Reporting of Amounts Reclassified Out of Accumudl
Other Comprehensive Incomelhe amendments do not change the current requitsni@nreporting net income or other compreher
income in financial statements. These amendmeqtsreean entity to provide information about thecamts reclassified out of accumule
other comprehensive income by component. In addit entity is required to present either on Heefof the statement where net inc
is presented or in the notes, significant amouattassified out of accumulated other compreherigsizeme by the respective line item:
net income but only if the amount reclassified @aguired under U. S. GAAP to be reclassified to inebme in its entirety in the sal
reporting period. For other amounts that are nquired under U. S. GAAP to be reclassified in thesitirety to net income, an entity
required to cross-reference to other disclosurgsired under U. S. GAAP that provide additionalailstabout these amounts. ASU 2013-
is effective for interim and annual periods begmgniafter December 15, 2012. The adoption of thamdsdrd is not expected to hav
material impact on the Company’s financial statetsien

NOTE C—- BUSINESS COMBINATION

On September 16, 2011 the Company completed trehase of seven (7) branches located on the MigpisSiulf Coast and one (1) brar
located in Bogalusa, Louisiana from Whitney NatioBank and Hancock Bank of Louisiana (the “Whitneganches”).As part of th
agreement, the Company purchased loans of $46l@ménd assumed deposit liabilities of $179.3 imil] and purchased the related fi
assets and cash of the branches. The Company epdte acquired bank branches under the name The Bi National Bankin
Association. The acquisition allowed the Compangxpand its presence in South Mississippi as veebreer a new market in Louisia
The Companys condensed consolidated statements of incomedia¢he results of operations of the Whitney braadham the closing da
of the acquisition.

In connection with the acquisition, the Companyorded $8.7 million of goodwill and $2.4 million @bre deposit intangible. The ¢
deposit intangible of $2.4 million will be expenseder 10 years. The recorded goodwill is deductibletax purposes. The Comp:
acquired the $46.8 million loan portfolio at a faalue discount of $.7 million. The discount reprmes expected credit losses, adjustmer
market interest rates and liquidity adjustmentse mbncredit quality portion of the discount was ®illion and the credit quality portion
the discount was $.6 million.
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The amounts of the acquired identifiable assetdiabdities as of the acquisition date were a$ofok (dollars in thousands):

Purchase pric

Cash $ 9,10(
Total purchase pric 9,10(
Identifiable assets
Cash 125,24:
Loans, leases and interest receivi 46,11¢
Core deposit intangibl 2,40z
Personal and real prope! 7,481
Other assets 95
Total asset 181,33¢
Liabilities and equity
Deposits and interest payal 179,19¢
Other liabilities 1,70z
Total liabilities 180,89¢
Net assets acquire $ 44C
Goodwill resulting from acquisitio $ 8,66(

The outstanding principal balance and the carrgimgpunt of these loans included in the consolidaeddnce sheet at December 31,
were as follows (dollars in thousands):

Outstanding principal balan: $ 19,14¢
Carrying amoun 18,85

All loans obtained in the acquisition of the Whigrteranches reflect no specific evidence of crediedoration and very low probability tl
the Company would be unable to collect all contralty required principal and interest payments.

NOTE D - SECURITIES

A summary of the amortized cost and estimatedvaiue of available-for-sale securities and heldr@turity securities at December
2012 and 2011, follows:

December 31, 201

Gross Gross Estimated
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
Available-for-sale securities

Obligations of U.S. Government agenc $ 36,148,000 $ 2318L $ 20,73t $ 36,359,07
Tax-exempt and taxable obligations of states andicipal

subdivisions 95,113,06 3,823,24 26,12: 98,910,18
Mortgage-backed securitie 60,384,18 1,596,67 14,36 61,966,48
Corporate obligation 17,640,09 298,47 1,751,81. 16,186,74
Other 1,255,48; - 285,30( 970,18:

$210,540,82 $ 5,950,190 $ 2,098,33 $214,392,68

Held-to-maturity securities
Mortgagebacked securitie $ 2,470,100 $ 84,79¢ $ - $ 2,554,89
Taxable obligations of states and municipal sulsitivis 6,000,00! - 1,499,401 4,500,60
$ 8,470,100 $ 84,79¢ $ 1,499,400 $ 7,055,49
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December 31, 201

Gross Gross Estimated
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
Available-for-sale securities

Obligations of U.S. Government agenc $ 43,47493 $ 216,22¢ $ 17,71 $ 43,673,45

Tax-exempt and taxable obligations of states andicipal
subdivisions 91,756,08 2,738,89 236,95: 94,258,03
Mortgage«backed securitie 58,534,12 959,01¢ 163,59¢ 59,329,54
Corporate obligation 16,678,67 26,61¢ 2,412,07 14,293,21.
Other 1,255,48; - 281,34( 974,14:

$211,699,29 $ 3,940,76. $ 3,111,67' $212,528,38

Held-to-maturity securities
Mortgage-backed securitie

Taxable obligations of states and municipal sulsitivis $ 2,27¢ % 121 $ - $ 2,39¢
6,000,001 - - 6,000,001
$ 6,002,270 $ 121 3 - $ 6,002,39

The scheduled maturities of securities at DecerBbeP012, were as follows:

Available-for-Sale Held-to-Maturity
Estimated Estimated
Amortized Fair Amortized Fair
Cost Value Cost Value
Due less than one ye $ 17,393,74 $ 17,476,16 $ - 9 =
Due after one year through five ye. 72,776,42 73,249,91 - -
Due after five years through ten ye 36,660,48 38,374,33 - -
Due after ten yeal 23,325,97 23,325,78 6,000,00! 4,500,601
Mortgage-backed securities 60,384,18 61,966,48 2,470,10: 2,554,89!

$210,540,82 $214,392,68 $ 8,470,100 $ 7,055,49

Actual maturities can differ from contractual méties because the obligations may be called orgidepith or without penalties.
No gain or loss was realized from the sale of aldd-forsale securities in 2012. A loss of $318 was redlitem the sale or call

available-for-sale securities in 2011. An othemtt@mporary impairment loss of $-0- waxognized for the year ended 2012 and $4,27
the year ended 2011.
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Securities with a carrying value of $159,725,908 135,394,139 at December 31, 2012 and 2011, ctaeply, were pledged to seci
public deposits, repurchase agreements, and fer ptirposes as required or permitted by law.

The details concerning securities classified afdaba-for-sale with unrealized losses as of Decendi, 2012 and 2011, were as follows:

2012
Losses < 12 Month Losses 12 Months or Total
Gross Gross Gross
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
Obligations of U.S. government
agenciet $ 5,063,922 $ 20,73t - $ - $ 506392 $ 20,73t
Tax-exempt and tax- able obligation
of states and municipal subdivisic 4,556,69! 26,00( 254,60" 121 4,811,30 26,12:
Mortgag¢«backed securitie - - 236,88t 14,36 236,88t 14,36
Corporate obligation 978,60( 1,76¢ 2,668,16! 1,750,05! 3,646,76! 1,751,81.
Other - - 970,18 285,30( 970,18: 285,30(
$ 10,599,22 $ 48,49¢ 4,129,84, $ 2,049,83° $ 14,729,06 $ 2,098,33
2011
Losses < 12 Month Losses 12 Months or Total
Gross Gross Gross
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
Obligations of U.S. government
agenciet $ 914247 % 17,71: - $ - $ 914247 % 17,71:
Tax-exempt and tax- able obligation
of states and municipal subdivisic 6,451,14; 183,67¢ 598,85 53,27: 7,049,99: 236,95:
Mortgagebacked securitie 16,208,86 94,24( 236,42! 69,35¢ 16,445,29 163,59¢
Corporate obligation 9,099,722 240,68t 2,749,11. 2,171,39i 11,848,84 2,412,07
Other - - 974,14 281,34( 974,14 281,34(
$ 40,902,200 $ 536,31t $ 455853 $ 257535 $ 45460,74 $ 3,111,67

Approximately 9.4% of the number of securitieshe investment portfolio at December 31, 2012, oééle an unrealized loss. Managen
is of the opinion the Company has the ability tddhthese securities until such time as the valwovers or the securities matt
Management also believes the deterioration in vasuattributable to changes in market interestsrated lack of liquidity in the cre:
markets. We have determined that these securigesa other-than-temporarily impaired based upticigpated cash flows.
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NOTE E - LOANS

Loans typically provide higher yields than the ottyges of earning assets, and thus one of the @oysgoals is for loans to be the lar
category of the Company's earning assets. At Deeerdb, 2012 and December 31, 2011, respectivebnslaccounted for 63.6% ¢
62.4% of earning assets. The Company controls atigates the inherent credit and liquidity risksahgh the composition of its lo
portfolio.

The following table shows the composition of thadgortfolio by category:

December 31, 201 December 31, 201
Percent of Percent of
Amount Total Amount Total

(Dollars in thousands

Mortgage loans held for sa $ 5,58t 1.4% $ 2,90¢ 0.7%
Commercial, financial and agricultut 53,23« 12.€ 48,38 12.t
Real Estate
Mortgage--commercia 142,04¢ 34.: 138,94 35.¢
Mortgageresidentia 140,70: 34.C 117,69. 30.5
Constructior 57,52¢ 13.€ 63,357 16.2
Consumer and other 14,60( 3.2 16,64¢ 4.4
Total loans 413,69 10C% 387,92¢ 10C%
Allowance for loan losses (4,72)) (4,51)
Net loans $ 408,97( $ 383,41

In the context of this discussion, a "real estatetgage loan" is defined as any loan, other thiraa for construction purposes, secured by
estate, regardless of the purpose of the loan.Cidmpany follows the common practice of financidtitutions in the Compang’market are
of obtaining a security interest in real estate neéwer possible, in addition to any other availatu#ateral. This collateral is taken to reinfc
the likelihood of the ultimate repayment of therlaand tends to increase the magnitude of the statesloan portfolio component. Gener:
the Company limits its loan-tealue ratio to 80%. Management attempts to mainéatonservative philosophy regarding its underng
guidelines and believes it will reduce the riskmedats of its loan portfolio through strategies whiaersify the lending mix.

Loans held for sale consist of mortgage loans waigid by the Bank and sold into the secondary nma@@mmitments from investors
purchase the loans are obtained upon origination.
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Activity in the allowance for loan losses for Dedsan 31, 2012 and 2011 is as follows:

(In thousands)

2012 2011
Balance at beginning of peri $ 4511 $ 4,617
Loans charge-off:
Real Estatt (821) (1,569
Installment and Othe (203) 97
Commercial, Financial and Agriculture (16€) (321
Total (1,190 (1,989
Recoveries on loans previously char-off;
Real Estat 83 311
Installment and Othe 70 73
Commercial, Financial and Agriculture 25 28
Total 17¢ 41%
Net Charg-offs (1,017) (1,579
Provision for Loan Losses 1,22¢ 1,46¢
Balance at end of period $ 4727 $ 4511

The following tables represent how the allowanaddan losses is allocated to a particular loare tggp well as the percentage of the categc
total loans at December 31, 2012 and December(@1,.2

Allocation of the Allowance for Loan Loss

December 31, 201
(Dollars in thousands

% of loans
in each
category
Amount to total loans
Commercial Non Real Esta $ 42C 13.2%
Commercial Real Esta 3,33¢ 63.7
Consumer Real Esta 81C 19.C
Consume 151 4.C
Unallocated 8 -
Total $ 4,727 10(%

December 31, 201
(Dollars in thousands

% of loans
in each
category
Amount to total loans
Commercial Non Real Esta $ 397 16.2%
Commercial Real Esta 3,35¢ 63.€
Consumer Real Esta 68C 15.7
Consume 78 4.2
Unallocated = -
Total $ 4,511 10(%

44




The following table represents the Companihpaired loans at December 31, 2012 and DeceBhe2011. This table excludes perforn
troubled debt restructurings.

December 3. December 3:
2012 2011
(In thousands

Impaired Loans

Impaired loans without a valuation allowar $ 1,44t $ 2,791

Impaired loans with a valuation allowance 2,14¢ 2,33¢
Total impaired loans $ 3,58¢ $ 5,12¢
Allowance for loan losses on impaired loans atqueEnd 93¢ 73€
Total nonaccrual loar 3,401 5,12¢
Past due 90 days or more and still accrt 15¢ 49€
Average investment in impaired log 2,97¢ 4,18¢

The following table is a summary of interest redagd and cashasis interest earned on impaired loans for thesyeaded December 31, 2C
and December 31, 2011:

2012 2011
Average of individually impaired loans during pet $ 2,97¢ $ 4,82i
Interest income recognized during Impairm - -
Casl-basis interest income Recogniz 50 287

The gross interest income that would have beerrdedoin the period that ended if the nonaccruahdoaad been current in accordance
their original terms and had been outstanding thinout the period or since origination, if held fart of the twelve months for December
2012 and 2011, was $81,000 and $112,000, resphctiVee Company had no loan commitments to borrewar nonaccrual status
December 31, 2012 and 2011 .

The following tables provide the ending balancethanCompany's loans (excluding mortgage loans foeldale) and allowance for loan los:
broken down by portfolio segment as of December2B12 and December 31, 2011. The tables also pradditional detail as to the ama
of our loans and allowance that correspond to iddad versus collective impairment evaluation. Tin@airment evaluation corresponds to
Company's systematic methodology for estimatindiiswance for Loan Losses.

December 31, 201

Installment Commercial

and Financial an
Real Estat Other Agriculture Total
(In thousands

Loans

Individually evaluatec $ 4,111 $ 55 $ 221 % 4,381

Collectively evaluated 333,29¢ 16,40! 54,02¢ 403,72
Total $ 337,40¢ $ 16,45t $ 54,24¢ $ 408,11:
Allowance for Loan Losse

Individually evaluatec $ 917 $ 11C $ 76 $ 1,108

Collectively evaluated 3,231 49 344 3,624
Total $ 4,148 $ 15¢ $ 42C $ 4,727
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December 31, 201

Installment Commercial

Financial an
And
Real Estat Other Agriculture Total
(In thousands

Loans

Individually evaluatec $ 4841 $ 38 $ 24¢ $ 5,12¢

Collectively evaluated 301,27: 16,107 62,51¢ 379,89°
Total $ 306,11: $ 16,14f $ 62,76t $ 385,02
Allowance for Loan Losse

Individually evaluatec $ 662 $ 13 $ 63 $ 73¢

Collectively evaluated 3,37¢ 64 334 3,77:
Total $ 4,037 $ 77 $ 397 $ 4,511

The following tables provide additional detail ofipaired loans broken out according to class aseasfethber 31, 2012 and 2011.
recorded investment included in the following tal@presents customer balances net of any partaeloffs recognized on the loans,
of any deferred fees and costs. As nearly all ofimpaired loans at December 31, 2012 are on nounakstatus, recorded investm
excludes any insignificant amount of accrued irgkereceivable on loans Qays or more past due and still accruing. The whpalanc
represents the recorded balance prior to any pah#ge-offs.

December 31, 201

Average Interest
Recordec Income
Recordec Unpaid Relatec Investmen Recognizec
Investmen Balance Allowance YTD YTD
(In thousands

Impaired loans with no related allowance:
Commercial installmer $ 15 % 15 % - $ 46 $ -
Commercial real esta 1,01z 1,52¢ - 1,004 39
Consumer real esta 10€ 96¢ - 16¢€ 8
Consumer installment 311 311 - 15€ 1
Total $ 1,448 $ 282t $ - $ 1,372 $ 48
Impaired loans with a related allowance:
Commercial installmer $ 206 $ 206 $ 73 % 17 $ 8
Commercial real esta 1,54¢ 1,54¢ 747 1,54¢ 38
Consumer real esta 44 44 44 72 4
Consumer installment 34¢ 34¢ 72 197 2
Total $ 2141 $ 214+ $ 93¢ $ 1,98¢ $ 52
Total Impaired Loans:
Commercial installmer $ 21¢  $ 21¢  $ 73 % 21¢  $ 8
Commercial real esta 2,56: 3,07¢ 747 2,55( 77
Consumer real esta 15C 1,01: 44 24C 12
Consumer installment 65¢ 65¢ 72 35¢ 3
Total Impaired Loans $ 3,68¢ 3 4,96¢ $ 93¢ $ 3,362 3% 10C
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December 31, 201

Impaired loans with no related allowance:

Commercial installmer
Commercial real esta
Consumer real esta
Consumer installment

Total

Impaired loans with a related allowance:
Commercial installmer

Commercial real esta

Consumer real esta

Consumer installment

Total

Total Impaired Loans:
Commercial installmer
Commercial real esta
Consumer real esta
Consumer installment

Total Impaired Loans

Average Interest
Recordec Income
Recordec Unpaid Relatec Investmen Recognizec
Investmen Balance Allowance YTD YTD
(In thousands
$ 121 121 ¢ - 69 5
2,42( 2,42( - 1,457 85
241 241 - 28¢ 3
9 9 - 11 -
$ 2,791 2,791 % - 1,82¢ 93
$ 12t 128 $ 63 12¢ -
1,53: 1,53 574 1,46: 23
647 647 88 74C 12
29 29 13 29 6
$ 2,33¢ 233 $ 73€ 2,36( 41
$ 24¢€ 24€ $ 63 197 5
3,95¢ 3,95¢ 571 2,92( 10¢
88¢ 88¢ 91 1,02¢ 15
38 38 13 40 6
$ 5,12¢ 5128 $ 73¢€ 4,18¢ 134
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The following tables provide additional detail odubled debt restructurings at December 31, 2012.

Outstanding Outstanding
Recordec Recordec Interest
Investment Investment Number of  Income
Pre-Modification Pos-Modification Loans Recognizet
(in thousands except number of loa

Commercial installmer $ - % - - $ -
Commercial real esta 107 104 1 8
Consumer real esta - -

Consumer installment - - - -

Total $ 107 $ 104 13 8

The balance of troubled debt restructurings at B 31, 2012 was $2.7 million, calculated for tatpry reporting purpose. Of the
amounts, $1.0 million were performing in accordamdth the modified terms. The remaining $1.7 milliare on noraccrual. There wi
$51,000 in specific reserves established with retsfzethese loans as of December 31, 2012. As ckDéer 31, 2012, the Company hat
additional amount committed on any loan classifisdroubled debt restructuring.

The recorded investment in loans for which thevedloce for loan losses was previously measured undgmeral allowance for loan los
methodology and are now impaired under ASC Se@mth1035 was $205,000. The allowance for loan lossescagtsd with those loans
the basis of a current evaluation of loss was $81,8Il loans were performing as agreed with medifterms.

During the twelve month period ending December2l1L2, the terms of 1 loan was modified as a TDRe odifications included one of 1
following or a combination of the following: mattyridate extensions, interest only payments, anaiitins were extended beyond what wi
be available on similar type loans, and payment&raiNo interest rate concessions were given osetlmor were any of these loans wri
down.

The following tables summarize by class our lodasgified as past due in excess of 30 days or maddition to those loans classified as nor
accrual:

December 31, 201
(In thousands

Past Due
Past Due 90 Days or Total

30 to 89 More and Past Due an Total

Days Still Accruing  Non-Accrual  Non-Accrual Loans
Real Estat-constructior $ 99C $ - $ 1,667 $ 2651 $ 57,52¢
Real Estat-mortgage 3,04¢ 147 98¢ 4,17¢ 140,70:
Real Estat-non farm nonresidenti 38¢ - 60€ 997 142,04¢
Commercia 88 - 13E 22% 53,23¢
Consumer 132 11 5 14¢ 14,60(
Total $ 4,64, $ 15¢ $ 3,401 $ 8,20: $ 408,11
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December 31, 201

(In thousands

Past Due 90
Past Due  Days or Mor Total

30to 89 and Still Past Due an Total

Days Accruing Non-Accrual Non-Accrual Loans
Real Estat-constructior $ 70 $ 22 $ 94t $ 1,037 $ 63,357
Real Estat-mortgage 2,18¢ 311 984 3,48¢ 117,69:
Real Estai-non farm nonresidentii 1,662 144 2,871 4,68: 138,94
Commercia 13¢ 1¢ 24¢€ 40¢ 48,38
Consumer 214 - 73 287 16,64
Total $ 427 $ 49¢ $ 512 $ 9,894 $  385,02:

The Company categorizes loans into risk categdrésed on relevant information about the abilitypofrowers to service their debt, such
current financial information, historical paymemperience credit documentation, public informatiang current economic trends, among ¢
factors. The Company uses the following definitiémsrisk ratings, which are consistent with thdimitons used in supervisory guidance:

Special Mention. Loans classified as special toerhave a potential weakness that deserves mamaygs close attention. If I
uncorrected, these potential weaknesses may iasi#terioration of the repayment prospects forltlae or of the Companyg’'credi
position at some future date.

Substandard. Loans classified as substandaidadequately protected by the current net worth @aying capacity of the obligor
of the collateral pledged, if any. Loans so clasdihave a welbdefined weakness or weaknesses that jeopardizejthéation of the
debt. They are characterized by the distinct pdigithat the Company will sustain some loss i teficiencies are not corrected.

Doubtful. Loans classified as doubtful have e weaknesses inherent in those classified astaswdzsd, with the add
characteristic that the weaknesses make colleotidiguidation in full, on the basis of currentlyisting facts, conditions, and valu
highly questionable and improbable.

Loans not meeting the criteria above that are aealyindividually as part of the above describedcess are considered to be pass

loans.
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As of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011pardd on the most recent analysis performed, skecategory of loans by class
loans (excluding mortgage loans held for sale) asfollows:

(In thousands
December 31, 201

Commercial.
Installment an
Real Estat  Real Estate Financial anc
Commercis Mortgage Other Agriculture Total
Pass $ 241,92t $ 76,20t $ 16,42¢ $ 53,88( $ 388,43t
Special Mentior 5,65: 144 17 - 5,81«
Substandar 12,60¢ 1,05¢ 15 32C 14,00(
Doubtful - - - 60 6C
Subtotal 260,18! 77,40¢ 16,45¢ 54,26( 408,31
Less:

Unearned Discount 91 94 2 14 201
Loans, net of unearned discount $ 260,09: $ 77,31 $ 16,45¢ $ 54,24¢ $ 408,11
December 31, 201

Commercial.

Installment anc
Real Estal  Real Estate Financial ant
Commercie Mortgage Other Agriculture Total
Pass $ 223,69. $ 57,83 $ 16,00¢ $ 60,74: $ 358,27
Special Mentior 5,16¢ 71 45 3 5,28¢
Substandar 16,81! 2,55:% 99 1,84¢ 21,31
Doubtful - 104 - 17t 27¢
Subtotal 245,67t 60,56 16,14¢ 62,76! 385,15:
Less:

Unearned Discount 94 34 - 2 13C
Loans, net of unearned discount $ 24558. $ 60,52¢ $ 16,14¢ $ 62,76 $ 385,02:
NOTE F - PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

Premises and equipment are stated at cost, lesmatated depreciation and amortization as follows:

2012 2011

Premises
Land $ 7,226,25 $ 7,226,25:
Buildings and improvemen 15,697,16 15,729,04.
Equipment 6,954,11 6,344,64.
Construction in progress 11,47: 227,41
29,888,99 29,527,35
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 7,646,15 6,536,91.

$ 22,242,83 $ 22,990,44
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The amounts charged to operating expense for deficecwere $1,195,877 and $858,342 in 2012 and 2@kpectively.
NOTE G- DEPOSITS

The aggregate amount of time deposits in denonoinatof $100,000 or more as of December 31, 201@,281 was $91,821,044 ¢
$99,545,812, respectively.

At December 31, 2012, the scheduled maturitiegvd teposits included in interest-bearing depasitee as follows (in thousands):

Year Amount
2013 $ 103,50°
2014 24,34¢
2015 16,37t
2016 6,36¢
2017 10,32¢
Thereafter 11
$ 160,93t
NOTE H - BORROWED FUNDS
Borrowed funds consisted of the following:
December 31
2012 2011
Reverse Repurchase Agreem $ 5,000,000 $ 15,000,00
FHLB advances 31,770,77 12,031,83

$ 36,770,77 $ 27,031,83

Advances from the FHLB have maturity dates randiogn January 2013 through June, 2019. Interesayaiple monthly at rates rang
from 0.17% to 3.813%. Advances due to the FHLB eolateralized by a blanket lien on first mortgdgans in the amount of t
outstanding borrowings, FHLB capital stock, and ante on deposit with the FHLB. At December 31, 2(HELB advances available ¢
unused totaled $149,194,016.

Future annual principal repayment requirementserbbrrowings from the FHLB at December 31, 201&enas follows:

Year Amount
2013 $ 21,770,77
2014 4,000,00!
2015 3,000,001
2016 -
2017 -
2018 -
2019 3,000,001
$ 31,770,77
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Reverse Repurchase Agreements consist of one $80@&greement. The agreement is secured by sesuwiith a fair value ¢
$6,421,762 at December 31, 2012 and $19,460,2Bkember 31, 2011. The maturity date of the remgimigreement is September
2017 with a rate of 3.81%.

NOTE | — LEASE OBLIGATIONS

The Company is committed under several long-tererating leases which provide for minimum lease payts1 Certain leases contain
options for renewal. Total rental expense undesdtaperating leases amounted to $125,000 and $98s06f December 31, 2012 and
2011, respectively.

The Company is also committed under one ltetga capital lease agreement. The capital leasseagnt had an outstanding balanc
$1,415,000 and $1,540,000 at December 31, 2012@ht, respectively (included in other liabilitie$his lease has a remaining term
years at December 31, 2012. Assets related toapigat lease are included in premises and equipeneththe cost consists of $2.6 mill
less accumulated depreciation of approximately $8Band $86,500 at December 31, 2012 and 201decteely.

Minimum future lease payments for the operating eaquital leases at December 31, 2012 were as fsllow
Operating

Leases Capital Leas
(In thousands

2013 $ 11€ $ 16€
2014 12z 16€
2015 96 16€
2016 96 16¢
2017 77 191
Thereafter 35E 74F
Total Minimum Lease Payments $ 864 1,60z
Less: Amounts representing interest (187
Present value of minimum lease payments $ 1,41¢

NOTE J- REGULATORY MATTERS

The Company and its subsidiary bank are subjecegalatory capital requirements administered byefablbanking agencies. Failure
meet minimum capital requirements can initiate aiartmandatory and possibly additional discretionacyions by regulators that,
undertaken, could have a direct material effecthenCompanys financial statements. Under capital adequacyedjuigs and the regulatc
framework for prompt corrective action, the Compamy its subsidiary bank must meet specific capgigédelines that involve quantitati
measures of assets, liabilities, and certainbafbnce sheet items as calculated under regulatmyunting practices. Capital amounts
classifications are also subject to qualitativegjueént by regulators about components, risk weigltiand other related factors.
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To ensure capital adequacy, quantitative measures heen established by regulators, and thesereetii Company and its subsidi
bank to maintain minimum amounts and ratios (sehfm the table below) of total and Tier | capifat defined) to riskveighted assets (
defined), and of Tier | capital to adjusted tots$ets (leverage). Management believes, as of Dexre®ih 2012, that the Company ant
subsidiary bank exceeded all capital adequacy reagnts.

At December 31, 2012 and 2011, the subsidiary lveak categorized by regulators as wpitalized under the regulatory framework
prompt corrective action. A financial institutios ¢onsidered to be well-capitalized if it has altoisk-based capital ratio of 10% or mc
has a Tier | riskbased capital ratio of 6% or more, and has a Tiewvérage capital ratio of 5% or more. There arecanditions @
anticipated events that, in the opinion of manageémeould change the categorization. The actuailtal@mounts and ratios at Decen
31, 2012 and 2011, are presented in the followahdet No amount was deducted from capital for egkrate risk exposure.

Company Subsidiary
(Consolidated The First
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
December 31, 201
Total risk-basec $ 66,08( 13.€% $  65,04¢ 13.6%
Tier | risk-basec 61,35 12.€% 60,31¢ 12.7%
Tier | leverage 61,35: 8.6% 60,31¢ 8.4%
December 31, 201
Total risk-basec $ 62,07 13.€% $ 60,91( 13.2%
Tier | risk-basec 57,56( 12.6% 56,39¢ 12.4%
Tier | leverage 57,56( 8.5% 56,39¢ 8.2%

The minimum amounts of capital and ratios as estaddl by banking regulators at December 31, 2082811, were as follows:

Company Subsidiary
(Consolidated The First
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
December 31, 201
Total risk-basec $ 38,27 8.(% $ 38,16: 8.(%
Tier | risk-basec 19,13t 4.C% 19,08( 4.C%
Tier | leverage 28,71 4.C% 28,66 4.(%
December 31, 201
Total risk-basec $ 36,64¢ 8.(% $ 36,527 8.(%
Tier | risk-basec 18,32¢ 4.C% 18,26« 4.(%
Tier | leverage 27,16« 4.C% 27,10: 4.(%
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The Companys dividends, if any, are expected to be made frividehds received from its subsidiary bank. The Qs dividends of
national bank in any calendar year to the net fwafi that year combined with the retained netigdbr the two preceding years.

NOTE K- INCOME TAXES

The components of income tax expense are as fallows

Current:
Federal
State
Deferred (benefit)

Years Ended December ¢

2012 2011
$ 1,000,411 $ 255,95
213,30¢ 47,19¢
(136,349 163,74t
$ 1,077,377 $  466,90(

The Company's income tax expense differs from theumts computed by applying the federal incomestatutory rates to income bef

income taxes. A reconciliation of the differencesi$ follows:

Income taxes at statutory re
Tax-exempt incom

Nondeductible expens:

State income tax, net of federal tax efl
Tax credits

Other, net

Years Ended December :

The components of deferred income taxes includékdrconsolidated financial statements were aeviali

Deferred tax asset
Allowance for loan losse
Net operating loss carryov
Other

Deferred tax liabilities
Securities
Premises and equipme
Unrealized gain on availal-for-sale securitie
Core deposit intangibl
Goodwill

Net deferred tax asset, included in other as

2012 2011
Amount % Amount %
$ 1,742,89 34% $ 1,135,03! 34%
(745,59) (15)% (559,079 17%
233,00t 5% 92,33¢ 3%
92,15¢ 2% 52,78¢ 2%
(295,80() (6)% (12,32Y) -
50,72: 1% (241,859 (8)%
$ 1,077,37 21% $ 466,90( 14%
December 31
2012 2011
$ 1,489,541 $ 1,330,95!
652,06 729,79¢
870,83: 603,03¢
3,012,43: 2,663,79!
(89,426 (97,749
(986,689 (927,939
(1,309,63) (281,889
(58,35%) (114,079
(281,03¢) (63,46()
(2,725,14) (1,485,10)
$ 287,29« $ 1,178,69:
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With the acquisition of Wiggins in 2006, the Compassumed a federal tax net operating loss carrydVés net operating loss is avails
to the Company through the year 2026.

The Company follows the guidance of ASC Topic 7M@pme Taxeswhich prescribes a recognition threshold and measent attribut
for the financial statement recognition and measerg of a tax position taken or expected to bertakea tax return. ASC Topic 740 a
provides guidance on derecognition, classificatioterest and penalties, accounting in interim qusj disclosure and transition. As
December 31, 2012, the Company had no uncertaipdaitions that it believes should be recognizethafinancial statements. The
years still subject to examination by taxing auities are years subsequent to 2007.

NOTE L - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

The Company and its subsidiary bank provide a deflecompensation arrangement (401(k) plan) wherbyployees contribute
percentage of their compensation. For employeeribotipns of six percent or less, the Company aadubsidiary bank provide a 5!
matching contribution. Contributions totaled $18%%n 2012 and $142,584 in 2011.

The Company sponsors an Employee Stock Ownerskip @SOP) for employees who have completed one gkaervice for th
Company and attained age 21. Employees becomeviesied after five years of service. Contributiomthe plan are at the discretion of
Board of Directors. At December 31, 2012, the ES@R 6,038 shares of Company common stock and batkht obligation. All shar
held by the plan were considered outstanding foim@me per share purposes. Total ESOP expens&224885 for 2012 and $16,339
2011.

NOTE M - STOCK PLANS

In 2007, the Company adopted the 2007 Stock Ineeflan. The 2007 Plan provides for the issuafcg ¢o 315,000 shares of Comp.
Common Stock, $1.00 par value per share. Shaseedsunder the 2007 Plan may consist in whole graith of authorized but unisst
shares or treasury shares. Through the year ebdedmber 31, 2009, no shares were issued undePlais During the year enc
December 31, 2011, 33,850 nonvested restrictedk sta@rds were granted under the Plan. During ttee yaded December 31, 20
42,795 nonvested restricted stock awards were egamder the Plan. During 2012, 1,765 shares vwrerchased for payment of tay
The weighted average grami#te fair value for these shares was $9.45 peresi@ompensation costs in the amount of $263,21¢
recognized for the year ended December 31, 201Zah8,320 for the year ended December 31, 201TeSluw restricted stock grantec
employees under this stock plan are subject toicBshs as to the vesting period. The restricteatls award becomes 100% vested or
earliest of 1) the three year vesting period predidhe Grantee has not incurred a termination gfl@yment prior to that date, 2) 1
Grantee’s retirement, or 3) the Grantedeath. During this period, the holder is entitedull voting rights and dividends. As of Decerr
31, 2012, there was approximately $416,000 of wgeized compensation cost related to this Plan.chst is expected to be recogni
over the remaining term of the vesting period (agpnately 2 years).
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NOTE N- SUBORDINATED DEBENTURES

On June 30, 2006, the Company issued $4,124,000ating rate junior subordinated deferrable ins¢m@ebentures to The First Bancsh
Statutory Trust 2 in which the Company owns alkled common equity. The debentures are the solé¢ akslee Trust. The Trust issu
$4,000,000 of Trust Preferred Securities (TPSshestors. The Comparg/obligations under the debentures and relatedndents, take
together, constitute a full and unconditional guéea by the Company of the Tristibligations under the preferred securities. Tieéeprec
securities were redeemable by the Company in 20d arlier in the event the deduction of relaterigst for federal income taxes
prohibited, treatment as Tier | capital is no langermitted, or certain other contingencies ari$e preferred securities must be redee
upon maturity of the debentures in 2036. Interesthe preferred securities is the three month Landderbank Offer Rate (LIBOR) pl
1.65% and is payable quarterly. The terms of thmalinated debentures are identical to those optherred securities. On July 27, 2(
the Company issued $6,186,000 of floating ratequaubordinated deferrable interest debentureshtoHirst Bancshares Statutory Tru
in which the Company owns all of the common equllge debentures are the sole asset of Trust 3TTm issued $6,000,000 of Tr
Preferred Securities (TPSs) to investors. The Caryigaobligations under the debentures and relatedndects, taken together, constitu
full and unconditional guarantee by the Companythef Trusts obligations under the preferred securities. Trefepred securities &
redeemable by the Company in 2012, or earlier énethent the deduction of related interest for fadieicome taxes is prohibited, treatrr
as Tier 1 capital is no longer permitted, or certather contingencies arise. The preferred seearitiust be redeemed upon maturity o
debentures in 2037. Interest on the preferred gmsuis the three month LIBOR plus 1.40% and iggide quarterly. The terms of 1
subordinated debentures are identical to thoskeeopteferred securities. In accordance with theipians of ASC Topic 810 onsolidation
the trusts are not included in the consolidatedrfaial statements.

NOTE O- TREASURY STOCK
Shares held in treasury totaled 26,494 at Deceihe2012, and 2011.
NOTE P- RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In the normal course of business, the Bank makassldo its directors and executive officers and¢dmpanies in which they hawve
significant ownership interest. In the opinion chmagement, these loans are made on substantiallsathe terms, including interest r:
and collateral, as those prevailing at the timectanparable transactions with other parties, ansistent with sound banking practices,
are within applicable regulatory and lending lirtitas. Such loans amounted to approximately $9088Band $12,955,000 at Decen
31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. The activity ian® to current directors, executive officers, ameirtaffiliates during the year enc
December 31, 2012, is summarized as follows (inshads):

Loans outstanding at beginning of y: $ 12,95t
New loans 702
Repayments (3,979
Loans outstanding at end of year $ 9,68:

NOTE Q- COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENCIES, AND CONCENTRATIONS OFCREDIT RISK

In the normal course of business, there are owtstgrnvarious commitments and contingent liabilitissch as guaranties, commitment
extend credit, etc., which are not reflected inabeompanying financial statements. The subsidiank had outstanding letters of cred
$574,000 and $387,000 at December 31, 2012 and, 284gdectively, and had made loan commitments pfagimately $63,583,000 a
$59,035,000 at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respBcti
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Commitments to extend credit and letters of creditude some exposure to credit loss in the evémooperformance of the custorr
Commitments to extend credit are agreements to teral customer as long as there is no violatiomrof condition established in 1
contract. Standby letters of credit are conditioc@hmitments issued by the Bank to guarantee thierpgance of a customer to a tr
party. The credit policies and procedures for stmmmitments are the same as those used for leadingties. Because these instrumi
have fixed maturity dates and because a numbereswithout being drawn upon, they generally dopresent any significant liquidity ris
No significant losses on commitments were incudhedng the two years ended December 31, 2012, necaay significant losses as a re
of these transactions anticipated.

The primary market area served by the Bank is Bgrteamar, Jones, Pearl River, Jackson, HancockeStnd Harrison Counties wit
South Mississippi as well as Washington Parish auitiana. Management closely monitors its creditcemtrations and attempts
diversify the portfolio within its primary marketea. As of December 31, 2012, management doesonsider there to be any signific
credit concentrations within the loan portfoliotifdugh the Banls loan portfolio, as well as existing commitmeméslects the diversity
its primary market area, a substantial portion bberower's ability to repay a loan is dependemiruihe economic stability of the area.

NOTE R- FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The Company follows the guidance of ASC Topic 8E@jr Value Measurements and Disclosuréisat establishes a framework
measuring fair value and expands disclosures daoutalue measurements.

The guidance defines the fair value as the priaewould be received to sell an asset or paidawsfer a liability in an orderly transact
between market participants at the measurement atiso establishes a fair value hierarchy whieuires an entity to maximize the
of observable inputs and minimize the use of unoladde inputs when measuring fair value.

In accordance with the guidance, the Company grdaagemancial assets and financial liabilities reeged at fair value in three levels, be
on the markets in which the assets and liabildiestraded and the reliability of the assumptiossduto determine fair value. These le
are:

Level 1: Valuations for assets and liabilities traded inivectexchange markets, such as the New York Stoath&hge
Valuations are obtained from readily available ipgcsources for market transactions involving ideaitassets «
liabilities.

Level 2: Valuations for assets and liabilities traded irslastive dealer or broker markets. Valuations &tained from thir

party pricing services for identical or comparab$sets or liabilities which use observable inptiteiothan Level
prices, such as quoted prices for similar assetsbilities; quoted prices in markets that are aotive; or othe
inputs that are observable or can be corroborayedbiservable market data for substantially the fieitim of th
assets and liabilitie!

Level 3: Unobservable inputs that are supported by littl@a@market activity and that are significant to the value of th
assets or liabilities

Following is a description of the valuation methlmdpes used for instruments measured at fair valwegecurring basis and recognized in
the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

57




Available-for-Sale Securities

The fair value of available-fasale securities is determined by various valuati@thodologies. Where quoted market prices areaaiir
an active market, securities are classified wittemel 1. Level 1 securities include mutual fundgguoted market prices are not availa
then fair values are estimated by using pricing e®dr quoted prices of securities with similar refeéeristics. Level 2 securities incl
U.S. Treasury securities, obligations of U.S. gowsent corporations and agencies, obligations destand political subdivisior
mortgagebacked securities and collateralized mortgage atitigs. In certain cases where Level 1 or Leveh@uis are not availab

securities are classified within Level 3 of therhrehy.

The following table presents the Company’s avaddbl-sale securities that are measured at fair valua mturring basis and the le

within the hierarchy in which the fair value measuents fell as of December 31, 2012 and Decemhe2@1L (in thousands):

December 31, 201

Obligations of U.S. Government agenc
Municipal securitie:

Mortgagebacked securitie

Corporate obligation

Other

Total

December 31, 201

Obligations of U.S. Government agenc
Municipal securitie:

Mortgage-backed securitie

Corporate obligation

Other

Total

Fair Value Measurements Usi

Quoted Prices in Significant
Active Markets Other Significant
For Observable Unobservable
Identical Asset: Inputs Inputs
Fair Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
$ 36,35¢ % - $ 36,35¢ % >
98,91( - 98,91( -
61,96° - 61,96° -
16,18" - 13,51¢ 2,66¢
97C 97C - -
$ 214,39: $ 97C $ 210,75! $ 2,66¢
Fair Value Measurements Usi
Quoted Prices in Significant
Active Markets Other Significant
For Observable Unobservable
Identical Asset: Inputs Inputs
Fair Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
$ 43,67 $ - $ 43,67 $ >
94,25¢ - 94,25¢ -
59,33( - 59,33( -
14,29: - 12,04: 2,25:
974 974 - -
$ 212,52t $ 974 $ 209,30 $ 2,25:
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The following is a reconciliation of activity foisaets measured at fair value based on signifigastiservable (non-market) information.

Bank-Issued
Trust

Preferred

(In thousands) Securities
Balance, December 31, 20 $ 2,25:
Transfers into Level -
Transfers out of Level -
Unrealized income included in comprehensive income 41€
Balance, December 31, 2012 $ 2,66¢

Following is a description of the valuation methlodpes used for assets and liabilities measurddiavalue on a nomecurring basis at
recognized in the accompanying balance sheetselisag/the general classification of such assetsliabilities pursuant to the valuati
hierarchy.

Impaired Loans

Loans for which it is probable that the Companyl wilt collect all principal and interest due acdéogdto contractual terms are measure(
impairment. Allowable methods for estimating fa#we include using the fair value of the collatdoalcollateral dependent loans or, wt
a loan is determined not to be collateral dependesirig the discounted cash flow method.

If the impaired loan is identified as collaterapdadent, then the fair value method of measuriegathount of impairment is utilized. T
method requires obtaining a current independentaéggd of the collateral and applying a discourtdato the value. If the impaired loat
determined not to be collateral dependent, thendtbeounted cash flow method is used. This metteaglires the impaired loan to
recorded at the present value of expected futsk flaws discounted at the loareffective interest rate. The effective interase of a loa
is the contractual interest rate adjusted for agtydeferred loan fees or costs, premiums or digsogxisting at origination or acquisition
the loan. Impaired loans are classified within L& ef the fair value hierarchy.
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Other Real Estate Owned

Other real estate owned consists of propertiesirditahrough foreclosure. The adjustment at the tohforeclosure is recorded throt
the allowance for loan losses. Fair value of otlkalt estate owned is based on current indepengendisgals. Due to the subjective na
of establishing the fair value when the asset ggimed, the actual fair value of the other reahesbwned or foreclosed asset could d
from the original estimate. If it is determined tadr value declines subsequent to foreclosurealaation allowance is recorded throl
other income. Operating costs associated with $iseta after acquisition are also recorded asimenest expense. Gains and losses o
disposition of other real estate owned and forexlagssets are netted and posted to other incorher @l estate owned measured a
value on a nomecurring basis at December 31, 2012, amounte®.® illion. Other real estate owned is classifigthin Level 2 of th
fair value hierarchy.

The following table presents the fair value measanet of assets and liabilities measured at famevan a nonrecurring basis and the |
within the fair value hierarchy in which the famlue measurements fell at December 31, 2012 andrblger 31, 2011 (in thousands).

Fair Value Measurements Usi

Quoted Prices in Significant
Active Markets Other Significant
For Observable Unobservable
Identical Asset: Inputs Inputs
Fair Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

December 31, 201
Impaired loan $ 3,58¢ $ - % 3,58¢ $ =
Other real estate own 6,782 - 6,782 -
December 31, 201
Impaired loan: $ 512t $ - % 512t $ -
Other real estate own 4,35: - 4,35: -

The following methods and assumptions were usegbtimate the fair value of each class of finanicisirument for which it is practical
to estimate that value:

Cash and Cash Equivalents For such short-term instruments, the carryinguam@ a reasonable estimate of fair value.

Investment in securities available-for-sale and Helo-maturity — The fair value measurement for securities avbstédr-sale wa
discussed earlier. The same measurement approachsed for securities held-to-maturity.

Loans— The fair value of loans is estimated by discountimg future cash flows using the current rates itk similar loans would t
made to borrowers with similar credit ratings aadthe same remaining maturities.
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Deposits— The fair values of demand deposits are, as reqliyedSC Topic 825, equal to the carrying value wtts deposits. Dema
deposits include noninterelsearing demand deposits, savings accounts, NOWuats;oand money market demand accounts. Th
value of variable rate term deposits, those repgievithin six months or less, approximates theyeag value of these deposits. Discour
cash flows have been used to value fixed rate tEposits and variable rate term deposits repriaftey six months. The discount rate L
is based on interest rates currently being offeredomparable deposits as to amount and term.

Short-Term Borrowings— The carrying value of any federal funds purchased other shorerm borrowings approximates their
values.

FHLB and Other Borrowings— The fair value of the fixed rate borrowings areireated using discounted cash flows, based on ¢
incremental borrowing rates for similar types ofrbwing arrangements. The carrying amount of amabée rate borrowing approxima
its fair value.

Subordinated Debentures Fhe subordinated debentures bear interest at ablaniate and the carrying value approximatesdhesélue.
Off-Balance Sheet Instruments- Fair values of ofbalance sheet financial instruments are based e dbarged to enter into sim

agreements. However, commitments to extend cradibhat represent a significant value until such cémments are funded or clos
Management has determined that these instrumentstdtave a distinguishable fair value and novalue has been assigned.

As of As of
December 31, 201 December 31, 201
Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value

(In thousand)
Financial Instruments

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalel $ 30,877 $ 30,877 $ 23,18 $ 23,18
Securities availab-for-sale 214,39: 214,39: 212,52¢ 212,52¢
Securities hel-to-maturity 8,47( 7,05t 6,00z 6,00z
Other securitie 3,43¢ 3,43¢ 2,64t 2,64t
Loans, ne 408,97( 422,02 383,41¢ 396,90!

Liabilities:
Noninteres-bearing deposit $ 109,62 $ 109,62 $ 107,12¢ $ 107,12¢
Interes-bearing deposit 487,00: 487,59¢ 466,26! 467,19¢
Subordinated debentur 10,31( 10,31( 10,31( 10,31(
FHLB and other borrowing 36,77 36,77: 27,03: 27,03
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NOTE S- SENIOR PREFERRED STOCK

On February 6, 2009, as part of the U.S. Departoefiteasury’s (“Treasury”) Capital Purchase Progi&CPP”),the Company receivec
$5.0 million equity investment by issuing 5 thousahares of Series A, no par value preferred stodke Treasury pursuant to a Le
Agreement and Securities Purchase Agreement thatoweviously disclosed by the Company. The Compsy issued a warrant to
Treasury allowing it to purchase 54,705 sharesi®f@ompanys common stock at an exercise price of $13.71.Wdreant can be exercis
immediately and has a term of 10 years.

The nonvoting Series A preferred shares issued, with @idigtion preference of $1 thousand per share,payl a cumulative cash divide
quarterly at 5% per annum during the first five ngethe preferred shares are outstanding, resettiBgo thereafter if not redeemed. The ¢
also includes certain restrictions on dividend pagita of the Company’lower ranking equity and the ability to purchéseoutstandin
common shares.

The Company allocated the proceeds received frenTtkasury, net of transaction costs, on a probasés to the Series A preferred st
and the warrant based on their relative fair valdde Company assigned $.3 million and $4.7 milliorthe warrant and the Serie:
preferred stock, respectively. The resulting disdoon the Series A preferred stock is being acdrefe to the $5.0 million liquidatic
amount at the time of the exchange discussed ifotleaving paragraph.

On September 29, 2010, and pursuant to the ternisedtter agreement between the Company and titedJStates Department of
Treasury (“Treasury”)the Company closed a transaction whereby Treasulyamged its 5,000 shares of Fixed Rate Cumuld&enpetus
Preferred Stock, Series UST, (The “CPP Preferrearesti) for 5,000 shares of a new series of preferred stedignated Fixed R
Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock, Series CB {@DCI Preferred Shares"Dn the same day, and pursuant to the terms ofetie
agreement between the Company and Treasury, th@&ugnissued an additional 12,123 CDCI Preferredeshi Treasury for a purchi
price of $12,123,000. As a result of the CDCI Temt®ns, the Company is no longer participatinghim TARP Capital Purchase Progi
being administered by Treasury and is now parttoigan Treasury’'s TARP Community Development Cabihitiative (the “CDCI"). The
terms of the CDCI Transactions are more fully sethfin the Exchange Letter Agreement and the Raseh.etter Agreement.

The Letter Agreement, pursuant to which the Pretei$hares were exchanged, contains limitationsherpayment of dividends on -
common stock to no more than 100% of the aggreuateshare dividend and distributions for the immagglprior fiscal year (dividends
$0.15 per share were declared and paid in 20101,284d 2012) and on the Compasbility to repurchase its common stock,
continues to subject the Company to certain oktterutive compensation limitations included in Bmeergency Economic Stabilization /
of 2008 (EESA), as previously disclosed by the Canyp

The most significant difference in terms between @DCI Preferred Shares and the CPP Preferred Sisatfee dividend rate applicable
each. The CPP Preferred Shares entitled the htwden annual dividend of 5% of the liquidation \&lof the shares, payable quarterl
arrears; by contrast, the CDCI Preferred Shardteetite holder to an annual dividend of 2% of ligeidation value of the shares, pay:
quarterly in arrears. Other differences in ternmsveen the CDCI Preferred Shares and the CPP Redf8inares, include, without limitatis
the restrictions on common stock dividends andealemption of common stock and other securities.ekige terms of the CDCI Preferi
Shares are more fully set forth in the ArticlesAmiendment creating the CDCI Preferred Shares, whiticles of Amendment were fil¢
with the Mississippi Secretary of State on Septer2i@e 2010.
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As a condition to participation in the CDCI, the Mpany was required to obtain certification as a @aomity Development Financ
Institution (a “CDFI”) from Treasuryg Community Development Financial Fund. On Septer@Be2010, the Company was notified ths
application for CDFI certification had been apprdvin order to become certified and maintain itdifieation as a CDFI, the Company
required to meet the CDFI eligibility requirementt forth in 12 C.F.R. 1805.201(b).

NOTE T- SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On January 31, 2013, The First Bancshares, Inc.issi$8ippi corporation (“The First"¢ntered into an Acquisition Agreement |
“Agreement”) with First Baldwin Bancshares, Ina, Alabama corporation (“Baldwin”)The Agreement provides that, upon the terms
subject to the conditions set forth in the Agreem@ie First will acquire all of the outstandingases (the “Acquisition”) of Baldwirg
wholly-owned subsidiary, First National Bank of Bain County, a national banking association (“FNBSubject to the terms a
conditions of the Agreement, which has been appgrdwe the Boards of Directors of The First and BatgwBaldwin intends to file
voluntary bankruptcy petition under Chapter 11k Bankruptcy Code in the United States Bankrugowrt (“Bankruptcy Court™anc
seek Bankruptcy Court approval of the AgreementtaedAcquisition through a Chapter 11 plan. Upoprapal by the Bankruptcy Col
and consummation of the Acquisition, all outstagdiFNB common stock will be sold to The First foiskaconsideration not to exce
$3,300,000 (the “Purchase PriceBach outstanding share of FNB common stock will aemoutstanding and be unaffected by
Acquisition.

On March 22, 2013, The First Bancshares, Inc. anced the successful completion of a private placgnoé Series D Nonvotir
Convertible Preferred Stock, $1 par value. The Camypraised $20 million in new capital through avpte placement of 1,951,220 shi
of its Series D Nonvoting Convertible Preferredc®tat a price of $10.25 per share.

NOTE U- PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
The balance sheets, statements of income and loaghfbr The First Bancshares, Inc. (parent companly) follow.

Condensed Balance Sheets

December 31

2012 2011
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalel $ 48,52t $ 6,391
Investment in subsidiary bai 74,851,30 69,263,75
Investments in statutory trus 310,00( 310,00(
Other securitie 100,00( 100,00(
Premises and equipme 368,62: 368,62:
Other 599,19. 741,01

$ 76,277,64 $ 70,789,77

Liabilities and Stockholde’ Equity:

Subordinated debentur $ 10,310,00 $ 10,310,00
Other 82,17¢ 54,49t
Stockholders’ equity 65,885,46 60,425,28

$ 76,277,64 $ 70,789,77
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Condensed Statements of Income

Income:
Interest and dividenc
Dividend income
Other

Expenses
Interest on borrowed func
Legal
Other

Income (loss) before income taxes and equity instriduted income of subsidia
Income tax benefit

Income (loss) before equity in undistributed inconfisubsidiary

Equity in undistributed income of subsidiary

Net income

Condensed Statements of Cash Flows

Cash flows from operating activitie
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by (used in) operating activitie
Equity in undistributed income of subsidic
Restricted stock expen
Other, net
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Cash flows from investing activitie
Investment in subsidiary bank
Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activitie
Dividends paid on common sto
Dividends paid on preferred sto
Repurchase of restricted stock for payment of taxes
Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
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Years Ended December ¢

2012 2011

6,21z 5,62¢
980,00 530,00
986,21. 535,62
206,59 187,11°
112,20: 820,93
404,44 313,75
723,24 1,321,801
262,96t (786,18()
169,27- 691,84
432,24 (94,332
3,616,52! 2,965,77;
4,048,76 $ 2,871,43

Years Ended December ¢

2012 2011
4,048,76 $ 2,871,43
(3,616,52) (2,965,77)
263,21 119,32(
157,88: (542,58Y)
853,34 (517,599
- (10,500,00)
- (10,500,00)
(453,109 (452,98))
(342,46() (342,46()
(15,647 -
(811,20) (795,44)
42,13¢ (11,813,04)
6,391 11,819,43
48,52t 6,391




NOTE V- SUMMARY OF QUARTERLY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS AND FEESHARE AMOUNTS (UNAUDITED)

Three Months Ende
March 31 June 3( Sept. 3C Dec. 31
(In thousands, except per share amot

2012
Total interest incom $ 6,666 $ 6,60¢ $ 6,45¢ $ 6,597
Total interest expense 1,181 1,101 1,02¢ 827
Net interest incom 5,48t 5,50¢ 5,431 5,77C
Provision for loan losses 152 221 371 484
Net interest income after provision for loan los 5,33: 5,28 5,06( 5,28¢
Total nor-interest incomt 1,47¢ 1,51( 1,51¢ 1,821
Total nor-interest expens 5,522 5,41¢ 5,43 5,791
Income tax expense 31¢ 34€ 26¢ 14€
Net income 971 1,033 872 1,16¢
Preferred dividends and stock accretion 10€ 10€ 10€ 10€
Net income applicable to common stockholc $ 865 $ 931 $ 766 $ 1,06:
Per common shar
Net income, basi $ 28 $ 3C $ 28 $ .34
Net income, dilute! .28 .3C .24 .34
Cash dividends declart .037¢ .037¢ .037¢ .037¢
2011
Total interest incom $ 573 $ 5941 $ 5,99¢ $ 6,802
Total interest expense 1,48: 1,43( 1,267 1,217
Net interest incom 4,251 4,511 4,732 5,58¢
Provision for loan losses 34¢ 30E 23C 58E
Net interest income after provision for loan los 3,90z 4,20¢ 4,50z 5,00(
Total nor-interest incomt 91t 1,02¢ 1,08¢ 1,57(
Total nor-interest expens 4,52¢ 4,29: 4,47¢ 5,57¢
Income tax expense (207) 267 36E 42
Net income 501 67C 74€ 954
Preferred dividends and stock accretion 86 85 86 85
Net income applicable to common stockholc $ 415 $ 58t $ 66C $ 86C¢
Per common sharn
Net income, basi $ A4 $ AS  $ 22 $ .28
Net income, dilutet .14 .19 .21 .28
Cash dividends declar .037¢ .037¢ .037¢ .037¢
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EXHIBIT 21

SUBSIDIARIES OF
THE FIRST BANCSHARES, INC.

The First, A National Banking Association
(A National chartered banking corporation)

The First Bancshares Statutory Trust 2
(Delaware statutory trust)

The First Bancshares Statutory Trust 3
(Delaware statutory trust)




Exhibit 23
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémt¢lee Registration Statement of The First Baneshdnc., on Form 8-of our report date

March 28, 2013, on the 2012 consolidated finarst@ement of The First Bancshares, Inc., whichmtépancluded in the 2012 Annual Report
on Form 10-K of The First Bancshares, Inc.

/s/ T. E. LOTT & COMPANY

Columbus, Mississippi
March 28, 2013




EXHIBIT 31
CERTIFICATIONS

I, M. Ray (Hoppy) Cole, Jr., certify that:

1.

2.

| have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of The First Bancshares, In

Based on my knowledge, this annual report doésontain any untrue statement of a material dacimit to state a material fact
necessary in order to make the statements madtighirof the circumstances under which such stateseere made, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this ref

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtg,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep

The registrant’s other certifying officer andrk responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f))for the registrant and hav

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedoreaused such disclosure controls and procedaoites designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattdy during the period in which this report isfg prepared

b. Designed such internal control over financiplorting, or caused such internal control over feiahreporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodgiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting princij

C. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registeadisclosure controls and procedures and presémtiais report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contials procedures as of the end of the period coveyetthis report based
such evaluation; an

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the tegig's internal control over financial reportitgit occurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter that haeradly affected, or is reasonably likely to maadly affect, the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting; a

The registrant’s other certifying officer antddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrastboard of directors (or persons performing theweden!
functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contra¢iofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize aqbrt financial information;
and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that inva\weanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant’s

internal control over financial reportin
Date: March 21, 2013

/s/ M. Ray (Hoppy) Cole, J

M. Ray (Hoppy) Cole, Ji
Chief Executive Office




EXHIBIT 31

CERTIFICATIONS

I, Dee Dee Lowery, certify that:

1.

2.

I have reviewed this annual report on Forn-K of The First Bancshares, Ir;

Based on my knowledge, this annual report doésantain any untrue statement of a material dacmit to state a material fact
necessary in order to make the statements matightrof the circumstances under which such stateseere made, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this ref

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep

The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f))for the registrant and hav

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedoreaused such disclosure controls and procedaoites designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isifge prepared

b. Designed such internal control over financiplorting, or caused such internal control over feiahreporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atauce with generally accepted accounting princijy

C. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrafisslosure controls and procedures and presentiisineport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conaintprocedures as of the end of the period covgyrehlis report based on st
evaluation; ant

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the tegig's internal control over financial reportitgit occurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter that haenadly affected, or is reasonably likely to maadly affect, the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting; a

The registrant’s other certifying officer antddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitte@mmittee of the registrastboard of directors (or persons performing thevaden!
functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contratiofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regrg’s ability to record, process, summarize aqbrt financial information;
and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaweanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant’s

internal control over financial reportin
Date: March 21, 2013

/s/ Dee Dee Lower
Dee Dee Lowen
Chief Financial Office




EXHIBIT 32

CERTIFICATIONS
I, M. Ray (Hoppy) Cole, Jr. Chief Executive Officeertify that

this periodic report containing financial statensefioly complies with the requirements of secti@tal) or 15(d) of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m or 780(d)) #nad information contained in the periodic repaiitlf presents, in all material
respects, the financial condition and results @rapons of the issuer.

Date: March 21, 2013

/sl M. Ray (Hoppy) Cole, J

M. Ray (Hoppy) Cole, Ji
Chief Executive Office

I, Dee Dee Lowery, Chief Financial Officer, certtfyat

this periodic report containing financial statensefioilly complies with the requirements of secti@{d) or 15(d) of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m or 780(d)) #uad information contained in the periodic repaiitlfy presents, in all material
respects, the financial condition and results @rapons of the issuer.

Date: March 21, 2013
/s/ Dee Dee Lower

Dee Dee Lowen
Chief Financial Office




EXHIBIT 99.1
EESA CERTIFICATION

I, M. Ray (Hoppy) Cole, Jr., certify, based on molvledge, that:

(i) The compensation committee of The First Banoshidnc. has discussed, reviewed, and evaluatddsenior risk officers at least every
six months during any part of the most recently ptated fiscal year that was a TARP period, the@egxecutive officer (SEO) compensation
plans and the employee compensation plans andskteethese plans pose to The First Bancshares, Inc.

(i) The compensation committee of The First Bamgeshk, Inc. has identified and limited during anxt pdthe most recently completed
fiscal year that was a TARP period any featureh®fSEO compensation plans that could lead SE@&kéounnecessary and excessive risks
that could threaten the value of The First Banas$ydnc., and has identified any features of thpleyee compensation plans that pose risks t
The First Bancshares, Inc. and has limited thostifes to ensure that The First Bancshares, Imatisnnecessarily exposed to risks;

(iii) The compensation committee has reviewedeas$t every six months during any part of the mesemtly completed fiscal year that
was a TARP period, the terms of each employee cosgti®on plan and identified any features of the pheat could encourage the manipula
of reported earnings of The First Bancshares,tthenhance the compensation of an employee, ankihtis=d any such features;

(iv) The compensation committee of The First Baacsh, Inc. will certify to the reviews of the SEQmpensation plans and employee
compensation plans required under (i) and (iii)weho

(v) The compensation committee of The First Baneshadnc. will provide a narrative description @it limited during any part of the
most recently completed fiscal year that was a TARRod the features in

(A) SEO compensation plans that could lead SE@aki® unnecessary and excessive risks that cowddttm the value of The First
Bancshares, Inc

(B) Employee compensation plans that unnecessatpipse The First Bancshares, Inc. to risks; and

(C) Employee compensation plans that could enceutfagy manipulation of reported earnings of ThetBemcshares, Inc. to enhance the
compensation of an employee;

(vi) The First Bancshares, Inc. has required bgraysnents to SEOs or any of the next twenty mogstlhigompensated employees, as
defined in the regulations and guidance establisimeiér section 111 of EESA (bonus payments), bgesuto a recovery or “clawback”
provision during any part of the most recently ctetgd fiscal year that was a TARP period if the impayments were based on materially
inaccurate financial statements or any other naltgiinaccurate performance metric criteria;

(vii) The First Bancshares, Inc. has prohibited golden parachute payment, as defined in the régotand guidance established under
section 111 of EESA, to an SEO or any of the niset fnost highly compensated employees during anygbdahe most recently completed
fiscal year that was a TARP period;

(viii) The First Bancshares, Inc. has limited bopagments to its applicable employees in accordaitbesection 111 of EESA and the
regulations and guidance established thereundarglany part of the most recently completed fisear that was a TARP period;

(ix) The First Bancshares, Inc. and its employegltomplied with the excessive or luxury expendgipolicy, as defined in the
regulations and guidance established under setfitrof EESA, during any part of the most recentignpleted fiscal year that was a TARP
period; and any expenses that, pursuant to theypotquired approval of the board of directorspmmittee of the board of directors, an SEO,
or an executive officer with a similar level of pemsibility were properly approved;




(x) The First Bancshares, Inc. will permit a nonédng shareholder resolution in compliance with applicable Federal securities rules
and regulations on the disclosures provided urtdeFederal securities laws related to SEO compiengaaid or accrued during any part of
most recently completed fiscal year that was a TARRod;

(xi) The First Bancshares, Inc. will disclose timecaunt, nature, and justification for the offerimlyiring any part of the most recently
completed fiscal year that was a TARP period, of gerquisites, as defined in the regulations aridamece established under section 111 of
EESA, whose total value exceeds $25,000 for anyl@rap who is subject to the bonus payment limitetimentified in paragraph (viii);

(xii) The First Bancshares, Inc. will disclose what The First Bancshares, Inc., the board of direaf The First Bancshares, Inc. or the
compensation committee of The First Bancshareshag engaged during any part of the most recentiypleted fiscal year that was a TARP
period, a compensation consultant; and the sertfieesompensation consultant or any affiliate ef tompensation consultant provided during
this period;

(xiii) The First Bancshares, Inc. has prohibited gfayment of any gross-ups, as defined in the a¢ignk and guidance established under
section 111 of EESA, to the SEOs and the next tyverast highly compensated employees during anygidhte most recently completed
fiscal year that was a TARP period,;

(xiv) The First Bancshares, Inc. has substant@diyplied with all other requirements related to lype compensation that are provided
in the agreement between The First BancsharesaitTreasury, including any amendments;

(xv) The First Bancshares, Inc. has submitted #a3ury a complete and accurate list of the SEOshentiventy next most highly
compensated employees for the current fiscal ye#r,the non-SEOs ranked in descending order afllefzannual compensation, and with the
name, title, and employer of each SEO and mostyhigimpensated employee identified; and

(xvi) I understand that a knowing and willful falsefraudulent statement made in connection wiih ¢ertification may be punished by
fine, imprisonment, or both.geefor example, 18 U.S.C. 1001.)

By: /s M. Ray (Hoppy) Cole, J
M. Ray (Hoppy) Cole, Ji
Principal Executive Office

Date: March 21, 201




EXHIBIT 99.2
EESA CERTIFICATION

I, Dee Dee Lowery, certify, based on my knowledbat:

(i) The compensation committee of The First Banoshidnc. has discussed, reviewed, and evaluatddsenior risk officers at least every
six months during any part of the most recently ptated fiscal year that was a TARP period, the@egxecutive officer (SEO) compensation
plans and the employee compensation plans andstteethese plans pose to The First Bancshares, Inc.

(i) The compensation committee of The First Bamesh, Inc. has identified and limited during anyt pdthe most recently completed
fiscal year that was a TARP period any featureh®fSEO compensation plans that could lead SE@&kéounnecessary and excessive risks
that could threaten the value of The First Banas$ydnc., and has identified any features of thpleyee compensation plans that pose risks t
The First Bancshares, Inc. and has limited thostifes to ensure that The First Bancshares, Imatisnnecessarily exposed to risks;

(iii) The compensation committee has reviewedeas$t every six months during any part of the mesemtly completed fiscal year that
was a TARP period, the terms of each employee cosgti®on plan and identified any features of the pheat could encourage the manipula
of reported earnings of The First Bancshares,tthenhance the compensation of an employee, ankihtis=d any such features;

(iv) The compensation committee of The First Baacsh, Inc. will certify to the reviews of the SEQmpensation plans and employee
compensation plans required under (i) and (iii)weho

(v) The compensation committee of The First Baneshadnc. will provide a narrative description @it limited during any part of the
most recently completed fiscal year that was a TARRod the features in

(A) SEO compensation plans that could lead SE@aki® unnecessary and excessive risks that cowddttm the value of The First
Bancshares, Inc

(B) Employee compensation plans that unnecessatpipse The First Bancshares, Inc. to risks; and

(C) Employee compensation plans that could enceutfagy manipulation of reported earnings of ThetBemcshares, Inc. to enhance the
compensation of an employee;

(vi) The First Bancshares, Inc. has required bgraysnents to SEOs or any of the next twenty mogstlhigompensated employees, as
defined in the regulations and guidance establisimeiér section 111 of EESA (bonus payments), bgesuto a recovery or “clawback”
provision during any part of the most recently ctetgd fiscal year that was a TARP period if the impayments were based on materially
inaccurate financial statements or any other naltgiinaccurate performance metric criteria;

(vii) The First Bancshares, Inc. has prohibited golden parachute payment, as defined in the régotand guidance established under
section 111 of EESA, to an SEO or any of the niset fnost highly compensated employees during anygbdahe most recently completed
fiscal year that was a TARP period;

(viii) The First Bancshares, Inc. has limited bopagments to its applicable employees in accordaiitbesection 111 of EESA and the
regulations and guidance established thereundarglany part of the most recently completed fisear that was a TARP period;

(ix) The First Bancshares, Inc. and its employegltomplied with the excessive or luxury expendgipolicy, as defined in the
regulations and guidance established under setfitrof EESA, during any part of the most recentignpleted fiscal year that was a TARP
period; and any expenses that, pursuant to theypotquired approval of the board of directorspmmittee of the board of directors, an SEO,
or an executive officer with a similar level of pemsibility were properly approved;




(x) The First Bancshares, Inc. will permit a nonédng shareholder resolution in compliance with applicable Federal securities rules
and regulations on the disclosures provided urtdeFederal securities laws related to SEO compiengaaid or accrued during any part of
most recently completed fiscal year that was a TARRod;

(xi) The First Bancshares, Inc. will disclose timecaunt, nature, and justification for the offerimlyiring any part of the most recently
completed fiscal year that was a TARP period, of gerquisites, as defined in the regulations aridamece established under section 111 of
EESA, whose total value exceeds $25,000 for anyl@rap who is subject to the bonus payment limitetimentified in paragraph (viii);

(xii) The First Bancshares, Inc. will disclose what The First Bancshares, Inc., the board of direaf The First Bancshares, Inc. or the
compensation committee of The First Bancshareshag engaged during any part of the most recentiypleted fiscal year that was a TARP
period, a compensation consultant; and the sertfieesompensation consultant or any affiliate ef tompensation consultant provided during
this period;

(xiii) The First Bancshares, Inc. has prohibited gfayment of any gross-ups, as defined in the a¢ignk and guidance established under
section 111 of EESA, to the SEOs and the next tyverast highly compensated employees during anygidhte most recently completed
fiscal year that was a TARP period,;

(xiv) The First Bancshares, Inc. has substant@diyplied with all other requirements related to lype compensation that are provided
in the agreement between The First BancsharesaitTreasury, including any amendments;

(xv) The First Bancshares, Inc. has submitted #a3ury a complete and accurate list of the SEOshentiventy next most highly
compensated employees for the current fiscal ye#r,the non-SEOs ranked in descending order afllefzannual compensation, and with the
name, title, and employer of each SEO and mostyhigimpensated employee identified; and

(xvi) I understand that a knowing and willful falsefraudulent statement made in connection wiih ¢ertification may be punished by
fine, imprisonment, or both.geefor example, 18 U.S.C. 1001.)

By: /sl Dee Dee Lower
Dee Dee Lowen
Principal Financial Office

Date: March 21, 201




